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CORPORATE PROFILE
AT

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the operation and management of department stores and property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The shares
of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 May 2008 (the
“Listing Date”).

With a unique operation model of “retail + commercial property”, the
Group has been growing rapidly since its establishment, and has
achieved scale expansion across the country by duplicating this model.
Supported by lands acquired at low costs, the Group uses its physical
retail to nurture property, building a closed ecological cycle in which its
core business supplements and supports each other.

Since Shenzhen Dongmen store, the first store of the Group, opened in
1997, the Group has been concentrating on development and careful
planning for over 20 years, and leveraging its strong competitiveness
and reform and innovation keeping pace with times, the leading position
of the Group in Southern China has been strengthened step by step.
The Group has also further expanded into the most developed markets
with the fastest growth rate in Eastern China, Southwestern China and
Northern China, becoming the industry leader in numbers of regions. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group had 48 stores with total gross floor
area of approximately 2.958 million sg.m., of which self-owned properties
accounted for 78.43% in gross floor area. The major cities under its
coverage include Shenzhen and Zhuhai in Guangdong; Chengdu,
Nanchong and Mianyang in Sichuan; Chongging; Wuxi, Yangzhou,
Taizhou, Nanjing and Huai'an in Jiangsu; Zibo, Laiwu and Heze in
Shandong; Qinhuangdao and Baoding in Hebei; Shenyang and Jinzhou
in Liaoning; Taiyuan in Shanxi; and Hohhot and Baotou in Inner Mongolia.

The Group actively grasps the development trend of medium-to-high end
physical retail in China, empowers new retail through the integration of
online and offline advantages and opening up upstream and downstream
channels to create new offline consumption experience featuring multi-
scenario and high efficiency at all times, and strives to achieve the
transformation from traditional department store retail to new retail.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on
the Company’s website at www.maoye.cn.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s)
(either English only or Chinese only or both languages) of the corporate
communications of the Company (including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports and circulars) by sending reasonable prior notice
in writing to the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications in either English or Chinese version will receive both
English and Chinese versions of this annual report since both languages
are bound together into one booklet.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
AT E

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the last 5 financial years is set out below:
EENBTLAMBFENEE - BE - BERERBEENT !

OPERATING RESULTS e $ -

For the years ended 31 December
HE12A3HILEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2020 20196 2018 20176 20165
GUAO0N  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
IRl \EETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

Total sales proceeds and HEMBRERHAERA LR
rental income' 10,688,894 15415742  15787,762  15711,849 13,433,479
Total operating revenue? R A KB R 8,016,385 7,940,561 7,848,911 7,174,316 6,925,377
Operating profit T 1,304,819 2701985 3,007,175 2749613 1,359,829
(Loss)/ Profit for the year FE (B8 )/%IJ (248,996) 471,046 1,127,221 1,268,409 112,061
Profit attributable to: FEML 7z
— Owners of the parent —SARERREA (174,636) 186,262 799,403 1,071,973 46,382
- Minority interests DY REER (74,360) 284,784 327,818 196,436 65,679
Basic (loss)/ earnings BREAL (58 /BF
per share (RMBJ? (NEHm)® (0.03) 0.04 0.16 0.21 0.01
Total sales proceeds and rental income Total operating revenue
HEFSIERHE WA LEE KEIWALERE
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EET) (AR¥EBEET)
20000 10,0000
15,712 15788 15,416 000 7849 7,941 8,016
15000 7174
13,433 6.925
6000
10,689
10000
4000
5000
2000
0 0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M TE AR

HIGHLIGHTS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBRRREE

As at 31 December

#128318
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20192 20184 20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
NS \RETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Assets and liabilities BEEKEE
Total assets BERE 51,307,134 53,830,059 50,969,724 47,831,805 45,975,332
Total liabilities aEeE 35,851,470 37,675,030 35,674,838 34,043,632 33,898,763
Total equity et 15,455,664 16,155,029 15,294,886 13,788,173 12,076,569
- Attributable to owners —HREREFEA
of the parent FEE TR 12,968,145 13,030,346 12,300,008 11,072,182 10,135,809
- Attrbutable to minority interests ~ —/DEURRFEIL S 2,487,519 3,124,683 2,994,878 2,715,991 1,940,760
Notes: FaEE -

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Total sales proceeds and rental income represent the sum of total sales proceeds
from concessionaire sales and revenue from direct sales at the department stores of
the Group.

Total operating revenue represents the sum of the Group’s revenue and other
income.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
is based on the net loss attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB174,636,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB186,262,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB799,403,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB1,071,973,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2016
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB46,382,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,141,489,556.

1.

HEPMSRERAEWABIERIEAERMAR
[EFEF B EARAR  EIEWA R EURAMEER

RS A MBERIE A S MU A R B A A BYABAD

HE2020F12H31HIEFENSREAREIETL
RESAIRGRBEAREEIHEBEBOARE
174,636,0007T K B 8 17 IR 9 U IN#E T 35 & 5@ AR
5,140,326,0008% 515 ©

HZE2019F12B31HIEEENEREARAT
REFFADHEFTEABGFIABOARE
186,262,00070 K& B 21T A& 1D BI NI AE 45 & 48 A%
5,140,326,00008 51 & ©

HE2018F12B3 1 HIEFENESREARRF T
BESADRZREARGEIEOAR
799,403,0007T K& B # TR A B IN#E F 5 B AL
5,140,326,00008 51 & ©

HE2017F12A31HIEEFENESREARRFTL
BRESATIRDGRBE ARG EFEOARE
1,071,973,0007t & B 28517 B (5 BI I T 35 38 A%
5,140,326,0008% 515 ©

HE2016F 12831 HIEFEFENESREARRFITL
BRESAIRIFE ARG EIEOARK
46,382,0007t K B #E TR A INEFHEERK
5,141,489,556/% 515 ©

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & BIBFZERBRAT 5



RETAIL NETWORK

ZEMEE
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
st PIE&TE #1145 (FAK) BEBH MERB#E EE
1 Shenzhen Dongmen Guangdong 40,709  Mar-1997 Owned Department Store
IR PIIE [& 1997438 BE BE
2 Shenzhen Huagiangbei Guangdong 63,243 Oct-2003 Leased Department Store
RN SRIEE [E®R 2003%104 BE BE
3 Shenzhen Shennan Guangdong 10,607 Dec-2004 Leased Department Store
IR EE IS &R 20044128 BE B8
4 Shenzhen Nanshan Guangdong 44,871  Sep-2009 Owned Department Store
wIIE LS [& 2009494 BE BE
5 Zhuhai Xiangzhou Guangdong 35,701 Nov-2001 Leased Department Store
HBEMNE =R 20014114 BE BE
6 Shenzhen Outlet Guangdong 23,141  Dec-1999 Leased Outlets
R B B I &R 19994124 HE BN AR HT
7 Chongqing Jiangbei Chongqing 67,5637 Oct-2004 Leased Department Store
BRETILE BE 20044108 HE BE
8 Rendong Sichuan 31,078 Sep-1998 Owned Department Store
NG )1 1998498 =SES) BE
9 Guanghua Sichuan 67,914 Dec-2009 Owned Department Store
FEEE o) 2009128 BE BE
10 Chengdu Chunxi Sichuan 29,866 Nov-2013 Owned Department Store
PR & BRIE el 2013F 114 BE BE
11 Yanshikou Maoye Complex  Sichuan 42,897  Jun-2005 Owned Department Store
B OXERME )1 2005464 =SES) BE
12 Nanchong Wuxing Sichuan 25,695 Nov-2001 Owned Department Store
ERAEZE o)1 20014118 BE BE
13 Mianyang Xingda Sichuan 27,795  Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
MR B IS el 2008494 BE BE
14 Zibo Maoye Times Square ~ Shandong 86,677 Feb-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
HMIERERAES Lz 2015524 BB BYH O
15 Laiwu Maoye Complex Shandong 60,127 Dec-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
IR ER M 1= 20174128 BB By RO
16 Heze Huihe Shandong 31,187 Mar-2011 Owned Department Store
SR B ANE LIz 20114E38 BE BE
17 Zibo Maoye Complex Shandong 100,724  Aug-2010 Owned Shopping Centre
ST E KM INE=S 2010484 BB By

6 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED X ¥ B EZERBRAE
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RETAIL NETWORK

ZEME
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BEEER
Fit PFIERTE &2 (FHK) BEBH MERBE EE&
18 Zibo Maoye Plaza Shandong 36,791 Dec-2008 Owned Department Store
MEXREES L= 20084124 SES) BE
19 Zibo Maoye Taikerong Mall ~ Shandong 25,337 Nov-2010 Owned Department Store
MERERT RS =R 20106114 BB B8
20 Zibo Maoye Shopping Mall  Shandong 9,761 Sep-1999 Leased Department Store
IR EE N Wz 1999498 HE BE
21 Wuxi Shopping Mall Jiangsu 200,433 Oct-2007 Managed Shopping Centre
mFEY PO L& 20074108 EIEE B
22 Taizhou Maoye Complex Jiangsu 86,066 Jan-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
ENE SN TLEF 2015514 BB BYH O
23 Nanjing Maoye Complex Jiangsu 63,116  Nov-2016 Owned Department Store
R R M TLER 20165118 BAE BE
24 Wuxi Yibai Jiangsu 78,695 Mar-2016 Owned Shopping Centre
BmHEAE T Bk 2016434 SES) B
25 Yangzhou Wenchang Jiangsu 21,485 May-2011 Owned Shopping Centre
BN EIE TLEF 2011454 BB BYH O
26 Taizhou First Department Store  Jiangsu 40,358 Oct-2009 Owned Department Store
ZEME—BE AR 20094104 BAE BE
27 Huai’an Maoye Complex Jiangsu 59,856 Apr-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
TER IR FERMIE T Bk 2019444 SES) B
28 Taiyuan Maoye Complex Shanxi 252,882 Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
KRR ERM s 20145118 BB BYH O
29 Taiyuan Liuxiang Shanxi 30,616  Oct-2008 Owned Department Store
KIRWPEIE L7 2008%10A4 BAE BE
30 Baotou Maoye Complex Inner Mongolia 63,268 Jan-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
Phase |
EEEGE SNt e 2017418 BE BYHO
31 Victory Times City Inner Mongolia 190,915 Nov-2010 Leased Shopping Centre
B RS NED 20104114 HE BY RO
32 Victory Mall City Inner Mongolia 131,987 Dec-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
SR ERIS e 20134124 BB YR
33 Baotou Donghe Victory Plaza Inner Mongolia 74,608 Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
BIERAAE S ES NES 2014114 SES) BYHO
34 Victory Commercial Building  Inner Mongolia 44,221  May-2003 Owned Department Store
wZHmE NED 2003454 BB BE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 E£E#% MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED S FEEZRERAT 7



RETAIL NETWORK

ZEMEE
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
st PIE&TE #1145 (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
35 Victory International Plaza Inner Mongolia 83,969 Jan-2008 Owned Department Store
HLF|EREISIE NED 2008%F1H BE BE
36 Victory Shopping Centre Inner Mongolia 63,695 Sep-2006 Owned Department Store
HZF BB NS 2006594 BB BE
37 Baotou Victory Commercial  Inner Mongolia 77,500 Oct-2010 Owned Department Store
Building
BEESFEE AN 20104104 BB BE
38 Shenyang Tiexi Liaoning 48,496  Jul-2012 Owned Outlets
& P S RE 20124F7 8 =SES) BT
39 Jinzhou Maoye Complex Liaoning 48,578 Feb-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
H#R N KM gy 2019424 BB WY RO
40 Xiandai Shopping Plaza Hebei 36,926 Jun-2010 Leased Department Store
HABYES G 2010%6H HE BE
41 Qinhuangdao Mall Hebei 26,697 Jun-2010 Owned Department Store
=25BEW Ak 201064 =SES) BE
42 Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Hebei 46,287  Jun-2010 Owned Shopping Centre
=EETRE A6 2010464 BB WY RO
43 Qinhuangdao Jindu Hebei 46,610 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
REETHIE G 200898 BB BE
44 Hualian Commercial Building Hebei 12,737 Jun-2010 Owned Department Store
i E S 3G 201064 =SES) BE
45 Qinhuangdao Maoye Hebei 10,470 Jun-2010 Owned Supermarket
Supermarket
REBXREBT A6 2010464 BB iR
46 Baoding Yanzhao Hebei 61,881 Sep-2014 Owned Department Store
{RIE RIS AIAE 2014494 BB BE
47 Baoding Guomao Hebei 24,826 Dec-2010 Owned Outlets
IREEE S JAE 20104124 BAE BN IRHET
48 Qinhuangdao Maoye Hebei 169,427 Oct-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
Complex
REBRERM G 20194104 BB YR

8  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% ¥ Bl #8 A5 [R A F) ANNUAL REPORT 2020 E R4



RETAIL NETWORK
TEMAE

NORTHERN CHINA 3675

Baotou B8
Hohhot PRAR1/ESF
Qinhuangdao =25
Baoding 1R7E
Shenyang &[5
Jinzhou £&

Taiyuan KR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Zibo #iE
Heze firis
Nanjing FIR
Taizhou ZEJM
Wuxi 85
Yangzhou )M
Laiwu 5gk
Huai'an 7%z
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Total Sales Proceeds and
Rental Income in 2020 by Regions

20205FSH EEFRISFRIA R
AEWALTENEGLE

36%

Eastern China Northern China
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China
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Southern China

]

Chengdu AR
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Chongaing EE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERHREE

In 2020, facing the huge impact of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”)
and the complex global dynamics, the PRC has actively promoted
prevention and control of COVID-19, as well as economic and social
development, and has achieved remarkable results. According to the
data from China’s National Bureau of Statistics, in 2020, the gross
domestic product exceeded RMB100 ftrillion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 2.3% as compared with that of 2019. The recovery of
offline consumption was relatively sluggish due to the pandemic control
needs and fragmentary resurgence of COVID-19 cases, and the PRC’s
total retail sales of consumer goods in 2020 exceeded RMB39 ftrillion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.9% as compared with that
of 2019. During the epidemic, the Group actively responded to the call
of the Chinese government to provide rent reduction and exemption for
its merchants. The Company actively fuffilled its social responsibilities,
comprehensively promoted and actively engaged in prevention and
control of the epidemic. As the epidemic was gradually brought under
control, the Group actively resumed work and production. Through
numerous online marketing methods, the Group provided consumers
with a variety of contactless shopping channels and scenarios, so as to
actively resume operations.

After years of development, as of 31 December 2020, the Group owned
48 stores. In terms of retail format, the Group owned 16 shopping
centres, 29 department stores and 3 outlets. The Group’s physical stores
occupied excellent locations and business areas with crowded passenger
flow. Benefiting from offline traffic and proximity to the business district,
the impact of the Group’s stores continuously grew. On 30 September
2020, the Group acquired 100% of the equity interests in Chengdu
Renhe Investment Co., Ltd.. The land parcel owned by such company
was located at an advantageous geographical location, which is in the
center of Chengdu, adjacent to the landmark buildings of Chengdu Tianfu
Square CKFE&35) and Sichuan Grand Theater (79)11X&IBz), and to
Chengdu Renhe Rendong Store (A #B{=F1 A 5 JE) and Yanshikou Maoye
Complex (BE/3 0% 2 K #hE) owned by the Group. The Group intended
to develop corresponding ancillary commercial projects. The acquisition
will help the Group to generate synergy effects in Chengdu regional
stores, which will be favorable for the Group to enhance its influence in
the Chengdu region.

In 2020, the Group promoted the Company’s operation and development
though a number of measures, including the acceleration of the
expansion of online business and improvement in online business
operation capabilities, deepening of the implementation of strong internal
controls to reduce the Company’s operating costs, as well as the
strengthening of product capabilities to enhance core competitiveness.
Besides, the Group also continued to dispose of non-core assets which
would assist the Group to further focus on its core business and facilitate
the Group’s future business growth and development.

10 MAOVYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 72 Bl 5 fRA 5

20205 mHHE ERFESE (TCOVID-19 )
EXFBBRMEHRIBUEERS  hEER
MEHETBEHEZENKSELT SRR IE:
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FHe i REBTEBEHIFFROEEE
TRE BINE—TIRETE REASE
BRKEFRERERE-
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBEE

Looking forward to 2021, being in the post-epidemic era, coupled with
the impact of the global economy, Sino-US relations and geopolitics,
there will still be uncertainties in economic recovery. However, under
the macro environment established by the government with domestic
circulation as the main focus and domestic and international dual
circulation as the driving force, policies such as stabilizing employment,
protecting people’s livelihood, stimulating consumption, etc. will continue
to be in force, and the consumer and retail markets are expected to
propel a continued rebound. The long-term positive trend of the PRC’s
economy will not change, and people’s expectations for a better life
will continue to exert prominence. The Group will intensively focus on
areas such as customer acquisition from multiple sources and precision
marketing, membership system optimization, and online and offline
integration at a systemic level. While focusing on the further enhancement
of core competitiveness, operating scale and efficiency, the Group will
continue to pay attention to the technological advancements in the new
retail sectors and strengthen business innovation and transformation to
meet the challenges under the new norm for pushing forward the Group’s
long-term sustainable development.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our employees

for their dedication and express my gratitude to our shareholders and
customers.

Huang Mao Ru
Chairman

24 March 2021

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE
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B READ

MACRO ECONOMY OVERVIEW

In 2020, facing the huge impact of COVID-19 and the complex
global dynamics, the PRC has actively promoted COVID-19
prevention and control, as well as economic and social development,
and has achieved remarkable results. In 2020, the gross domestic
product exceeded RMB100 trillion, representing a year-on-
year increase of 2.3% as compared with that of 2019, which
demonstrated the strong resilience of the economic development of
the PRC.

In the first half of 2020, the impact of COVID-19 on the PRC'’s
retail sales of consumer goods was relatively significant. Although
work largely resumed by March and April in 2020, the demand for
COVID-19 prevention and the sporadic rebound of COVID-19 cases
have led to a relatively slow recovery of offline consumption. In the
second half of 2020, offine consumption and demand gradually
recovered, and the year-on-year growth rate of the PRC’s total retail
sales of consumer goods gradually returned to normal. In 2020, the
PRC’s total retail sales of consumer goods exceeded RMB39 trillion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 3.9% as compared with that
of 2019.

The overall economic environment has gradually rebounded while
the retail market was still under pressure. Crowded business
premises such as catering, department stores, bore the brunt
of the impact. According to the statistics of the China National
Commercial Information Center (FE2FEEEEFEE L), in
2020, the aggregate retail sales of goods of the top 100 key large
nationwide retailers decreased by 13.8% on a year-on-year basis.
In light of the new development model of Dual Circulation, in which
the domestic cycle plays a leading role while the international cycle
serves as its extension and supplement, policies will continue to take
effect to boost domestic demand and consumption. This will cement
the foundation for the steady recovery of the consumer market and
sustain its recovery momentum.

12 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 72 Bl 5 fRA 5
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REETERE

20204 > EI¥COVID-19E K E &M1&
MERENBERES hEBRGERE
COVID-19BF #EFES B+ & &8 R T1E » BY
SBHEER R ° 20204 » I 4 E4AE{E IR
WARM100E 27 820195 [F) LH1E
£2.3% BIRH P ELE S ERE AT
14 o

2020F ¥ FEHEHMEHEERTES
COVID-195 £ 8 A4 BH 58 - B 5202043
BHABBEEARTRE T  BEFEERU
KEEMCOVID- 19k BERLAZ N HE IR
EERAEIZ ; 2020 FHEELFE T HEE
KRB HERIME PELEHEREE
#AZAB[E) Lb 18 2R 28T 18 IE 8 0 20202 &
hEMEHE RS EEEBE AREI9
BE7T B2019F A tE T FE3.9% ©

BEQERBEZESRE  TEHHMNHA
AR BEHR BEEFANRBENEE
Bz EE R EHE - RIET
E2EBEES PO 2020F2H
BRERARUSELXTERFLLTE
13.8% - BEEBEUBRABIRS TR
WERELEIRBERENMERR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Il. OPERATION REVIEW

—EEBEREEE
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In 2020, the Group recorded total operating revenue of RMB8,016.4
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.0%; a net loss
of RMB249.0 million was recorded, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 152.9%; if the impacts from the non-operating gains and
losses were excluded, a net profit of RMB377.0 million would have
been recorded, representing a year-on-year decrease of 35.2%.

During the year under review, facing the negative impact of
COVID-19, despite the pressure on the overall retail market, the
Group actively fulfilled its social responsibilities and continued
to optimize the business model of its stores, accelerated the
expansion of online business and improved online business
operation capabilities, controlled costs and enhanced efficiency to
strengthen product capabilities, disposed of non-core listed equity
investments, acquired equity in target companies and accelerated
the development of its main business.

1. Actively fulfil its social responsibilities and continue
to optimize the business model of stores

During the epidemic, the Group actively responded to the call
of the Chinese government to temporarily close its stores by
stages, shortened business hours, and restricted customer flow.
At the same time, the Group actively provided rent reduction and
exemption for its merchants. Facing COVID-19, the Company
actively fulfilled its social responsibilities, comprehensively
promoted and actively engaged in prevention and control work,
thereby effectively ensuring the health and safety of customers
and employees. As COVID-19 was gradually under control in the
second quarter of 2020, the Group actively resumed work and
production. Through numerous online marketing methods and
collaborations with offline stores, the Group provided consumers
with a variety of contactless shopping channels and scenarios,
as well as services such as free delivery. The Group continued to
explore innovative business model to upgrade its retail business,
and actively resumed operations.
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As of 31 December 2020, the Group owned 48 stores. In
terms of retail format, the Group owned 16 shopping centres,
29 department stores and 3 outlets. During the epidemic, the
stores of the Group continued to push forward the reformation
of their business models and took various measures to
enhance their resistance to risks: shopping centres adjusted
their promotion fee structure according to the characteristics of
consumers, strengthened in-depth operations with merchants,
and continued to improve store traffic during the epidemic.
The Group actively promoted the transformation of shopping
centres, continued to push forward the adjustment and upgrade
of stores, deepened the brand image of stores, and diversified
the customer experience. For department stores, the Group
strengthened the coordination of key resources categories,
actively advanced in the adjustment of key brands in key stores,
flexibly leveraged the opportunity of reduced prevention and
control measures to make all-out efforts to carry out marketing
activities in key periods, and vigorously launched sales
promotion by closely following hot issues in the market, thereby
accelerating the recovery of business operations. For outlets, by
taking advantage of its own open operating space, the Group
continued to strive for marketing resources for its key brands, as
a result, sales and performance indicators were simultaneously
and rapidly improved in a balanced manner.

Accelerate the expansion of online business and
improve online business operation capabilities

During the reporting period, the Group continued to adhere to its
objective to achieve “digital retail, intelligent business.” Through
iterative updates of online marketing tools, the Group enhanced
platform experience and innovation of offline marketing activities,
and provided more comprehensive and precise value-added
services for members. APPs or applets such as “Mao Yue Hui
(RI8E)”, “Mao Le Hui (R£2)” and “Xiao Hong Mao (VAT
)" underwent in-depth integration with offline stores and were
embedded with a variety of high-quality and convenient service
content, which in turn enhanced online and offline two-way
marketing. The Group enhanced its marketing and promotion
capabilities by making use of new media promotion, thereby
achieving low-cost precision marketing.

14  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% Bl 5 fRA 5
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During the reporting period, the membership management
system of “Mao Yue Hui” adhered to its customer-centric
concept, and actively optimized the marketing functions, such
as member points mall, bank notes, electronic stored value and
gift cards, to enhance member service efficiency and experience.
It also provides face-to-face services as well as intelligent
acquisition, intelligent recommendation, convenient order
placement, and door-to-door delivery services to customers.
Moreover, it served consumers based on their most sensitive
concerns, such as quality assurance, return guarantee and
logistics efficiency, to enhance online business operations
capabilities. In 2020, the number of new members for the
membership management system of “Mao Yue Hui” reached
1,120,000 people, achieving a conversion rate of over 32%.

During the reporting period, the “Mao Le Hui” online beauty
vertical e-commerce platform further extended the offline
consumption environment to online. With exclusive online
product support from over 80 brands, the Group enhanced
its brand channel advantage resources. With years of
reliance on offline stores resources, the Group continued to
advance the thematic, digital, social, intelligent new retail
for the reconstruction of the consumption connection. As
offline customer traffic continued to decrease in the post-
COVID-19 era, the Company actively built new traffic channels
to strengthen the tracking and post-back of consumer journey
data. In 2020, newly registered members of “Mao Le Hui”
exceeded 540,000 people, representing a 160% year-on-year
growth in sales.

During the reporting period, the Group ramped up the
proportion of online marketing and sales by actively exploring
new marketing methods, including various forms of social
media such as live streaming, short videos, WeChat groups,
applets, to extend our reach to consumers and stimulate
consumers’ willingness to shop. Meanwhile, the Group achieved
online connections with its customers through WeChat public
accounts, WeChat groups, WeChat shopping guides, etc.,
and released concessionaire beauty products on its own
APPs or WeChat applet mall for sale. The Company’s private
domain traffic was effectively created through social marketing
and applet malls, which resulted in conversion or repurchase.
Coupled with the public domain traffic from live streaming
marketing, interaction of public domain and private domain traffic
was achieved, thereby realizing low-cost precision marketing.
In 2020, the accumulated transaction volume of online
consumption exceeded RMB300 million, the highest transaction
volume of a single live streaming session exceeded RMB3
million, and the accumulated number of online viewers reached
1.7 million.
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Control costs and enhance efficiency to strengthen
product capabilities

During the reporting period, the Company deepened the
implementation of strong internal controls to further strengthen
corporate management system and procedures, and
implemented each step of the system to achieve gradual
enhancement. At the same time, the Company laid a solid
foundation for safety so as to support its business development.
The Company formulated focal points of the annual emergency
management work, organized centralized fire safety rectification
actions, conducted in-depth investigation of hidden dangers,
established firm awareness of safety responsibility, strengthened
information security, carried out training on confidentiality, and
enhanced employees’ awareness of confidentiality. Furthermore,
the Company actively strove for concessionaire policies such
as rent and tax reduction during the epidemic to continuously
reduce management costs; the effective reduction of labor costs
was achieved through measures such as optimizing personnel
structure, implementing flexible labor deployment models, etc.;
the Company effectively reduced advertising and marketing
costs by competitive media tender invitation, invalid advertising
reduction, standardizing points redemption, etc.; and effectively
reduced corporate inventories by eliminating waste assets and
increasing efforts to dispose of slow-moving goods.

During the reporting period, the Group created highly efficient
supply chains and adjusted its product portfolio to strengthen
core competitiveness, which included: matching the store with
positioning that corresponds with product category to enhance
coherence and continuity for establishing a clear brand image;
strengthening brand management and linkage, and realizing
complementary advantages through in-depth cooperation of
brands and suppliers. Moreover, the continued increase in the
proportion of product categories with high gross profit such as
international cosmetic products and Internet celebrity-endorsed
foods, in particular cosmetics, not only led to the sales in
cosmetics, but also led to the consumption in other categories
and enhanced the young and trendy image of the relevant
stores.
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4. Disposal of non-core listed equity investments 4. HEIFZOEHERIRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd. (FJKIEEE
BERAT), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
disposed of approximately 11.00% of the total issued share
capital of Zhongjiabochuang Information Technology Co., Ltd.
(F=EREERMRHAERAT) (“ZIJBC”, a joint stock
company established in the PRC with limited liability, the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 000889)) on the open market; As of 2 March 2021, the
interests in ZJBC held by the Company was reduced from
approximately 22.18% to approximately 11.18%.

The proceeds from the disposal of non-core listed assets would
assist the Group to further focus on its core business and
optimize its financial position for the further facilitation of the
Group’s future business growth and development.

Acquire equity in target companies and accelerate
the development of main business

On 30 September 2020, Chengshang Group Holding Co., Ltd.

(B ERZER AR AT) (“Chengshang Holding”), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into an acquisition agreement with Chengdu Renhe Industrial
(Group) Limited (R#EBI—HE %X (@) SR 3) (“Renhe
Industrial”) to acquire 100% of the equity interests in Chengdu
Renhe Investment Co., Ltd. (BEB{ZFILEBRAQE) (‘Renhe
Investment”) held by Renhe Industrial for a consideration of
RMB1.45 billion.

The land parcel owned by Renhe Investment was located at
an advantageous geographical location, which is in the centre
of Chengdu, adjacent to the landmark buildings of Chengdu
Tianfu Square (KFFE#)and Sichuan Grand Theatre (Z4]I]
KEIBT), and to Chengdu Renhe Rendong Store (AY#B{ZA1
ABJE)and Yanshikou Maoye Complex (B /%% K ith]E)
owned by the Group. Upon the completion of the acquisition, in
view of the land use nature of the Jincheng art palace project of
Renhe Investment, i.e. land for commercial service facilities, the
Group intended to develop corresponding ancillary commercial
projects, such as shopping centres. The acquisition will help
the Group to generate synergy effects in Chengdu regional
stores, which will be favorable for the Group to further develop
its commercial retail business in the Chengdu region, and will
further expand its regional influence and strengthen its market
position, thereby enhancing the Group’s overall strength.
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lll. FUTURE OUTLOOK SVRKEKEE

In 2021, being in the post-COVID-19 era, coupled with the impact
of the global economy, Sino-US relations, and geopolitics, there wiill
still be variables in economic recovery. However, under the macro
environment established by the government with domestic circulation
as the main focus and domestic and international dual circulation as
the driving force, policies such as stabilizing employment, protecting
people’s livelihood, stimulating consumption, etc. will continue to be
in force, and the consumer and retail markets are expected to propel
a continued rebound.

The Group believes that the long-term positive trend of the PRC’s
economy will not change, and people’s expectations for a better
life will continue to exert prominence. The Group will intensively
focus on areas such as customer acquisition from multiple sources
and precision marketing, membership system optimization, and
online and offline integration at a systemic level. While focusing
on the further enhancement of core competitiveness, operating
scale and efficiency, the Group will continue to pay attention to the
technological advancements in the new retail sectors and strengthen
business innovation and transformation to meet the challenges under
the new norm for pushing forward the Group’s long-term sustainable
development.
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PERFORMANCE OF MAJOR DEPARTMENT STORES' FEMERIF
Total Sales
Proceeds
and
Rental Operation Gross Floor
No. Store Name Income Period? Area
HEFRERIE
Fit  PIERTE REEKALRLE [E#5° BEER
(RMB’000) (Years) (sg.m.)
NREF ) (%) (F5K)
1 Shenzhen Huagiangbei A EE R IE IR 1,782,279 17.3 63,243
2 Guanghua HEE 734,446 11.1 67,914
3 Taiyuan Maoye Complex PG ES N 696,935 6.1 252,882
4 Shenzhen Dongmen IR S 631,276 23.9 40,709
5 Shenzhen Nanshan I WS 626,073 11.3 44,871
6 Victory Commercial Building HZHEEE 550,798 17.7 44,221
7 Victory International Plaza LA BERESIS 532,144 13.0 83,969
8 Taizhou First Department Store  HRINFE—FE 503,308 11.3 40,358
9 Zibo Maoye Times Square WERERAES 332,055 5.9 86,677
10 Qinhuangdao Jindu RZEEFHIE 282,038 12.3 46,610
11 Yanshikou Maoye Complex EmORERME 262,486 15.6 42,897
12 Xiandai Shopping Plaza HABEYES 257,778 10.6 36,926
Notes: =
1. Major department stores are stores with annual total sales proceeds and rental 1. FEFIEASHEENEFRFEHIERMAS A LEZE

income of over RMB250 million;

2. Operation period was calculated until 31 December 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Sales Proceeds and Rental Income

For the year ended 31 December 2020, total sales proceeds and rental
income of the Group were RMB10,688.9 million, representing a decrease
of 30.7% compared to the year of 2019. Under the negative impact from
the COVID-19, the retail industry was under pressure in general. Same-
store sales proceeds and rental income of the Group were RMB10,534.9
million, representing a decrease of 31.2% compared to the year of 2019.

H1 %5 o] BE

SHEFTSTIERTEE WA 4E%E

B E2020F 128310 LEE  AEBNHE
FTiSRIERTEEWA4EEE A ART510,688.9
A&7 820195 T F&30.7% ° 2 COVID-19
NEETE SETEBRAKE xEH
BIEHEMESRELREERAAARRE
10,584.98 8 70 » B2019E N [£31.2% ©

For the year ended
31 December

HZE12A31HLLEE

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFIT

Total sales proceeds from BRI E AR
concessionaire sales 8,136,773 12,547,871
Direct sales income HIEWA 1,575,751 1,750,291
Rental income HEWA 976,370 1,117,580
Total sales proceeds and rental income  $HEF1STIE K FE E W A 4858 10,688,894 15,415,742

Among the total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020, total sales proceeds derived
from concessionaire sales accounted for 76.1%, those derived from
direct sales accounted for 14.8%, and those derived from rental
income accounted for 9.1%. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
sales proceeds from concessionaire sales were RMB8,136.8 million,
representing a decrease of 35.2% compared to the year of 2019; rental
income were RMB976.4 million, representing a decrease of 12.6%
compared to the year of 2019.
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The total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group in the four
regions are set out as follows:

Total sales proceeds and rental income
HEMSMIBEREEWRAEEE

For the year ended 31 December

HE12H31HILLEE
2020 2019 Change
20204 20194 i)

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(NE¥Tm) EONSL:Ew) %
Eastern China EH 1,455,701 1,737,836 -16.2%
Southern China g 3,526,995 5,026,542 —29.8%
Southwestern China il 1,863,719 2,778,236 -32.9%
Northern China iyl 3,842,479 5,873,128 -34.6%
Total =51 10,688,894 15,415,742 -30.7%

As of 31 December 2020, sales of apparels (including men’s and ladies’
apparels) accounted for 29.5% (2019: 34.2%), jewelries accounted for
18.7% (2019: 17.6%), leisure and sports goods accounted for 12.2%
(2019: 11.8%), cosmetics accounted for 15.9% (2019: 11.4%), shoes
and leather goods accounted for 6.7% (2019: 7.6%), others (including
branded merchandise, children’s items, bedroom and household goods,
home appliances, supermarket and others) accounted for 17.0% (2019:
17.4%).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue of the Group’s main
business amounted to RMB6,911.8 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB644.4 milion compared with RMB6,267.4 million
for the year of 2019. The increase of revenue was mainly because of
the recorded increase in revenue derived from the real estate projects in
Taizhou, Qinhuangdao and Chengdu of Maoye Property.
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Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2020, other income of the Group
amounted to RMB1,104.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB568.6
million compared with RMB1,673.2 million for the year of 2019. The
decrease in other income was primarily due to the decrease in the
revenue derived from the Group’s department store segment attributable
to the challenges brought by COVID-19, which led to a year-on-year
decrease in revenue derived from administration and management fees
and sales promotion.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020, cost of sales of the Group
amounted to RMB3,231.2 million, representing an increase of 32.2%
compared with RMB2,443.6 million for the year of 2019. The increase in
cost of sales was mainly attributable to the income from property sales
for property projects recognised during the period increased, resulting in
the increase in corresponding costs.

Employee Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, employee expenses of the
Group amounted to RMB415.2 million, representing a decrease of 27.0%
compared with RMB569.1 million for the year of 2019, which was mainly
due to (i) the enhanced human resources management of the Group
and reduced staff and increased efficiency, resulting in the decrease
in relevant staff cost, and (i) the business of Inner Mongolia Victory
Supermarket sub-contracted to other third party since July 2019 which
led to the decrease in labour costs.

Depreciation and Amortisation

For the year ended 31 December 2020, depreciation and amortisation
of the Group amounted to RMB1,083.4 million, representing a decrease
of 2.1% compared with RMB1,107.1 milion for the year of 2019, the
main reason of which was that certain assets were fully depreciated and
amortised, resulting in depreciation and amortisation expiration.

Payments for Short-term Leases and Leases of Low-value
Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2020, payments for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets of the Group amounted to RMB10.9
million, representing a significant decrease of 65.7% compared with
operating lease rental expenses of RMB31.8 million for the same period
last year, which was mainly due to certain high-value lease contracts with
undefined lease extension option in the first half of 2019 were officially
extended in the second half of 2019 and early 2020 and was included
in the new accounting standard for leases, resulting in the significant
decrease in payments for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets for the period as compared to the same period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERETRED

Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, other operating expenses of
the Group amounted to RMB1,145.0 million, representing a decrease of
16.9% compared with RMB1,378.6 million for the year of 2019. Other
operating expenses as percentage of total sales proceeds and rental
income increased to 10.7% compared with 8.9% in the corresponding
period of 2019.

Other Gains and Losses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded other losses
of RMB825.9 million, representing a decrease of 383.0% compared
with other net gain of RMB291.8 million for the year of 2019. This was
primarily due to (i) the provision for asset impairment made for the equity
interests in ZJBC, an associate of Zhongzhao Investment, which was in
turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, because of the sluggish
operating results and share price caused by COVID-19 during the year;
and (i) the decrease in comparable rents in the rental market as a result
of COVID-19, thus the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
recorded a loss on fair value changes along with the adjustment to
market conditions.

Operating Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020, operating profit of the Group was
RMB1,304.8 million, representing a decrease of 51.7% as compared with
RMB2,702.0 million for the year of 2019. This was primarily due to (i) the
provision for asset impairment made for the equity interests in ZJBC, an
associate of Zhongzhao Investment, which was in turn a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company; (i) the decrease in the market comparable
rent due to COVID-19, resulting a decrease in fair value of the Group’s
investment properties; and (jii) the pressure on the sales of retail industry
due to COVID-19, thus the profit of department store segment declined.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2020, finance costs of the Group
amounted to RMB1,231.5 million, representing a decrease of 6.7%
compared with RMB1,320.6 million for the year of 2019. This was
primarily due to () the principal of interest-bearing liabilities of the current
year decreased as compared with 2019, resulting in the decrease in
financial fees; and (ii) the slight decrease in financing interest rate of
interest-bearing liabilities.
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Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2020, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB312.9 million, representing a decrease of 51.3%
compared with RMB642.2 million for the year of 2019. The decrease in
income tax expense was primarily due to the decrease in total operating
profit for the year.

Profit for the year
As a result of the foregoing, for the year ended 31 December 2020:

—  Net loss for the year was RMB249.0 million, representing a decrease
of 1562.9% as compared with the year of 2019;

- Without taking into account the effect of non-operating gains and
losses™, net profit for the year was RMB377.0 million, representing a
decrease of 35.2% as compared with RMB581.9 million for the year
of 2019.

Non-operating gains and losses represent the gains and losses on fair value
changes and disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the
impairment loss of investment in an associate, the gains and losses on disposal
of property, plant and equipment items, investment properties and land lease
prepayments.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB1,046.7 million, representing a decrease of RMB185.9
million compared to the balance of RMB1,232.6 million as at 31
December 2019. The main cash inflow and cash outflow are set out as
follows:

(i)  Net cash inflow of RMB904.9 million arising from operating activities;
(i) Net cash outflow of RMB248.5 million arising from investment
activities, which included:

(1) the cash outflow of investments in properties, equipment and
investment property amounting to RMB240.5 million;

(2) the cash outflow of RMB595.3 million from the purchase of

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

(8) the cash inflow of RMB766.0 million from the buyback of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
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the inflow of RMB141.7 million from the disposal of the shares of
Bank of Chengdu held and the inflow of RMB638.6 million from
the partial disposal of the equity interests in ZJBC held;

the outflow of RMB869.5 million from the payment of the first
and second instalment for the acquisition of the equity interests
in Renhe Investment;

Receipts of the gains from wealth management products and
dividends from the equity instruments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income in a total amount of
RMB18.4 million;

the cash outflow from the profit distribution to small and medium
shareholders of Maoye Commercial amounting to approximately
RMB89.4 million; and

the outflow of pledged bank deposits of RMB37.7 million; and

Net cash outflow of RMB874.9 million arising from financing
activities, which mainly included:

(1)

@

the increase in cash inflow arising from bank loans and other
borrowings of RMB9,311.1 million;

the cash outflow arising from repayment of bank loans and other
borrowings of RMB12,017.2 million;

the cash outflow arising from payment of interest of
approximately RMB1,028.6 million;

the lease expenses of approximately RMB415.9 million included
in the new accounting standard on leases;

net cash inflow arising from borrowings from fellow subsidiaries
amounting to approximately RMB3,366.5 million; and

profit distribution to shareholders of Maoye International
Holdings Limited amounting to RMB90.7 million.
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Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, total bank loans, USD senior guarantee notes
and corporate bonds of the Group were approximately RMB14,342.5
million (31 December 2019: RMB16,119.9 million). The gearing ratio' and
net gearing ratio®> were 28.0% and 86.0%, respectively (31 December
2019: 29.9% and 92.2%, respectively).

! Gearing ratio = total debt/total assets = (bank loans + corporate bonds + USD
senior guarantee notes)/total assets

2 Net gearing ratio = net debt/total equity = (bank loans + corporate bonds + USD
senior guarantee notes — cash and cash equivalents)/total equity

Contingent liabilities

(@ On 14 April 2020, Zhanye Property Co., Ltd. (“Zhanye Property”)
received a court judgment from the Shenyang Municipal Intermediate
People’s Court related to a litigation filed by Balin Youqi Eurasia
Investment Development Company Limited (“Balin Yougqi”) in
October 2018. According to the court judgment, Zhanye Property
shall pay Balin Yougi an amount of RMB32,207,340.86 in respect
of consideration for the transfer of a property project, together with
interest calculated from 24 October 2018 to the full payment of the
amount based on the Interbank Offered Rate announced by the
National Interbank Funding Center. Procedures for filing of an appeal
by Zhanye Property was completed on 6 May 2020. The first court
hearing for the second trial will be held on 30 March 2021. Based on
the advice from the Company’s legal counsel, as the litigation is at
the second trial stage, the court judgment as abovementioned is not
yet effective. The Company believes that the ultimate outcome of the
litigation cannot be reliably estimated.

(b) In August 2020, Shenyang Dadong District Urban Construction
Service Center GBS AR BN EBIRFEF L) filed a litigation
with the Shenyang Municipal Intermediate People’s Court to
claim for () a debt of RMB24,435,600 together with interest of
RMB35,617,100 and (i) urban construction project infrastructure fees
of RMB12,294,100 together with interest of RMB12,835,100 from
Zhanye Property in relation to the transfer agreement for a property
project. The first court hearing was held on 25 February 2021. The
Company, based on the advice from the Company’s legal counsel
and the progress of the case, believes that the ultimate outcome of
the litigation cannot be reliably estimated.
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(¢) In July 2020, Shenyang Northern Construction Co., Ltd. (&
BiEH R RN ABRAT) filed a litigation with the Shenyang
Municipal Intermediate People’s Court to claim for an amount of
RMB22,292,569 from Zhanye Property in relation to construction
work for a project in Shenyang, together with interest of
RMB16,236,818. The Company, based on the advice from the
Company’s legal counsel and the progress of the case, believes that
the ultimate outcome of the litigation cannot be reliably estimated.

Major Acquisition and Disposal
Disposal of Shares in ZJBC

On 8 May 2020, Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongzhao”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) disposed of
approximately 2.01% of the issued share capital of ZJBC on the open
market (the “Disposal”). On 12 May 2020, Zhongzhao further disposed
of approximately 0.98% of the issued share capital of ZJBC on the open
market (the “Further Disposal’). On 18 May 2020, Shenzhen Maoye
Department Store Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Maoye”, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which is indirectly held by the Company as
to 82.80%) disposed of approximately 1.86% of the issued share capital
of ZJBC on the open market for the third time (the “Third Disposal’).
As the Company held 82.80% equity interests in Shenzhen Maoye, as
a result, the Company disposed of approximately 1.54% of the issued
share capital of ZJBC under the Third Disposal. From 19 August 2020 to
7 September 2020, Zhongzhao disposed of approximately 2.00% of the
issued share capital of ZUBC on the open market for the fourth time (the
“Fourth Disposal”). After the Disposal, the Further Disposal, the Third
Disposal and the Fourth Disposal, the equity interests in ZJBC held by
the Company was reduced from approximately 22.18% to approximately
15.66%. For details of the above, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 11 May 2020, 15 May 2020, 19 May 2020 and
8 September 2020, and the circular of the Company dated 30 October
2020.

From 8 September 2020 to 2 March 2021, Zhongzhao disposed
of shares of ZJBC on the open market several times, representing
approximately 4.48% of the issued share capital of ZJBC in total (the
“Fifth Disposal’). After the Fifth Disposal, the equity interests in ZJBC
held by the Company was reduced from approximately 15.66% to
approximately 11.18%. The proceeds from the above disposal further
strengthened the financial position and capital base of the Group, which
helped the Group further focus on its main business, and promoted the
future business growth and development of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

(©) FR2020F7H  EHBIEHERKRMDER
NEEEETRRANR LRI EEFEA
e REBMEG—EEENERT
RBEREARE22,292 5690 F A R
16,236,818 HF B o IR R A B AR
BENERREHNEE  ARARSE
SREARI R A4S R M R AE R 214 5T ©

BEARWBERNE

HEHE BRI R %

R2020F5H8H AN EEEABRAF
(TehJk) > AR RNBZ2ENBRR) TAH
MHELLHETREEABEITRAL2.01%
(THESEIE)) - #2020F58 128 » RIKEA
S LE—PHEFRERBAIEETRA
#90.98% (ME—FHEEIE]) - FL20205F58
180 RYIREBEBRAT (GRINKE, -
AEANBIEZERBRAET AR BET
BHB2.80%KHE) HARME LE=ZRHE
hRBA B ETRALN1.86% (F=RHE
BIE|) HBRNEAQAEFAEFRYIKZES2.80%
R, At E= N HEREBEBRATHES
ZHAIBREITIRANA1.54% 122020F8H
19H E2020F987H AR » HIKIE AR ™ IH
TEMTHEFRZEA B EITRA4I2.00%
(TEMRHEEIE)) - HESFHE E£—FH
EEB - F-AHEFTEAENREEEE
B AATFENTEBAZERZERAY
22 18% B/ D E4915.66% ° Fil B RAZFIER S
BARAT HEA2020E5811H ~ 2020558
15H ~ 2020858 19H &2020FE988H Z A
&R HEAA2020F10830H 238K ©

2020 9H8H E2021F3H2H AR » A JK
EABEmB EEHEFEHEAIRG &5t
HEFTEHAEEITRAL4.48% (FRR
HEEH) - FAXEESTER AATH
BN EIEAI 2 EmAFRA15.66% RV ELT
11.18%c FiiHEFIBFESESE—T =
EXREBMNHBERIRERER  BBRNE
— S ERETE REFAERRLERIERER
BRo

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /% EIFZEREBER AT 27



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B READ

Acquisition of the Entire Equity Interests in Renhe Investrment

On 30 September 2020, Chengshang Holding, an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition agreement
with Renhe Industrial to dispose of 100% of the equity interests in Renhe
Investment held by Renhe Industrial for a Consideration of RMB1.45
billion.

The land parcel owned by Renhe Investment was located at an
advantageous geographical location, which is in the centre of Chengdu,
adjacent to the landmark buildings of Chengdu Tianfu Square (R &
¥%) and Sichuan Grand Theatre (F9)1|K&IF%), and to Chengdu Renhe
Rendong Store (BZER1ZF1 A JE) and Yanshikou Maoye Complex (82
O 2 K #E) owned by the Group. Upon the completion of the
acquisition, in view of the land use nature of the Jincheng art palace
project of Renhe Investment, i.e. land for commercial service facilities, the
Group intended to develop corresponding ancillary commercial projects,
such as shopping centres. The acquisition will help the Group to generate
synergy effects in Chengdu regional stores, which will be favorable for the
Group to further develop its commercial retail business in the Chengdu
region, and will further expand its regional influence and strengthen its
market position, thereby enhancing the Group’s overall strength.

Save for the above, the Group did not have any other major acquisition or
disposal during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s collateral interest-bearing bank
loans amounting to RMB11,342.4 million were secured by approximately
RMB3,872.8 million, RMB9,178.4 million, RMB1,731.7 million and
RMB451.1 million respectively of the Group’s land and buildings,
investment properties, right-of-use assets and properties under
development.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company issued US$150,000,000 and US$100,000,000 senior
guaranteed notes with a term of 2 years on September and October in
2018 respectively which have all been redeemed as of 31 December
2020, and is exposed to the effect of foreign exchange fluctuation risks.
During the reporting period, the Group recorded a foreign exchange loss
of approximately RMB48.0 million on exchange. Since the business of
the Group was mainly focused on Mainland China, its operation was not
exposed to any foreign exchange fluctuation risks.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had not entered into any
arrangements to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group’s operating
cash flow is not exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation risks.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

EFMUERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (EX#) (“Mr. Huang”), aged 55 is the founder
of the Group and the Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is also a director of various companies in the Group. Besides, he is
a director and owner of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited
and MOY International Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholders
of the Company. Mr. Huang is responsible for the overall development
and strategic planning of the Group. He has extensive experience
in department store and commercial real estate industries and has
been engaged in department store business for over 20 years. Before
commencing his department store business, Mr. Huang established
Maoye (Shenzhen) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (2 CFII) B
MERZAE/AT)In 1992 and Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd. G&

Y (EE) BHBBMRAT) N 1995. Mr. Huang had been a director
and the Chairman of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (R £ RN B[R
‘AE]) (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600828) since July 2005 and resigned on 9 February 2009.

Mr. Zhong Pengyi ((2lE3) (“Mr. Zhong”), aged 65, is an Executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company. He joined the Group
in August 2007. Mr. Zhong received a master’s degree in business
administration from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2003. Mr. Zhong
has over 30 years of experience in the operational management of the
department store industry, real estate industry and trading industry.
Mr. Zhong has been an independent director of Shenzhen Centralcon
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. GRYITTHMEEZERKRHBBRAE) (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000042)
since July 2017. On 14 March 2014, Mr. Zhong has been appointed as
a director of Shenyang Commercial City Co., Ltd. CERR XM IAE
fR‘A7], “Commercial City”)(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600306). He has also been a director of Maoye
Commercial since 10 June 2015.

Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (E/\ig) (“Ms. Lu”), aged 47, is the executive Director
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. She holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Ballarat, Australia.
She joined the Group in March 1997 and had previously served as
the manager of the finance department, the general manager of the
audit and supervision department, and the general manager of the
contract management center, deputy general manager of the financial
management center of the Group. Ms. Lu has been appointed as the
general manager of the financial management center of the Group
since June 2017 and as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group since
5 December 2019. Ms. Lu has over 20 years of financial management
experience in the PRC.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Bin (E£3&) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 54, joined the Group in 2010.
He was an Executive Director of the Company before his re-designation
as a Non-executive Director on 5 May 2017. He is also a director of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Wang had been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 20 October 2010 and resigned on 7
December 2015. He had also been the Vice President of the Company
since 14 January 2013 and resigned on 7 December 2015. Mr. Wang is
a senior accountant. He received a bachelor’s degree majored in finance
and accounting from Shanghai Maritime University in 1988 and received
a Master of Business Administration degree from Murdoch University
of Australia in 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang worked for
China Merchants Group (B F % &) and served as financial controller
of Huafu Holdings Limited GEZ#ERBR/AE]). He has more than 20
years of experience in financial management. Mr. Wang had been a
director of Zhongjiabochuang Information Technology Co., Ltd. (15218
BE BRAMTAB A B R/AB]) (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 000889) since December 2010 and ceased to
be a director from June 2016. Mr. Wang has also been appointed as a
director of Maoye Commercial on 28 November 2012 and ceased to be
a director from 25 September 2019, and he has been appointed as a
director of Commercial City on 14 March 2014.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Rao Yong (8%7k) (“Mr. Rao”), aged 62, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, the chairman of Audit Committee and
a member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. He
joined the Group in April 2020. Mr. Rao is a certified public accountant
in the PRC, obtained a diploma in accounting in 1980 from Guangxi
University of Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr. Rao was the former
chairman of the Shenzhen Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (%

YHEMEEENH Z L) and the vice chairman of the Guangdong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (ER &M stEitrgalg
). He currently serves as a member of the Sixth People’s Congress
of Shenzhen City* (RIITE/REA KRR and a member of the
project budget committee of People’s Congress Standing Committee
of Shenzhen City* CRIITT AR BEIFEEEZEZES). He is also an
independent non-executive director of Kaisa Group Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, stock code: 1638.HK), SMI Culture & Travel Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 2366.HK) and Shandong
Sinobioway Biomedicine Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002581.SZSE). From 1991 to 1997, he
served as a director of the Audit Bureau of Shenzhen City, and from
1984 to 1990, he served as a chief of the Audit Bureau of Wuzhou City,
Guangxi Province. Mr. Rao has over 29 years of accounting and auditing
experience.
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Mr. Pao Ping Wing G &%) (“Mr. Pao”), aged 73, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. He joined the Group in August 2007. Mr. Pao
obtained a Master of Science degree in Human Settlements Planning
and Development from the Asian Institute of Technology in Bangkok,
Thailand in 1980. In the past years, Mr. Pao has been appointed to
serve on various government policy committees and statutory bodies,
especially those involving town planning, urban renew, public housing,
culture and arts and environmental matters. He is an honorary fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing. He was elected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983. He was also
an ex— Urban Councilor of Hong Kong. Mr. Pao was appointed as a
Justice of the Peace in 1987 and was a special committee member of
the 9th and 10th session of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Guangzhou Committee. Currently, he is also an independent
non- executive director of a number of companies listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Gao Yajun (FZEE) (“Mr. Gao”), aged 45, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. He joined the Group in April 2020. Mr.
Gao is a senior accountant in Hong Kong, Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC and Australia, and member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association Limited. Mr. Gao
graduated from Deakin University in Australia and obtained a master’s
degree in professional accounting in 2002 and has been an executive
director and a partner of Baker Tilly Hong Kong since February 2010. He
is an independent non-executive director of Nanjing Panda Electronics
Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 553.HK, and Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 600775.SSE) on 29 June 2018. Mr. Gao has engaged in auditing
and consulting work for a long time and has extensive experience in
financial management.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. So Ka Man (A& &) (“Ms. So”), aged 47, was appointed as
the Secretary of the Company in November 2017. She is a director
of the Corporate Services Division of Tricor Services Limited, a global
professional services provider specializing in integrated business,
corporate and investor services. Ms. So is a Chartered Secretary and a
fellow of both the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Apart from the
Company, Ms. So, has been providing professional secretarial services to
a number of listed companies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises the vital importance of good corporate governance
1o its success and sustainability. The Company is committed to achieving
a high standard of corporate governance practices as an essential
component of high quality and has introduced corporate governance
practices appropriate to the operation and growth of its business.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). In the opinion of the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”), the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, save
and except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company as well as the
details of the deviation are summarised below.

The Board will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the operation and growth of its business and to review
such practices from time to time to ensure that the Company complies
with statutory and professional standards and aligns with the latest
developments.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. Its main roles are to provide leadership and to approve
strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing the interests of
shareholders. All directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management. Any director may request independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making reasonable request to the Board.
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The Board reserves its rights for making decision on all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the executive
directors and senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board and directing and co-
ordinating day-to-day operation and management of the Company.
The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed
by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The following chart illustrates the current structure and membership of
the Board and the Board Committees:
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The Board members have no relationship with each other. The
biographical details of the directors are disclosed under the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has at all times
met with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Moreover, through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on the Board committees, all independent non-executive
directors have made various contributions to the effective business
direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Mr. Huang Mao Ru is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. As Mr. Huang is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in the department store industry and commercial
real estate industry, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Huang taking up both roles for continuous effective
management and business development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive directors,
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are engaged on a service contract/letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles of
Association”), all directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company. Any new director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting and any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders at the following annual general
meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhong Pengyi, Mr.
Wang Bin and Mr. Pao Ping Wing shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming 2021 annual general
meeting of the Company. The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommend their re-appointments. The Company’s circular, sent together
with this annual report, contains detailed information of the above three
directors as required by the Listing Rules.

Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and of the business activities and development of the
Company and comply with the code of conduct of the Company at all
times.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that
he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is
normally supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/
or meetings with the senior management of the Company.
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Under code provision A.6.5, directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be issued
to directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all the directors were
provided reading materials or regulatory update on corporate governance
matters and responsibilities of the directors for their reference and
perusal.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct
governing directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all the existing
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period from 1
January 2020 to the date of this annual report.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings

in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website “www.maoye.cn”
and the Stock Exchange’s website. All Board committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, namely, Mr.
Rao Yong (Chairman), Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Mr. Gao Yajun, all of whom
are independent non-executive directors. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Rao Yong who possesses the appropriate professional
qualification, and accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and the objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process; (i) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv) review the
accuracy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system as well as internal
audit function.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee has held
4 meetings and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the scope of audit work and the auditors’ remuneration;

e Review and discussion of the annual financial results and report in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 and interim financial
results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and
discussion with the management of the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group;

e Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

e Review of the financial reporting and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group together with the effectiveness of
the internal audit function of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year to discuss with the Audit Committee
members issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee provided the Board with a briefing
on the significant issues after each Audit Committee meeting. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three members,
namely, Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman), Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Gao Yajun,
all of whom are independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
B.1.2(c) (ii) of the Code); and (i) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee
has held 1 meeting and performed the following major tasks:

e Considered and recommended the remuneration package of the
newly appointed directors, Ms. Lu Xiaojuan, Mr. Rao Yong and Mr.
Gao Yajun;

e Review and discussion of the remuneration policy of the Group; and

e Review and discussion of the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company.
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The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration for each director of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 were set out in note 8 of the
financial statement.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of three members, being
one executive director, namely, Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Pao
Ping Wing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent non-
executive directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i) review the
Board composition, develop and formulate relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors; (i) make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors; and
(iiiy assess the independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Company believes that greater diversity of directors is good for
corporate governance and is committed to attract and retain candidate(s)
for Board with a combination of competencies from the widest possible
pool of available talents; and to assess regularly the diversity profile
of the Board and, where applicable, senior management prepared for
Board positions under the succession planning of the Company and the
progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account of various aspects set out in the Board diversity
policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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The Director Nomination Policy adopted by the Company sets out the
factors for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to
the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
followings: character and integrity; qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age (18 years old or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of directors
at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
has held 1 meeting and performed the following major tasks:

e Considered and recommended the appointment of Ms. Lu Xiaojuan,
Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Gao Yajun as director of the Company;

e Review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company;

e Recommendation of the re-appointment of those directors standing
for re-election at the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company;
and

e Assessment of the independence of all the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the Code.

During the year under review, the Board has performed such corporate
governance functions as follows: (i) reviewed and developed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, (i) reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (iii) reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iv) reviewed and monitored the compliance of
the Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and (v) reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has held 6
meetings. The attendance records of each director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the table below:

EEREEERENT RN FRLE

HE2020F12831HILEEE BT ZHD
BIT6H TREVEZESHEEE20204F
12A31HIEEERITHNESET TR EFE
EggRAANTREAZTNCE

Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERY, GERY

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
(Note 6)

EEiE EXg ERZEYT HHEET REZ8% RREFAE
(Hz26)

Mr. Huang Mao Ru BRWEE 6/6 - - 1/1 1/1

Mr. Zhong Pengyi EEELE 6/6 - - - 0/1

Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (Note 1) B/EZ T (1) 3/3 - _ _ 1/1

Mr. Wang Bin FREE 6/6 - - - 1/1

Mr. Rao Yong (Note 2) AT (HE2) 3/3 2/2 - - 11

Mr. Pao Ping Wing RIRETE 6/6 4/4 1/1 17 11

Mr. Gao Yajun (Note 3) BRELE (53) 3/3 2/2 - - 1/1

Mr. Chow Chan Lum (Note 4) SEMELE (k) 2/2 2/2 11 1/1 -

Mr. Leung Hon Chuen (Note 5) ~ E2 44 (Hi55) 2/2 2/2 - - -

Notes: M3

(1) Ms. Lu Xiaojuan was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 29 April (1) 12020948298 > B/NMEZ L EZFAKAT
2020. After her appointment, there were 3 Board meetings and 1 annual general PITES -THEEE  8E2020812831H Lk
meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2020. FEARAHRBITTIRESTETERRIRTRE

BEKg-

(2) Mr. Rao Yong was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the  (2) 7202048290 » XKLL ER T AT AT
Company, the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration UIEHITES - BREZEEEE FTNEETM
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on 29 April 2020. After ERRHZEENE - THEZTE & E2020
his appointment, there were 3 Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 0 F1I2AHIEFERAABHBITTINEEER
Remuneration Committee meeting, 0 Nomination Committee meeting and 1 annual FEORBEZEZEE 0OXFNEZET - ONIRLE
general meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2020. BERITRRBEFEAE-

(3) Mr. Gao Yajun was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the  (3) 2020448290 > S B L ESFAERAT
Company, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration BUFHITEE BEREZEEHNERTINEES
Committee on 29 April 2020. After his appointment, there were 3 Board meetings, & - T HEDEE > #E2020F12831H IEF
2 Audit Committee meetings, O Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 annual ERABHBITTIRESFTETEH 2NELKEE
general meeting of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2020. B 0N MNEEE I RRRBFAT -

(4) Mr. Chow Chan Lum resigned as an independent non-executive director of the — (4)  F2020%4 8298 » BRIEM A EFHERATIHIL
Company, the chairman of the Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration FRTEE - BREZERERE FNEEGHE
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on 29 April 2020. Before RiRREZEERER - EHR TR ARF
his resignation, there were 2 Board meetings, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 BEOITORNEEEEH 2NBREEE 1RGN
Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting of the ZEBRIRIEREE®-

Company.
(5)  Mr. Leung Hon Chuen resigned as an independent non-executive director of the  (5)  F202054829H » R E R LEFEAR AT IEIL

Company and a member of the Audit Committee on 29 April 2020. Before his
resignation, there were 2 Board meetings and 2 Audit Committee meetings of the
Company.
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(6) Such annual general meeting was held at Shenzhen Conference Room, 36/F, Tower
A, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the PRC on Friday,
22 May 2020 at 10:00 a.m. Matters discussed in the meeting include the proposed
granting of general mandates to repurchase shares and to issue new shares,
proposed re-election of the retiring directors and declaration of final dividend, and
such matters were passed by way of poll at such meeting.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held 1 meeting
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The management has
provided such explanation and information to the Board as necessary
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020. The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has acknowledged that it shall be responsible for risk
management and internal control systems and review of their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. These systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board shall be fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives and to establish and maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each year
to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly complied
with the risk management and internal control policy.
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During the year, all departments conduct regular internal control
evaluation to identify risks with potential impact on the Group’s business
and other aspects including major operational and financial procedures,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The internal audit department is responsible for independent review of
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. During the year under review, the internal audit department
reviewed important issues such as the relevant strategic management,
major operational and financial reporting procedures, human
resources management, adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, regulatory compliance and information security, and
provided its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee for
improvement.

During the year under review, the Board, with the support of the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2020 by reviewing the report from the management
and the internal audit results, and confirmed the effectiveness and
adequacy of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy to provide the general
guideline on handling confidential information, monitoring of information
disclosure and response to queries to its directors, officers, senior
management and the relevant employees. The Company has executed
supervision programs to confirm the strict prohibition from unauthorized
access to and use of inside information.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit service for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is set out as follows:

B E2020F12H31HILEE » KA B FEZ
ARTS R JE R 1% AR 75 6] 2 A B IMNBE 1% B4 BT A9 BN
SAMUWT

Type of services RMB’000
BR#5 4R ARETT
Audit expenses of the Group KREBNEZER 4,300
Non-audit expenses of the Group KEBRWIEEZER

— Review on the interim financial report of the Group —AREBWTHA ER S ER 1,100

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”) as external
service provider. Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor has been appointed as the
company secretary of the Company. The primary contact of Ms. So Ka
Man at the Company is Ms. Lu Xiaojuan, the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. So Ka
Man has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to
update her skills and knowledge.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy (including
but not limited to the Group’s financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans), dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and investors to make
the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at “www.maoye.cn”, where extensive information and updates on the
Group’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.
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Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:

RERKEEFRB
EEEHWENK

MR ARAAEABFTH

Address: 38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of
China (For the attention of the director of the Investor Relations Department)

Hidik FREE AN R HEMEDRYI R R 5 FE400358 R &R/ OARE3SIE (N AR EERIAI485)

Email: ir848@maoye.cn

B F M ir848@maoye.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of the
Group’s developments.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. The Company’s shareholders may convene an extraordinary
general meeting or put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings as
follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in the PRC. The objects of
the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

(2) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, the
shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a written notice,
duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in
the PRC, or the office of the Company’s share registrar. The period
for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of such general meeting and end 7 days prior
to the date of such general meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes
to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of Association
for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.maoye.cn) immediately after the relevant general
meetings.
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NOTES ON THE REPORT

The ESG Report (the “Report”) covers Maoye International Holdings
Limited (“Maoye International” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”). The contents include the Group’s
Environmental, Social and Governance performance on its major points
of operation (i.e. Mainland China).

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. Certain contents can be traced back to previous years, as the case
may be.

PREPARATION PRINCIPLE

This report is prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in the Appendix 27
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. For information on the Group’s corporate governance,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report section in this year's
annual report.

DATA DESCRIPTION

All data in this report are based on Maoye International’s formal
documents and statistical reports. In this report, the currency amount is
accounted by RMB, unless otherwise specified.

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

This report covers the Group’s 48 department stores, supermarkets,
outlets and shopping centres (“‘Retail Department Stores”) in Mainland
China and the offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL OF THE REPORT
This report was approved by the Board on 24 March 2021.

CONTACT US

Investor Relations Department, Maoye International Holdings Limited

Address: Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province
Tel: (86) 755-25983885

Fax: (86) 755-25981379

Email: ir848@maoye.cn
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The sustainable development of enterprises cannot be realised
without the engagement and support of all stakeholders. The Group
communicated and exchanged views with stakeholders regarding
sustainable development and related issues through various channels,
and identified the issues that our stakeholders are most concerned
about: “products responsibility” and “community investment”; relatively
important issues: “use of resources”, “health and safety”, “employment”,
“development and training”; and the related issues: “emissions”,
“environment and natural resources”, “labour standard”, “management
of supply chain” and “anti-corruption”. The Group constantly makes
improvement on such issues in the normal course of business so
as to address the concerns of our stakeholders, enhance trust and
cooperation, and jointly promote the sustainable development of the
Group and society.
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Stakeholders
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEMTG

The Company has listed out 11 areas and evaluated the importance of ~ Z~A T 55| 7] Y1 11E B & > H RSN R F]
various key areas to our internal and external stakeholders and identified HEB A B EEBABRZENEELHETT
major concerns of our stakeholders. ST > SR A S ARRE 5 = ERFRVE M ©

High &

Product responsibility
EREE

Community investment
Employment p
Py HERE

Environment and natural resources

R RXARR

Health and safety

feER%S Use of resources

Labour standard HRER
e Development and training
BREE

Emission

b3 )

The importance to our stakeholders
FERBINEN S o SR i 2

Management of supply chain

{HrEsEEE
Anti-corruption
RES
Low fE The importance to our sustainable development High %
HEEEAFEERNEEY
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE BA%RE

The Board is the highest governing body of the Company and holds the EEZAAATZESEEEE  WHAR
ultimate responsibility on the overall strategic development and corporate T EEREERB AR CHXEARKERRKRSEE-
governance of the Company. To ensure high governance standards in AR RIEEHEELAETERETSEAIEE
ESG matters, the Company has a stable ESG governance structure with ZRAS B HIRIEH & AR BB R SM
clearly defined responsibilities in place. ATEHENERZEE-
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The formulation of ESG strategy and the day-to-day management and
reporting on ESG matters resides with the ESG Group, which is headed
by the Executive Director and comprises members from all major
departments. The responsibilities of the ESG Group include formulating
ESG strategies, sustainability reporting, stakeholder engagement,
materiality assessment, monitoring the performance of ESG initiatives and
promotion of ESG issues both internally and externally.

Through the Executive Director, the ESG Group has been providing
updates to the Board on the latest ESG performance of the Company
on an annual basis. The ESG Group has continuously worked upon
enhancing its reporting mechanism that will enable the Directors to
effectively oversee the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems.

To ensure effective implementation of ESG strategies and identify any
potential ESG-related risks and opportunities, the ESG Group conducts
regular meetings to discuss a range of pre-defined ESG initiatives and
to follow up upon the works of business units which are charged with
carrying out measures and setting appropriate policies to align with our
overall ESG strategy. The ESG Group is also assisted by the internal
audit team in identifying and evaluating the potential ESG related-risks
(including climate change related risks), so as to devise appropriate
strategies for risk mitigation.

The ESG Group continues to keep abreast of the latest developments
on sustainability issues and remains committed towards promoting the
integration of sustainable and socially responsible best practices into
our daily operations and decision making processes across all levels of
the Group. With the collaborative efforts of all business units, we are
dedicated towards improving our ESG performance and fulfilling the
expectations of our stakeholders.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1 EmissionNo®'

A. 1815
A1 HERHE
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The Group complies with the relevant requirements of
environmental protection laws and common principles of
corporate management. It correctly handles the relationship
between business and environment in accordance with
characteristics of corporate environmental management, so
that the economy and environmental protection are mutually
reinforcing.

Our environmental policy advocates the prevention of
environmental pollution, with integration of governance for
comprehensive management to achieve maximum economic
benefits under minimum impact on the environment. Meanwhile,
we also attach importance to education and technical trainings
to raise awareness of all employees about the environmental
protection. In view of this, we have established a sound
environmental responsibility system for the garbage from
construction or renovation of the stores and kitchen waste
from restaurants, under which special personnel supervise the
classification and disposal of garbage.

The Group continues to monitor the operation of environmental
protection facilities and regularly checks the implementation of
environmental protection facilities.

All subsidiaries and retail department stores of the Group
are required to strictly abide by the internal environmental
management system to ensure the compliance with laws
and regulations. During the reporting period, no violations of
environment laws and regulations were found.

Note 1:  Since the main business of the Group is operation of retail
department stores, there was no significant emissions and
hazardous waste generated during the reporting period, hence
the relevant disclosure requirements in the ESG Guidelines (Key
Performance Indicators A1.1, A1.3 and A1.5) are not applicable to
the Group.
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Disposal of harmless waste HEEEYELE
During the reporting period, the direct production of harmless AEENRRESHEEEREEZESL
waste in the course of business of the Group was mainly papers, NEEEEYTEABR - E2 N
ink cartridges, cartridges, plastic bottles and paper cups. During FERKEARF RIS E
the reporting period, the generated equivalents are as follows. EEWTRAMe

2020 2019
ltem HE 20204 20194F
Paper (tonnes) AR (MR) 13.74 16.08
Ink cartridge (tonnes) =5 (M) 0.09 0.36
Toner Cartridge (tonnes) e (M) 1.24 1.73
Plastic bottle (tonnes) ZBRB KR, () 0.15 0.70
Paper cup (tonnes) AT () 0.50 1.06
The Group classified and collected different types of waste and AEBGSBNETRERENESE
carried out fixed storage and centralised processing. Recyclable M ETERM TR R EFRIE K
harmless waste was recycled as far as possible, while the MEAISERIW A BIRE BN EESE
non-recyclable waste was handled by professional qualified ZY) B EARWH BN BME
service providers in accordance with the relevant environmental REREFRBEBAREXHAETEEEEN
protection regulations. IRBEEPIEE -
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Carbon emission

Our carbon emissions are mainly due to the consumption of
electricity. During the reporting period, the relevant carbon
dioxideN°®® 2 emissions from the energy generated from our
business is as follows.

Item IEH

Carbon dioxide emission (tonnes) —&bhiEEmE (W8

Carbon dioxide emission per square & /5 KEREE
metre of gross floor areacte? ZabiREEmEnEs
(tonnes/square metre) (Mg, 75 3K)
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57974

BN EZIRE T B H
o MG HIR  HPINEBEERR
EEMAERAER — SEmR e E
YR RFAR

2020 2019
20204 20194

289,774.11 349,774.38

0.10 0.12

We have implemented various energy-saving measures to
reduce the corresponding carbon emissions. For details, please
refer to the section of “Use of resources” below.

Use of resources

The Group is committed to becoming an environmentally friendly
enterprise by saving electricity and encouraging the collection
and recycling of office supplies and other resources to save
natural resources. Our stores also integrate environmental
protection publicity with marketing activities to advocate green
lifestyle, so as to strive to become a model store for recycling
economy.

We adhere to the preparation of analysis report on statistics of
water and electricity consumption, and continue to update the
standing book for equipment to enhance the management level.
During the reporting period, the energy saving indicators was
even included as the performance indicators of the employees
to reward outstanding model of energy efficiency, as well as
penalizing irregularities.

Note 2:  The calculation of carbon emissions is based on the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol published by the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and the World Resources
Institute (WRI), Reporting Guide for Environmental Key Performance
Indicators issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China issued
by the National Development and Reform Commission for the
climate changes.

Note 3:  The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 2.958 million square metres in 2020.

The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 3.015 million square metres in 2019.
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Use of energy

Our energy consumption during the reporting period which
is mainly due to the electricity consumption of the 48 retall
department stores (excluding the electricity consumption that are
not directly controlled by the Group) is as follows.

Item IEH

Electricity consumption (kWh) FEEE (TRF)
Electricity consumption per square BFAKEEEE
metre of gross floor areaete 4 FEEE M=

(kWh/square metre) (FEREFHK

BEJRIESH
FEERKRSHBABERBEEE
BR4sE B ETEMSIHEHE

(FEEEEELZEREENTE
HFE) MRRFAR ©

2020 2019
20204F 20194

405,119,026.94 490,078,888.10

136.95 162.55

The electricity consumption decreased by 17.34% as compared
with 2019, which was due to the decrease in store operating
area and the COVID-19 epidemic in 2020 which led to the
decrease in consumption.

In order to strengthen the monitoring of the energy consumption
of the Group, a number of energy saving measures were
implemented during the reporting period in addition to the
preparation of statistical analysis reports, namely:

e Enhancement of annual and monthly budget management
to continuously promote water and electricity saving;

e Strict implementation of the operating time for various
types of electrical equipment, with timely adjustment of air
conditioning temperature;

e Enhancement of inspection and examination, with timely
troubleshooting and repairs for failure in energy consumption
and prevention of waste of water and electricity;

e Continuous innovation for upgrade of energy-saving
equipment and techniques, such as energy-saving
lightings, zone management on lighting, elevator frequency
conversion, energy-saving water valves and use of energy-
saving environmental protection materials; and

e Capital investment for optimisation of environment of
stores to establish a model enterprise for clean energy and
environmental protection.

Note 4:  The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption
intensity is 2.958 million square metres in 2020.

The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption
intensity is 3.015 million square metres in 2019.

56 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 75 % Bl B2 22 B3 75 IR A )

£ BB B2010G 8L 717.34% -
A 2 PIE 5 B AL Re20204
3T 1 AR P R R A
b o

mNRERAEBEOEREEE
PR THRIEHLS D ®REK 72
PR S EE BT A THAE B -

s BRLFENBEEEEE FE
KB EIREMEAE

s BRIWTRERERHFERE M
PR > BRI A ACOR

o IRBKIBKE > REFHFEREE
BEFEM R I ABKERE ;

o MBEFAIMRFEEMAENE &
PR R - AIENAENE B OUE ~ R B
NeEE - ERERER Mk
KEMEIBERFEMEMERE

s RANBER  BEPIEKEIR
15 TSR RAR  IRRRE D
e

Mizk4 : 2020 st HIEBEREMARRE
HETEA295.88 T 5K

2019F St EFEB BT EFTAME
HEBA301.5EF Ko

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FE#R &



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIB-HERELRRS

Water consumption FEKE

The total water consumption of 48 retail department stores of AEBNRRESHBERNZ4ISHEES

the Group during the reporting period is as follows. EFEMNAREKEWN TR
2020 2019

Item 20205 20194F

Water consumption (cubic metres)

FEkE QLAAK) 3,043,327.02 4,323,688.07

Water consumption per square metre & /5 K EHEA

of gross floor areahote® FEKEWH 1.03 1.43
The water consumption decreased by 29.61% as compared HKEB2019FHER LT
with 2019, which was due to the strengthened awareness of 29.61% FREEMEEERHE—
cost control in the stores and the COVID-19 epidemic in 2020 & 58 2020 F & (B HA B P9 s
which led to the decrease in water consumption. BRFEKEEFER D -

Some of the water saving measures implemented by the Group AEERBRSHBETHNETEHK

during the reporting period are as follows: WBHEUT

e Regularly carry out water conservation education on various e THHEEBERIPIEITEKE
departments of the Group to raise awareness of staff on BriemBIHKEH  WmIEH
water conservation and conduct supervision; BEE;

e Send special personnel to check whether the water taps are e KEAKETRKHEBEEEREA
closed or pipelines are in a leakage condition; REBREEFERKNER;

e Promote water saving awareness by posting reminders of o HEAHEFREIRILENA A KN

water conservation in public toilets;

"B IREAREKERH ;

e Install sensor valves in public toilets to control the amount of o MEAHEEFRIRBIERIIEG MR

water used; and

FERIZRIZHIAKE ; &

e Reduce water consumption through regular water e BETHKAKEEEREERE

management and strict control of waste.

717 BRRFEKE-

Note 5:  The total gross floor area for calculating water consumption intensity MizE5 : 2020 st HIEKEREMARE
is 2.958 million square metres in 2020. HETEA295.8BF /5K
The total gross floor area for calculating water consumption intensity 2019 st HAEKEX EFTAMRE

is 3.015 million square metres in 2019.
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A3 Environmental and natural resources A3 IRIEBRRAER

The Group supports environmental protection and constantly
assess the effectiveness of the measures taken to minimise the
impact of our business operation to the surrounding environment
so that appropriate improvement actions could be taken
promptly. These measures include the use of energy-efficient
lightings, paper usage reduction, turning off idle lightings,
computers and electrical appliances and other facilities and
equipment to save energy. We are also committed to promoting
the use of recycle paper and shopping bags made of recycle
paper in our department stores.

Appropriate actions are taken to manage and minimise the
impacts of our operations to the environment and natural
resources. We actively promote environmental protection and
emphasise green operation and green office. Policies and
measures are implemented to enhance energy conservation
and emission reduction management. Relevant policies and
measures taken during the reporting period are as follows:

e Enhance the DingTalk electronic office system, optimise
office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office paper and promote the Group’s paperless
office operation;

e Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and
recycling toner cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files;
relevant forms will be printed according to actual demand to
facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our stores.
At the same time, printing facilities are being adjusted to
reduce the consumption of consumables. Centralised
collection and disposal of used consumables is adopted
to minimise environmental pollution resulting from improper
waste disposal;

e To advocate environmentally responsible shopping, the
Group uses recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. We provide customers with recycled paper
bags made of recycled paper to enhance its recycliability.
We take appropriate measures to comply with “General
Technical Requirements of the environmental protection,
safety and labelling for plastic shopping bags” and “Notice
on restrictions of manufacturing and the sale of plastic
bags” issued by the government. Reduction on plastic bag
consumption was achieved through charging customers for
plastic bags, and provide plastic bags when necessary to
lower waste production; and
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e Encouraging the use of environmental friendly materials . EIEEMIL%EEP’E&F%M@%EE
and energy efficient equipment in our construction projects; R B EMEEREE - EHA
incorporating environmental friendly concept and design into EREHEER Jrﬁﬁ ) NEEE
our office and stores, including maximising the use of natural HARMNIRRE ST RAR
light and share lightings in common areas, and utilising and EFRA=EIBRANLRERERR
refurbishing existing furniture and resources where possible & /& BRE » SR B A BE (R

during renovations.

EFEE’J@@i%HLﬁE&%
B LEESRFEHS

A4 Climate change Ad RIREHE
With the growing effects from global warming, saving energy and ER2RERLFEHEFEAE  @0IHN
minimising greenhouse gas emission become our first priority. BERMR /B EREBHERARA T
FNEEEFHE -

Our administration and engineering departments constantly HPINITEB R TR RFL4EEX1E
maintain all the policies to optimise energy consumption. R EBEERFER - ELEHE
These policies include daily maintenance and replacement of %EI BHEECRERESTHE RIE
energy-inefficient equipment, switching-on of outdoor lightings EMAERFERBEININRB -RR
according to local sunset time and using fresh air to replace hot B EUR By i AN EE % B 5 2 UL
air instead of air-conditioning in mild temperature. Other policies TR -HMN OIS EEHAN
adopted in our shops and offices are as follows: B0 FERPAS -

Energy saving and emission reducing policies &t 5 HE L i

Retail department store
BEZEME

Office
MBS

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Control the illumination hours of stores and maintain sufficient lightings

to provide quality shopping experience

EH 2 SRR ANRELERE  LIRHEBERYRR

Enhance the maintenance of air-conditioning system to lower energy

consumption

MR ZE AR AR MEELUR L BERIBFE

Clean the ventilation system to enhance the cooling efficiency of air-
conditioning

BRBRRFLUES TRMNRSUE

Adjust the operatmg hours of escalators to avoid wastage

AEREPERNETHRRE LBV ERNRE

Remind employees to switch off non-essential lights and electrical
appliances

RESTIREIAMENERKRE

Remind employees to switch off lights and computers during lunch
hours

1REE 8 T 5 BB I R i G B AN BB Al
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B. SOCIAL B. #%
B1 Employment B1 {E{#

The Group regards employees as the most important assets
and is committed to providing employees with a fair and
sound working environment having open space for personal
development to ensure that Maoye International keeps company
with its employees for advancement.

The Group has established the corporate values, which
employees are guided to recognise, so that attitudes and
behaviors of every employee will conform to and reflect the
corporate culture. We have established a sound compensation
system to provide all employees with remuneration level and
welfare policies that are competitive in the market, so as to
ensure that employees enjoy fair remuneration and benefits.

For the recruitment and promotion, fair opportunity is provided
for each employee under a just and non-discriminatory principle
to ensure that employees are not affected by gender, race and
other factors in hiring and promotion. At the same time, while
ensuring the contribution of employees to the Company, the
personal ability and value are also promoted to have a rapid
improvement and development.

We also strictly adhere to national and local laws and regulations
in terms of working hours and holiday arrangements. Apart
from paid annual leave, the Group also provides different types
of leaves to employees, such as sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and paternity leave so that employees can enjoy
their due leaves to maintain physical and mental health after
industrious works.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiations to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We also work with labour unions
to organise a wide range of leisure and cultural activities to
express our care to our employees and promote healthy lifestyle
and strengthen their sense of belonging and cohesiveness to the
Group.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the labour
related laws and regulations.

60 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /i #BEFR1ZER B R A E)

FEBRRETIAREZENEE R
DRABBTITREATREFNIFR
BB AEAERER REX
XEREETHREER

AEBMBIULSIEE TRREERN
BESR EEUEINEERTA
HAEMESMBIREEXE - LMK
VTRENFMEIE BPAEET
RHEB B HRF IR KT 4G
FEER REBE I ZRE AT
M BF &

ERBMEAIREG RFARHAT
NSRS UET  RFALE B
RARSE » (REB LA EGR /MR
BESHZ #RANEATER
NEE - -FARFRESETIESERFR
HEEHE R - B AENHMEETF
FESHIREIPRRAVIR A R

FPIE TER BRI = BE 75 | 7R
BRARE T B XM 75 B ER AR
BREFFERN EETHE TRH
TREEN R S2ERR BR
ERAEERRE EETEFHT
ERER SR EANRE UES
TS OMRFr R ERAVARAS o

o AEEDBEBHARMEES
BAMREBREEMEZS AR
THEBRTEHROEEEBZ T
XIS HEAMEKRREAEES
ZH 0 R 1R ES/E BN
BEBORR ]

REBRKSHBILEEIFER A
BIEAMZEZRRROZEZ-

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FE#R &



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHERELARS

R2020F12H31H  "R&ERH
B5,589%EE  BR2019F /D
12.32%  RE 8|5 1B R TR ©

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 5,589 employees,
representing a decrease of 12.32% as compared with that of
2019. The employee distribution is as follows.

Employee Demographics =F-pn
2020 2019
20204 20195
Number of Number of
employees Percentage™t® employees  Percentage*®

Indicator EE A¥ i ppes A# flEppse
Total number of employees BERAY 5,589 100% 6,374 100%
By gender BIuRE D

Female '8 3,198 57.22% 3,801 59.63%

Male 2 2,391 42.78% 2,573 40.37%
By age group BERHERE D

Under 30 305 U T 839 15.01% 1,039 16.30%

3010 50 305 E505% 4,583 82.00% 5,055 79.31%

Over 50 iS50 167 2.99% 280 4.39%
By employment type BERELE D

Full-time e 5,589 100% 6,374 100%

Part-time £ 0 - 0 .
By location BiEE o

Mainland China HE it 5,583 99.89% 6,367 99.89%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 5 0.09% 6 0.09%

Others Hith 1 0.02% 1 0.02%
By rank ZESHARE D

Senior = 379 6.78% 391 6.13%

Middle iR 482 8.62% 657 10.31%

General — 4,728 84.60% 5,326 83.56%
Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total Mize . (GLERIEEMASBIERHEEESR

number of employees. AEZ BRI
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New hires FEES
2020 2019
20205 201945
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°'e® employees  Percentagee®

Indicator BiE A¥ i EE s A¥ fh e
Number of new hires HEEEAY 1,061 18.98% 1,540 24.16%
By gender BRE D

Female Bog 564 10.09% 856 13.43%

Male B 497 8.89% 684 10.73%
By age group BERARE D

Under 30 30mU T 595 10.64% 844 13.24%

3010 50 307% £505% 455 8.14% 675 10.59%

Over 50 HBIB50R% 1 0.20% 21 0.33%
By location BHEE D

Mainland China Ryt 1,057 18.91% 1,538 24.13%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 4 0.07% 2 0.03%

Others Hif 0 0 0 0
By rank HESHMRE D

Senior =R 27 0.48% 42 0.66%

Middle R 273 4.88% 222 3.48%

General — K 761 13.62% 1,276 20.02%
Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total Mizk6e . {HLERIERRASIBIERHERER

number of employees. AN BRI o
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Employee turnover 1ES %
2020 2019
20204 20194
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°'e® employees  Percentagee®

Indicator BE AZ fliLEHes A# fly EpH=s
Number of employee turnover EBERKAH 1,846 33.03% 2,506 39.32%
By gender BERE D

Female g8 1,167 20.88% 1,521 23.86%

Male L= 679 12.15% 985 15.46%
By age group BERERE D

Under 30 30mU T 795 14.22% 1,399 21.95%

30 to 50 3058 £505% 927 16.59% 955 14.98%

Over 50 HBiB505% 124 2.22% 152 2.39%
By location EHEE D

Mainland China FRE Py 1,841 32.94% 2,505 39.30%

Hong Kong, China HEEHE 5 0.09% 1 0.02%

Others Hth 0 0 0 0
By rank RREEBMRE D

Senior B4 39 0.70% 51 0.80%

Middle R 448 8.01% 377 5.91%

General —f% 1,359 24.32% 2,078 32.61%
Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total M6 : (HLERIEARSBIEZEHESE

number of employees. AEZ BRI
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B2 Health and safety B2 f#@EH%E

The Group provides employees with an ideal and safe working
environment. In addition to taking all appropriate measures to
protect the health and safety of employees, the Group also
pays attention to the balance of work and healthy living among
employees. Corresponding system and measures for leaves
and medical needs of employees in special stages (such as
pregnancy, illness, work injury etc.) have been developed to
ensure that there is a reasonable guarantee for rights and
interests of the employees.

To enhance employees’ safety knowledge and skills to prevent

accidents, the Group adopts the following policies:

e Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a
clean environment both in office and on sales floors, and
providing sufficient working space in the offices;

e Smoking is prohibited in office and store areas; and

e Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.
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RIB-HERELRRS

At the same time, employee is expected to share the
responsibility in the making and monitoring of procedures and
arrangements in respect of safety and health. All employees will:

e identify, report and rectify hazards at work in relation to
health and safety and report such hazards immediately to
superiors or the security department;

e participate in the investigation of any accidents or hazards to
prevent any re-occurrence; and

e co-operate with management in adopting safe working
methods and procedures.

During the reporting period, there was no prosecution against
the Group in relation to occupational health and safety matters.
From 2018 to 2020 there was no fatal occupational accident.

EF AEBtTEREEFSEHE
HIThREEEMEREZR2HERZ
BB BERSEE:

o B BmERMIEFETIFHTA
RERZZ2AMNES —BA
BRBFEENRR BAIEEN L
B ZREBFT

s ZEFHEHRVRBNAETIN
BREMNVFEEHER , &

o HRBHPHNONERIFIR
B2 207 ERRIZR B °

RIREEAM > ARE B E LB R
BREZE2EFERE2018F2020
FERRBEEEMRIIETER

2020 2019
20204 20194

Indicator 5E
Total number of reportable BFHREN TEERE

occupational injurigsNot 17 28
Percentage of occupational injuryNee8 T {5 L= M=s 0.30 0.44
Number of working days lost ATHEELTIERH

due to occupational injury 1,663 1,388
Percentage of working days lost AT LT ER LKMo

due to occupational injuryNoe® 29.75 21.78
Absent days TRENH 2 31,023 49,070
Absent ratehote 10 FhBp Eb Z M0 2.22% 3.08%

Note 7:  Reportable occupational injuries refer to work-related accidents to
employees resulting in incapacity for a period exceeding 3 days;

Note 8 Occupational injury rate is calculated based on the number of
occupational injury per 200,000 working hours (i.e. per 100
employees to work 40 hours per week for 50 weeks per year);

Note 9:  Working days lost rate is calculated based on the working days lost
per 200,000 working hours;

Note 10: Absentee rate refers to the percentage of working days lost from
occupational injury and other sicknesses over the total number of

MizE7: BFRENITEIEEERIIFAE
RARSNME R EE TFEBE3K ;

MizEs .  T2LbEZ % E200,000L fE/\BF
(EME100BRE S S50 58
T VE40(B/\B) N TSt E S

Misro : 8% T1FHEEER4%4200,000T1F
NEFREATEAHEE

MiEE10 1 BREPEERIERA THEREMKRRL
BREBRARGEERESRETFR

pre-determined working days. REMEDLE
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B3 %R iE:

B3 Development and training

The Group focuses on the growth of employees and establishes
a scientific and effective training system to formulate and
implement training programs according to job nature and needs
of employees to promote their improvement and growth. The
training contents are divided into induction training, business
training, quality training and personnel training program of
“Maoye University”.

Induction training

In order to help new employees to integrate into the Company
as soon as possible and quickly adapt to job requirements,
regular new staff trainings are organised. Through these
trainings, employees can understand the development,
corporate culture and the rules and regulations of the Group.

Business training

In-service employees regularly receive different types of trainings
in accordance with the needs of their works. For example, retail
stores regularly held services etiquette trainings, while financial
department held skills training for financial employees.

Quality training

Through arrangements such as “reading club” and online
learning platform, the Group provides employees with personal
quality training programs to enable them to obtain personal
growth and advancement.

Personnel training program of “Maoye University”

With deep integration of the Internet economy and traditional
industries, the transformation of department stores is imperative.
In order to meet the needs of talent in the “new retail” era,
the Group provides employees with more systematic and rich
personnel training programs. By formulating comprehensive
training plans, employees can grow rapidly to realise personal
value in the Company and make contribution to the growth and
development of the Company.
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During the reporting period, the demographics of the Group’s RBEHA AEEZTEIES
trained employees are as follows. 1ERUW TR
2020 2019
20205 201945
Number of Number of
employees Percentage™t® employees  Percentage®®
Indicator 5E A¥ flg LS A¥ {6
Number of trained employees BXENREAY 4,412 78.94% 4,842 75.96%
By gender kIR
Female b8 2,532 45.30% 2,748 43.11%
Male 3 1,880 33.64% 2,094 32.85%
By employment rank BEERENED
Senior B4k 94 1.68% 129 2.02%
Middle R 986 17.64% 9 14.76%
General —f& 3,332 59.62% 3,772 59.18%
During the reporting period, the Group’s employees were trained RERSHR > AEES T4
for a total of 35,873 hours. Each employee was trained for 8.13 435,873 N\F > R BT AHEE
hours. FF80#38.13/ \Fr o
In 2019, the total training hours were 28,870 hours. Each 2019F 1 FI 4R BF 81 428,870/ By »
employee was trained for 5.96 hours. FH BT AR #5596/ K o
The distribution of average training hours among our employees AEEREESFHEEIINHEDBER
are as follows. W R
2020 2019
(Average (Average
training hours) training hours)
20205 20194
Indicator 1eiE (ETFI9EFED (B FI RS
By gender gkl Fay
Female E°8 7.8 6.1
Male 5 8.6 5.8
By employment rank EEENE D
Senior ISE 6.9 6.7
Middle 4k 9.4 5.2
General —f% 7.5 6.1
Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total Mizke . (GLERIERRASBIERHEEESR
number of employees. AE 2 BRI
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B4 Labour standards B4 & T #H|

All of our departments and stores comply with local laws and
regulations and strictly prohibit the use of child labour and
forced labour. Maoye International pays special attention to the
verification of identity information of employees. Comprehensive
recruitment review procedures will be conducted by the human
resources department to ensure that the information provided by
the candidates is accurate. In addition, the Group will regularly
examine whether there is existence of children labour or forced
labour in the operation of the business.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to children or forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

e Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/
or employ any person who age below 16. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the
age during recruitment to ensure that no minors under the
age of 16 are employed; and

e Al employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not
allow forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure
employee to work.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group has been considering environmental issues from
various perspectives when negotiating the store leasing with
the suppliers. The Group will directly examine the qualifications
of the customers for new storage goods and supply of new
products, including environmental protection indicators, and
the quality of portfolio of regional and store suppliers to provide
consumers with a variety of choices. The Group will directly
interface with large suppliers to introduce attractive products that
comply with environment regulations to promote the strategic
cooperation between the two parties. In addition, environmental
information is also shared with retail tenants and other visitors
from time to time to promote sustainable green business model.
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At the same time, all suppliers operating in our stores are
required to establish labour relations with employees in
accordance with local laws and regulations and provide
remuneration and benefits (such as social security, provident
fund etc.) that meet legal requirements. The aforesaid
requirements are clearly included in the “counter contract” and
cooperation agreement of the two parties. For the employees
of suppliers, we also require suppliers and their staff to provide
written supporting documents and records to ensure that
interests of the employees of the suppliers are guaranteed.

During the reporting period, the demographics of number of
suppliers by location are as follows.
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B AEBERAAEFIE
EENHER LRARRBREMER
ERNEREBSTREISEHGE
IR AT &R R B KAV F BN A 42
(R 2BEF) U LERH
BRI AE L (FEB/ENINEE
sk o 1T B B TS > FAFI75
ERMEEAEETRHMEDNS
BA S A SO &% > (B HE (R FE P B9
BTM@SERE-

RSN ZMEE DIHER
BB R TR

2020 2019
20204 20194

Indicator Eiq

Number of major suppliershce 't FEHEREFE 18 26

By location & B o
Mainland China FR B Py 3 18 26
Hong Kong, China RS A 0 0
Others Hih 0 0

B6 Product responsibility B6 EmET
Policy on product and service responsibility EmRREETHE

The Group is responsible for the products and services and pays
attention to marketing ethics to ensure no engagement in any
form of unfair business practices. The procurement and service
processes of the Group ensure the transparency and security of
the information on products and services. The policy on rights
and interests of customers of the Group is not only formulated
and publicised, but also be implemented in the operating
activities to prevent products or services from harming interests,
health and safety of the consumers. The Group complies
with the relevant product and service regulations and national
standards, without any cheating, misleading, deception or any
other acts that undermine the trust from customers and damage
to their rights and interests.

Note 11: Major suppliers refer to suppliers providing products and/or services
to the Group with total contract value of over RMB10 million.
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Customer service policy

Our business model is based on the needs of customers, with
an ultimate goal of providing customers with the best quality
services. We not only provide customers with the best quality
products to meet their needs, but also implement relevant
examination measures to fulfill the commitment. In case a
complaint about the service is lodged, the Group will conduct
an independent investigation in accordance with its internal
guidelines. The Group also collects the satisfaction questionnaire
from customers regularly to gather valuable opinions from
customers.

In addition, we are committed to establishing a deep partnership
with the tenants, shoppers and visitors by understanding
their needs and working closely with them. In summary, we
are committed to providing customers with a unique and
enjoyable experience. As such, we must fulfill our commitment
to excellence in quality of services and sustainable value-added
assets, creating a good place full of life enjoyment, working joys
and shopping leisure.

Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group understands that brand equity is crucial to our
success. We allocate resources to maintain and protect the
intellectual property rights of our brands.

e We value intellectual property and recognise intellectual
property is an indispensable element of successful business;

e We manage and protect our intellectual property through
registration and maintenance and enforcement of our
intellectual property; and

e We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not
infringe their intellectual property rights.

During the reporting period, our customer services include
supports extended to customers before, during and after the
sales. All complaints were handled by professional personnel
of our customer service department. Details of the complaints,
monitoring and status, handling time and settlement were
properly recorded. In 2020, customer complaints received by the
Group were consistent with those of the industry.
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Data privacy policy

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the law and
attaches great importance to the privacy of personal data to
resolutely maintain and protect personal information. Only
personal information needed for the business are collected
and used subject to purposes mentioned in the course of
collection unless with agreement from customers. We will not
transfer or disclose any personal data to any entities other than
the members of the Group without consent, unless otherwise
required by the laws or notification is given to customers in
advance. In addition, we maintain appropriate safety systems
and measures to prevent unauthorised access to personal data.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to the quality of products and services.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group has been committed to upholding the principle
of integrity and all employees are required to strictly abide
by personal and professional conducts. The internal control
and human resources centre of the Group have standardized
channels to accept internal and external reports on corruption,
bribery and other violations of professional conducts, together
with investigation and disposal of reports having evidence.
During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to corruption.

B8 Community investment

We adhere to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participate in community and social services to
promote corporate social responsibilities and make contributions
to the society. In this regard, we actively invest to support the
community, especially to those less privileged group as well
as the young generation in terms of education, growth and
development. Through connecting and interacting with the
community, the Group aims to:

e care for the underprivileged group and bring them hopes
and supports;

e encourage employees to be compassionate and caring;

e strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the
society; and

e provide education to help them achieve a better future.

B7
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Section
Reference
A. Environmental (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
IRIE (E58)
A1.  Emissions
B
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  Page 53-33
— R R and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERMRERBIR Mk RTINS - BERBEEEY) 53E558
NEEZH (@BER ; RO)ETHETABEAXENEMEER
REIBER o
KPI A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Considered
RARE ISR immaterial
B 148 R AR RAHE I B WA/ TEKR
A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity. Page 55
RERBABINEREE - 558
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. Considered
immaterial
FMESBEEEMBEEREE - WARATER
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. Page 54
FIESBREEEMBEEREE 548
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results  Considered
achieved. immaterial
OB RBER BRI R PT1SRR © WARATER
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Page 54-55
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HIMEIERERBEEEYN A Z - RBELENEME 54E558
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RIB-HERELRRS

Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
G (BH)
A2.  Use of Resources
BIRERA
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and ~ Page 55-57
— I EE other raw materials.
BMERER (B1EER K EMRE ) AUEER o 55%57H
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and Page 56
R SR AE IE IR intensity.
RENESNERRSEEEREEERTE 568
A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity. Page 57
BIEKEREE- 578
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results  Page 56
achieved.
M AE R E AN st E R PTSRAR - 568
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water  Page 57
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
S REGE A ACOR Al B AR EE URREFA B KM@ 578
B PRISRR ©
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products. Considered
immaterial
R P A EEM RIS WRABTEKR
A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
IRIERRAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the Page 58-59
— IR environment and natural resources.
BEBTAHRERRABEREHERTENBR 58ZE5908
KPI A3.1  Description of the significant impacts of activities on the  Page 58-59
RARE IR environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HMEFE BB IRBERRXABERNEATERERIEIE 58F508
BRZEMNTH -
A4.  Climate Change
RUIEER
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related  Page 59
—RRIFE issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
B REHODERAAGHRETAEELENEARBREMAER 598
BB o
KPI A4.1  Description of the significant climate-related issues which ~ Page 59
R R G WIEIR have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
HItERRAIEEHFTAEETRENEARERERASE 598
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RIE-HHEREARS

Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIREHZE
- (BH)
B1.  Employment
fEfE
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  Page 60-63
—RRINE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
BRFMNREE - BEASH THEKE -RA - TEHE 2T 60E63E
b~ RIERMUREMFEB RGN (@)% ; kb)EFHETAR
BEAXENEREERRANER
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and  Page 61
R SR AEWIEIR geographical region.
R BEEE S FR AR R MER RS L - 618
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Page 63
geographical region.
et h) s FlEp Rt & B o BEEMALL R 638
B2.  Health and Safety
REHETS
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  Page 64-65
—RRINEE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
ERRMHZ2THRERREEEHEHBELCEN (@QBK; & 64E66H
OETFHETABEATZENBRNZERAGNER -
KPI B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Page 65
RARE ISR A TIERAMERMIE TR AR L= - 658
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Page 65
HAITBEEEATIEE#- 658
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures  Page 64-65
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B PTIRA B ZE R R L 2 U REANITREEER  64E658
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RIB-HERELRRS

Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
G (BH)
B3.  Development and Training
R RIE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Page 66-67
—RRIFE discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BRIHEAEEBIT LEBEN B R AEREER - g &8 66E67H
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and Page 67
RAREWIER employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
EMRREESEN MNEhEEE - FREERE) B0 678
dMfEEBE Db
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by Page 67
gender and employee category.
BRI KREELERE D BLEETMZINN TR - 678
B4.  Labour Standards
55 T#ER
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  Page 68
— G EE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
BRAP LB TR GI5 TH (@BER ; RO)ETHETABEARY 688
BERERERRAINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to ~ Page 68
RARAB ISR avoid child and forced labour.
AR TR R B A S M LGB R E T a5 T o 688
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  Page 68
discovered.
WM EIRER G R EHFRA BIE P EREX B 2 5F o 688
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
e (BH)
B5.  Supply Chain Management
e S
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply = Page 68-69
— I EE chain.
EEMHEEMNIRE R ERREBR- 68E69H
KPI B5.1  Number of suppliers by geographical region. Page 69
R SRR RIS IR ZMES D HEEEE - 698

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, Page 68-69
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
B AR A HEENEN mENTHERIBANMEER 68FE69E
HE -URBREANRITRERG %o

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Page 68
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B AR HEESERNNRERTERENESD - 688
MR AR AIT M BB 5 7% o

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally  Page 68
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
HIMEPREREEREELRRFRERRRBWESL > U 688
FABRAENIT M BE R 5 % ©
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIREHS2E
G (E5%)
B6.  Product Responsibility
Emafi
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  Page 69-71
—RRIFE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
BRFMREERTIRBNEREZS - BES - RERMESZTEUR 69E71H
BRI EN (@QBER ; ROETFTHETABEAZENEMEER
REAIBER o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to  No related
e SR AE WIEIR recalls for safety and health reasons. description
EERCEEERETRZ2ERFEEAMARKNE FAERHEL
St
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received  No related
and how they are dealt with. description
BEMN ELRRBNRFEE UREH 5% AR A
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting  Page 70
intellectual property rights.
M B s R R PE R E A RARVIE B o 708
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Page 69-70
procedures.
B SR EBRERERDKER- 69E708
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Page 71
and how they are implemented and monitored.
HCH B EBRMRE R BB UAREEATRERS 718
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RIE- B RERRS

Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIEEM2E
- (E58)
B7.  Anti-corruption
R&5
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  Page 71
—RRIFE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAPLEFERS B3R IREF RO B I (@R, OB THEITA 718
BB AXENEREZERRANER
KPI B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  Page 71
REREWIEIR brought against the issuer or its employees during the

reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERMARAHETAIHEERILEESENESHFLE 718
{#Eqﬁg &DFF_/\HD% °

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  Page 71
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B E A T R BRI T UM BRARIT R EE R % 718
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors  No related
and staff. description
HiItmEERETRMHNREFEIC AR
B8.  Community Investment
HELSE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the  Page 71
—ARI communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the Communities interests.
BNt E2HERBERSEMTHEREENRREERTFEE 718
Bt AR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental  Page 71
RETREWIEIE concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIEMBE WHES RBESEE - HFLIER-#E-XE- 7T1E
=i
B8.2 Resource contributed to the focus areas. Page 71
HEIHBENEREA 718
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The Group
principally engages in the operation and management of department
stores and property development in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 99.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and a discussion on the relationships with its key stakeholders,
are set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”
and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The review forms part of this directors’ report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Monday, 17
May 2021 to Friday, 21 May 2021 (both days inclusive), during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Friday, 21 May 2021, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure all share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 14 May 2021.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 104 to 105 and note 36 to the financial
statements. The reserves are calculated in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution was approximately RMB1,728 million, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share premium
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the
137 of Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and paid
out of the profits of the Company, realized or unrealized, or from any
reserve set aside from profits which the Directors determine is no longer
needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends may also
be declared and paid out of share premium account or any other fund or
account which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with the
law.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Interest bearing bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB14,342.5 million,
details of which are set out in the heading under “Interest-bearing
Liabilities” above and note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhong Pengyi (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Bin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Rao Youg
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

According to Article 87 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Zhong Pengyi,
Mr. Wang Bin and Mr. Pao Ping Wing the existing directors of the
Company, will retire from office by rotation at the 2021 AGM. All the
above retiring director, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
2021 AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The Articles of
Association provide that the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of said persons. Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this report, there was or is, any
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong))
being in force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual
report.

PENSION SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in retirement schemes administered and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are calculated on certain percentage
of the average employee salary as stipulated by the local municipal
government. Such retirement schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 were RMB25 miillion. Details of the pension scheme are set out in
note 8 to the finance statement.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no director nor
a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the directors of the Company
in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(1) Long position in the shares of the Company

(1) =2ERGFE

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of director Capacity interested capital”
EARE
BEEDRZ BRITRA
EEns 514 EERHE BB
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporations 4,200,000,000 81.71%
=hibis REGEENER (Note)
(M55
Beneficial owner 50,000,000 0.97%
BaEAA
4,250,000,000 82.68%
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan Beneficial owner 411,000 0.01%

BMERE

BmEAA

Note:  These shares were held by Maoye Department Store Investment Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of MOY International Holdings Limited, which in
turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2020.

(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

2.1) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company

ZE R 1D EMOY International Holdings
Limitedfy 2 & 1 & ‘A E]Maoye Department
Store Investment Limited¥$ % > TiIMOY
International Holdings Limitedf & 4054
EEHRC

BAOLERRZERBERURAER
2020FF12H31HEBETRMDZHE ©

(2 tEECEERMZETE
(2.1) ZK 2\ B] B ###ER 22 E]Maoye

Department Store Investment Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such

ordinary shares associated

Name of director Capacity interested corporation”

a0 EE

BAEEEZ BRITRAHN

EEHA g1 EiEREE S g

Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporation 2 100%
=ik ZEFEENER (Note)
(H¥5%)

Note: These shares were held by MOY International Holdings Limited, MizE: ZZERMHAMOY International

which was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided
by the number of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2020.
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2.2) MOY International Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company

(2.2) 2K 1\ Bl RAL L 2\ EIMOY
International Holdings Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such

ordinary shares associated
Name of director Capacity interested corporation”
FELEL

BEEGEZ BR1TREM
ERy 513 ERERHE ST g
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Beneficial owner 100 100%

BRM7E BaEBA

*

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of MOY International Holdings Limited’s issued shares as at 31
December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than the directors
of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed in the above
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its
Associated Corporations”) had interests of 5% or more in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares of the Company ERBIRMGZEE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity interested capital*
G AF
BEEGZZ BETRAH
TERRMS g1 ERELE S BAE 2
Mrs. Huang Jingzhang Interest of spouse 4,250,000,000 82.68%
RELT Fo B m (Note (a))
(M43 (a))
Maoye Department Store Beneficial owner 4,200,000,000 81.71%
Investment Limited EnEEA (Note (o))
(Mi5E(b))
MOY International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 4,200,000,000 81.71%
REHEENER (Note (b))
(Mi5E(b))
Notes: M3

(@ Mrs. Huang Jingzhang was deemed to be interested in these shares through the
interest of her spouse, Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

(b) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MOQY International Holdings Limited. Such interests were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Huang Mao Ru in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company and its Associated Corporations”.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number of
the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person (other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed
in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
and its Associated Corporations”) had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 5,689 employees.
Salaries, bonuses and benefits are determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company had
maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

The Company has repurchased part of the outstanding notes in an
aggregate principal amount of US$126,750,000 (the “Repurchased
Notes”) via open market during the period from September 2019 to
30 July 2020. The Repurchased Notes represent 50.70% of the initial
principal amount of the Notes. The Repurchased Notes were duly
cancelled on 30 July 2020 (For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 30 July 2020, capitalised terms used in this
paragraph shall have the same meanings as those defined in that
announcement).

On 28 September 2020, the Company has completed the redemption
of the outstanding Notes in full in aggregate principal amount of
US$95,400,000 together with accrued interest up to the Maturity Date
(the “Redemption”). Upon completion of the Redemption, the Company
has no outstanding Notes in issue as of 28 September 2020, and the
Notes will been cancelled and delisted from the Stock Exchange. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28
September 2020, capitalised terms used in this paragraph shall have the
same meanings as those defined in that announcement.

The subsidiary of the Company Maoye Shangsha has redeemed (1) the
First Tranche of Bonds in the principal amount of RMB1,076,354,000
with its accrued interest of RMB44,000,000 on 5 January 2018;
(2) the remaining First Tranche of Bonds in the principal amount of
RMB23,646,000 with its accrued interest of RMB945,840 on 7 January
2019; (3) the Second Tranche of Bonds in the principal amount of
RMB1,696,969,000 with its accrued interest of RMB76,500,000 on 7
January 2019 ; and (4) the Second Tranche of Bonds in the principal
amount of RMB3,031,000 with its accrued interest of RMB227,325.00
on 29 December 2020 was remitted to the reserves account of
the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited and was delisted on 5 January 2021.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Under the deed of non-competition dated 17 April 2008 given by Mr.
Huang Mao Ru, Maoye Holdings Limited and Richon Holdings Limited
(collectively known as the “Controlling Shareholder Group”) in favour
of the Company, details of which were stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated 21 April 2008 (the “Prospectus”), the Controlling
Shareholder Group had undertaken to use its best endeavour within
three years to (i) resolve the existing litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. (EEMERIEKRETER
R A @) (“‘Chongging Jiefangbei Store”) and Chongaing Xin Long
Da Real Estate Development Company Limited (EEZEERME
B AR AE) (“Xin Long Da”); (i) obtain all necessary consents and
approvals for the transfer of the interest of the Controlling Shareholder
Group in Chongging Jiefangbei Store and Wuxi Maoye Department
Store Company Limited (7% X B EARAE)and Wuxi Maoye
Baifu Supermarket Company Limited (EiFREBFRBRTHEERL
@) (the latter two collectively known as “Maoye Wuxi Store”) to the
Group (note); and (iii) obtain all necessary consents and approvals for
the transfer of the Controlling Shareholder Group’s interest in Guiyang
Friendship Group Holdings Company Limited (EPg&:E (EE) B E
[R/A ) (“Guiyang Friendship Group”), to serve a notice on the Group
within ten business days of any of the issues in clauses (i) to (i) above
having been resolved, and to use his/its best endeavour to transfer the
interest in Chongging Jiefangbei Store, Maoye Wuxi Store and Guiyang
Friendship Group to the Group as soon as practicable once the relevant
issues impeding such transfer have been resolved. The Controlling
Shareholder Group had further undertaken to keep the Company
informed every six months from the Listing Date as regards the progress
on the matters described above.

Note:  The ownership of Maoye Wuxi Store has been changed to Wuxi Maoye Property
Co., Ltd., and such company was controlled by the Controlling Shareholders.
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Since the Supreme People’s Court has adjudged that the leasing
agreement entered into between Chongqging Jiefangbei Store and
Xin Long Da was valid and binding, the litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Store and Xin Long Da has been resolved. However, the Group
is still considering as to whether to acquire the interests of the Controlling
Shareholder Group in the Chongqing Jiefangbei Store and Maoye Wuxi
Store. As the original master management agreement has terminated
on 31 December 2019, the Company entered into the new master
management agreement (the “New Master Management Agreement”)
with Maoye Holdings Limited on 1 January 2020 to govern the terms
upon which the Group will provide store management services to the
Controlling Shareholder Group with respect to the Maoye Wuxi Store
and/or department stores owned by the Controlling Shareholder Group in
order to avoid conflict of interests between the Group and the Controlling
Shareholder Group. The New Master Management Agreement has a
term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020. As Maoye Holdings
Limited is a connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, the entering into of the New Master Management Agreement
constituted a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. However, as all the applicable percentage ratios in
relation to the New Master Management Agreement were less than 0.1%,
the New Master Management Agreement was fully exempt from the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules. As Chongging Jiefangbei Store has ceased operation
since February 2011, the Group did not manage Chongqing Jiefangbei
Store thereafter. Approval from the relevant government departments has
not been obtained in relation to the Group’s application for transfer of
interest in Guiyang Friendship Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted the following transactions
with certain connected persons of the Company. These transactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
and are subject to the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.

Connected Transaction at the Subsidiary Level

Pursuant to the relevant terms of a loan agreement made on 12
December 2017, Shenzhen Department Store (the “Lender”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd, agreed to provide a
term loan to Mr. Zou Zhao Bin (the “Borrower”), in the principal amount
of RMB399,933,400, bearing interest at a rate of 10.5% per annum. The
loan is secured by a share pledge agreement dated 29 December 2017
executed by Victory Investment Holding in favour of the Lender with
respect to a 15% equity interest in Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial
(Group) Co., Limited (“Victory Commercial”) (the “Share Charge”).

The maturity date of the loan was 31 December 2019. As of the maturity
date, the Borrower has not repaid the principal amount and interest of the
loan in the amount of RMB483,804,365.

According to the valuation report issued by the valuer on 11 March
2020, the value of 15% equity interest in Victory Commercial amounts to
RMB585 million, which is enough to cover the principal and interest of the
loan.
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On 16 March 2020, the Board announced that Maoye Commercial
Co., Ltd (the “Purchaser”), Victoria Investment Holding Co., Ltd (the
“Vendor”) and the Borrower have entered into the supplemental loan
agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor will repay the obligations
under the loan together with the Borrower to the Purchaser, and the
maturity date of the loan agreement had been further extended from 31
December 2019 to 16 March 2020.

On 16 March 2020, the Board announced that the Purchaser entered
into the acquisition agreement with the Vendor and the Borrower,
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase 15% of the equity
interests in Victory Commercial, for a consideration of RMB577.5 million.
Meanwhile, the Purchaser entered into the fee settlement agreement with
the Vendor, the Lender, the Borrower and Victory Commercial, pursuant
to which the consideration of RMB577.5 million will be paid as follows: (i)
RMB491.7 million will be set off against the principal and interest of the
loan owed by the Borrower to the Purchaser; (i) RMB37.7 million will be
set off against the amount due from the Vendor to Victory Commercial;
and (i) the remaining RMB48.1 million, after negotiation between the
Purchaser and the Vendor, does not have to be paid by the Purchaser.

On 3 April 2020, the Board announced that all the conditions precedent
in the acquisition agreement has been fulfiled, and that the terms
and conditions of the acquisition agreement have taken place. Upon
completion, the Company shall indirectly hold 85% of equity interests in
the target company.

For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 3 April 2020, 16 March 2020, 2 January 2020, 28 December
2018, 29 December 2017 and 12 December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had any business or interests in businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group:

Mr. Huang Mao Ru held interests in Chongqing Jiefangbei Store, Maoye
Wuxi Store and Guiyang Friendship Group. Details of these companies
and Mr. Huang’s interests in these companies are set out in the
Prospectus. As mentioned in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholder
Group has granted the Group an option to purchase the whole or part of
the interest of these companies.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group mainly engages in retail business, for the year ended 31
December 2020, none of its customers or suppliers accounted for more
than 5% of the Group’s revenue or purchases. In addition, for the year
ended 31 December 2020, none of the directors, shareholders or their
respective close associates who owned 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in any of the five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmental-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. The Group
strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. Details of the
environmental policies of the Company are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in the Mainland
China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with the relevant
laws and regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. As far as
the Directors are aware, during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the
2021 AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board

Maoye International Holdings Limited
Huang Mao Ru

Chairman

24 March 2021
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To the members of Maoye International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Maoye
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 93 to 258, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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VR ER SIS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANEANAHARE ERETRE

Goodwill - impairment

&

As at 31 December 2020, the Group reported goodwill of
RMB1,361,122,000 as a result of previous acquisitions.
Management performs an impairment test for the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the
unit, including the goodwill, with the recoverable amount of
the unit. The impairment test is complex, and significantly
relies on management’s judgement and estimation about
the discount rate and the expected future operating
results, such as the long-term growth rate, revenue and
margin development which are affected by future market
and economic conditions.

122020128310 EEERLABBEEMZRA
R #51,361,122,000cNE & - EIEE BB LR EARE
B (EEHE BEMINRLEEE SFREERNRE
TRBMAELRRBERN HENKEENRESELS
UETHRENR - HENHEREGEEEEHNMIEEX
MBS RELEEE WRBEEX - WAKREFER)
BFI B R (5t ZRERRZRRDIGREHE R T E

The accounting policies, significant estimates and
related disclosures are included in note 2.4 Business
combinations and goodwill, note 3 Impairment of goodwill
and note 20 Goodwill to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

BETBER - BRI RERBEEEHA SEELGKEH
BHRMEF24EE S HEEE  WESH R A &M
20 & -

We evaluated the key assumptions used in cash flow
forecasts, such as the sales growth and gross margin,
through comparison with historical performance and
business development plan. We involved our internal
valuation specialist in the assessment of the discount
rate and long-term growth rate with reference to general
market indicators and comparable companies. We also
tested management’s sensitivity analysis of the impairment
test.
BMEBEATRBEEREERERFE LIRS RE
TERIPTEANRERESR WHEEREREN X - FKME
A EEERBIE2E —RMISERERA ERAB G
MRERRRIEREXR - RMTAAEERE S REAEN
BURE Do

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

HAITHEGRE M BRERPHEBKERES D
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIZEENR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

F#EETEE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FREFE

Investment properties — valuation

REWE—141E

HANEAMAHREESFHRETRE

The Group is engaged in the operation and management
of department stores and property development in
Mainland China. The completed investment properties in
operation and investment properties under construction
are recognised as investment properties and measured
at fair value. Management engaged external appraisers
to evaluate the fair values of the investment properties
annually. As of 31 December 2020, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to approximately
RMB19,441,153,000. The fair value measurement of
investment properties is complex and highly dependent
on a range of estimates made by management, such as
the rental value, rental growth, vacancy rates, discount
rate, budgeted construction cost, remaining percentage to
completion and profit margin on construction.
EEERFREAENEEEEREREBEYELERE
BoREPNERTIREMENTRRENERKLEY
EWEANBENE BEEZEIINEMLEMEETH
LEMEN A AEER2020F12831H HEEH
REMENH ANRE19,441,153,0007T c HEWEMN A
nNEBEEAEEEEFSEEEREHN—RIIMMst WA
TEE - HEERE - ETEX MR -BEEEMAIE
BEE TR TEDIERTEMEE.

The accounting policies, significant estimates, fair value
hierarchy and related disclosures are included in note 2.4
Investment properties, note 3 Estimation of fair value of
investment properties, and note 18 Investment properties
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

B BR -ERGEH A AEEERRERAKEDSH
A BERGEMBRRMI2ALEYE 3K E
MEN R RBEMSH UK 18R EY -

We assessed the objectivity, independence and expertise
of the external appraisers, as well as obtained an
understanding of the external appraisers’ scope of work.
M TS EEMANETEE B UM R EENH
MR T RSN ER (LB B AR & &

With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
we obtained an understanding of the valuation process
and techniques and inputs (such as discount rate)
adopted by the external appraisers to assess whether
they were consistent with the requirements of industry
norms. We obtained the detailed work of the external
appraisers and assessed the reasonableness of the
significant unobservable inputs and the accuracy of the
source data adopted by the management of the Group
and the external appraisers by comparing them, on a
sample basis, to existing tenancy profiles, publicly available
information of similar comparable properties and our
knowledge of the real estate industry. We also evaluated
the sensitivity analysis prepared by management on the
significant unobservable inputs to evaluate the magnitude
of their impacts on the fair values.
ARMASEEERNHE T R TR T HEBREK
4MER 1 1B B P ERAR AY 75 0% DU R B A B (5190 BG IR =) 1L
TEHEEEEITERERTE W o MBS EB i EED
e TEBER RABRIBERER R EUTEEY
(N RHAENREMEEMETEN T HIETIEER &7
HEALFAGEATNTREHABNSELK E&E
BEIRE K SN Bt (B B P ER A BY B3R 2R BO ZE BE 14 o FR AP
B TEEEREZNTEHEZRABRENSRED
MLGHERERAANBENTERE

We also reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures of the
fair value of investment properties in the consolidated
financial statements.

BB ReMBRRPEEMELNEENRKER

BT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR ER SIS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIZEENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

VR ER SIS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is LAW KWOK KEE.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

rEIEmR
FeiEm

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
= AR®TT AREFIT
REVENUE A 5 6,911,751 6,267,393
Other income Htg A 6 1,104,634 1,673,168
Total operating revenue Sl PN 8,016,385 7,940,561
Cost of sales iHE A 7 (3,231,173) (2,443,639)
Employee expenses BERE 8 (415,215) (569,122)
Depreciation and amortisation TEE Mg i (1,083,355) (1,107,135)
Payments for short-term leases and RHHEREEERE 10
leases of low-value assets HEHRZ (10,933) (31,821)
Other operating expenses HMKES% 11 (1,144,953) (1,378,609)
Other gains and losses Hithm 518 12 (825,937) 291,750
Operating profit S F 1,304,819 2,701,985
Finance costs [EE=ip%: 13 (1,231,528) (1,320,614)
Share of profits and losses of: FEMEUTEHEE -
a joint venture HEhE (1,182) (1,429)
associates = /NE] (8,253) (266,648)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PRI EIF)E 63,856 1,113,294
Income tax expense FriSfREsz 14 (312,852) (642,248)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR T EF (F518) FHE (248,996) 471,046
Attributable to: LU AL FEL
Owners of the parent HBABEGEEE A (174,636) 186,262
Non-controlling interests JERER R R (74,360) 284,784
(248,996) 471,046
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BARZEEZREA 16
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FE(L AR (B548) /&7
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic HAx
— For (loss)/profit for the year —KE BB FIBEEE RMB(3.40) cents  RMB3.62 cents
AE#(3.40)2 AR#3.625
Diluted i3
— For (loss)/profit for the year —ARF (BB FEEE RMB(3.40) cents  RMB3.62 cents
AE#(3.40)7 AR H3.625
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
.\7r\ éﬁﬂ&m?ﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FT

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A (§548) /FIHE (248,996) 471,046
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith2mEm =
Defined benefit retirement plans REBKEFETE 976 (551)
Exchange differences on translation of EINEBMEELENER ELE

foreign operations 78,738 9,257
Other comprehensive income that will not be MBS rgEMmoEE

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 1B E M & EIKE !
Changes in fair value on equity investments EEAURABEFZEEHR

designated at fair value through other st AHMEmEUER

comprehensive income EnEENARNEEED 157,521 188,629
Income tax effect FRiSiR e & (39,380) (47,158)
Gains on property revaluation ¢@¥§% H& 95,342 796,133
Income tax effect R8s 2 (23,837) (199,033)
Net other comprehensive income that will not be BB rEEMmDEE

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods BmiEMEEWREFEE 189,646 738,571
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEBFREEMEER

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 269,360 747,277
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEZ@EKHELAER

FOR THE YEAR 20,364 1,218,323
Attributable to: DUF AL :

Owners of the parent ISYNSIE-Ems =¥ =N 79,299 928,766

Non-controlling interests JEIER IR R T (58,935) 289,557

20,364 1,218,323
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBRIRR

31 December 2020
20205%12H31H

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12H431H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment IEN =Yg 17 8,392,910 8,380,692
Investment properties KB 18 19,441,153 19,692,166
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19(a) 6,335,008 6,874,493
Goodwill mE 20 1,361,122 1,339,782
Other intangible assets Hithmf & E 21 41,589 46,165
Investment in a joint venture NEETERE 22 1,091 1,274
Investments in associates REEABIKRE 23 1,069,334 1,868,366
Equity investments designated EEAURNAEBEFZEEER 24
at fair value through other EEETAEMEEWEDN
comprehensive income HRKE 1,520,533 1,497,212
Financial assets at fair value through MrnBEst2EEEH5TA 24
profit or loss BRNTHEE 10,712 206,000
Prepayments SEANE R 29 166,485 623,248
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 25 640,401 637,270
Total non-current assets ERBEELR 38,980,338 41,166,668
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories 75 26 264,448 205,299
Completed properties held for sale HEGEERHRYE 2,442,287 1,751,103
Properties under development BRI 27 5,770,812 6,099,155
Financial assets at fair value through ManBEstEAEEHEA 24
profit or loss BEalEmEE 28,028 3,001
Trade and bills receivables EWE ZHIEREE 28 11,015 8,598
Prepayments, other receivables and FETFIE ~ HhFEWERIE K 29
other assets Hh&E 2,517,598 3,155,399
Pledged deposits BIERER 30 245,919 208,265
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEHEY 30 1,046,689 1,232,571
Total current assets BN HEMRER 12,326,796 12,663,391

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIRZE R A RA T

101



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMEBRRR

31 December 2020
2020%F12H31H

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12H831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARBFT
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBE
Trade and bills payables B S IEKREE 31 2,466,217 2,633,692
Contract liabilities, deposits received, a6 -BWEES EBER 32
accruals and other payables K HMET = IE 11,773,729 11,224,625
Interest-bearing bank loans and FTEBITERREMMER 33
other borrowings 4,987,441 9,274,381
Lease liabilities HEa®E 19(b) 262,934 259,977
Income tax payable FEBIFRISR 529,973 435,167
Dividend payable EERE 25,527 19,317
Total current liabilities TMENEEAREE 20,045,821 23,847,159
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mENBEREE (7,719,025) (11,183,768)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARE
LIABILITIES 31,261,313 29,982,900
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A MBRIRR

31 December 2020
20205%12H31H

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20204 20194
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B oE ARBFT ARETFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERIMEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FEIRITER R EMER 33
other borrowings 9,355,018 6,845,531
Lease liabilities HEa®RE 19(b) 2,333,243 2,597,508
Deferred tax liabilities P =y == 25 4,110,375 4,238,263
Other long-term liabilities HthRH8E 158 138,483
Provision for retirement benefits BIKGEF B 34 6,855 8,086
Total non-current liabilities EIEI=KI=E L 15,805,649 13,827,871
Net assets BEESRE 15,455,664 16,155,029
EQUITY Ui
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &/A T E1THE AE(EER
Issued capital BETRAE 35 460,153 460,153
Equity component of convertible bonds ~ B] 8 (& 5 25 28 55,538 55,538
Other reserves HAhf#E 36 12,452,454 12,514,655
12,968,145 13,030,346
Non-controlling interests JEIERR AR B e 2,487,519 3,124,683
Total equity AR 15,455,664 16,155,029
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
DR

Year ended 31 December 2020

HE20205 12831 HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BARRGEEAAEE
Disposal
of partial
interestina Equity
Acquistion ~ subsidliary - component Defined
Share  ofnon- without of Capital Statutory Asset benefit ~ Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  controling losing ~ convertiole  redemption  Contributed surplus  revaluation  retiement  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
captal  account interests ﬁgmm\ bonds reserve surplus  reserve reserve’ plans reserve profits Total  interests equity
E-f
HBAR
Bygs  EB
R WEHER MmEXE  BHEE &x iy BE  RERN  NERB ER
BEAks  BREER REE:z AR 37 EEEE RARE BHAR  EMEE Rt B 2ERA A BEED BR4E
RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0 RMB'000 RMB'OO0 RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
NEBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETH ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR \RETR ARHTr ARETR ARSTI ARETT \RETR
At 1 January 2019 P019E1A1E 460,183 1575001 (32312 295477 55538  (426,665) 28,191 729975 3208197 (645) (100,739 6,507,837 12,300,008 2994878 15,294,886
Profit for the year RERE - - - - - - - - - - - 186262 186262 284784 471,046
Other comprehensive income for the year:  AEHH2ENE |
Changes n fair value of equity EEANAREE

nvestments designated t fair vaue HEEHEE
through other comprehensive income,  tARHI2E

before tax iR
REAREE
28 (3140 - - - - - - - - 188929 - - - 188929 (300 188629
Disposal of equity investments HEEEAN
designated at fair value through DB
other comprehensive income BEEHHA
A2 Al
HEaRE - - - - - - - - ey - - 2618 - - -
Exchanges differences on translation of BN EBREEEN
forelgn operations EREE - - - - - - - - - - 9,057 - 9,257 - 9,257
Defined beneft retirement plans RERFEHHE - - - - - - - - - 455) - - 455) (%) 551)
Revaluation gains on properties upon HE HER
transfer from property, plant and HEEEE
equipment to investment properties, RENEN
before tax NEBENE
(51) - - - - - - - - T8O - - - T8940 6792 79,133
Tax effect of components of Ath2ENE
other comprehensive income ARS8
nEze - - - - - - - - (244568 - - - (44568 (1629 (246,191)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AE2ERHBE - - - - - - - - 731,084 (455) 9257 188880 928766 289557 1,218,323
Compensation shares transferred to BRTIHIRRR
non-controling inerests ERNHEERD - - - - - (3258 - - - - - - (32580 32800 304
Purchase of non-controling interests BEFCRREER - - - - - - - - - - - - - 0327 (60327)
Profit approprated to reserves BERENAE - - - - - - - 121885 - - - (127,865) - - -
Finaldividend for 2018 NIBERERE - - - - - - - - - - - 85842 (165842) (103019 (268.861)
Dividend paid by a subsidiary o LA
non-controling shareholders FrkkzER
RTRRE - - - - - - - - - - - - - (2926 (292)
At 31 December 2019 120198128310 460153 1575001" (2312 295477 55538 (459251)  2819”"  857.840" 3939281 (11007 (91,482 6403010° 13030346 3124683 16,155,029
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mAEmEER

Year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020512H31H LFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BARRGRAAEY
Disposal
of partial
interestin a Equity
Acquisition  subsidiary component
Share ofnon-  without of  Capital Statutory
Issued  premium controlling losing convertible redemption Contributed  surplus
capital  account interests control bonds  reserve  surplus  reserve
HE-MH
HEAR
L
R KEEAR WEXE E5ER BX EE
HEE BREE AR B3 HERE REBR BHAR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T AEBTT ABRTT ARETR ABRTn ABKTR ARETR AREBTR
At 1 January 2020 1202061518 460,153 1575001  (32312) 295477 55538  (459,251) 28,191 857,840
Profit for the year RERE - - - o o - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year:  AEE A 2EN :
Changes i fair value of equity EEANARER

investments designated at farvaue ~ sFEEEEH
through other comprehensive income, St AEM2E

before tax Lt 5o
RENAEE
é%ﬂ( Rl - - - - - - -
Disposal of equity investments HERTAN
designated at fair value through ’M@ﬁ e
other comprehensive income EHEHHA
(note 24) Hth2ENE
NERRE
(Hzt04) - - - = = = =
Exchanges differences on ranslation of  ESNEBBEEL
foreign operations HERZR - - - = = = =
Defined beneft retiement plans RERHBMHEE - - - - - - -
Revaluation gains on propertiesupon 41 FER
transfer from property, plant and REBEE
equipment to investment properties,  FEEN
before tax NEERYE
(Fs2A0) - - - - - - -
Tax effect of components of other B2 AN
comprehensive income Atttz 4 - - - = - = -

Defined
Asset  benefit Exchange Non-
revaluation retirement fluctuation  Retained controlling
reserve plans  reserve profits Total interests

BE AERH ERD JHER
E i BEERA G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR ARRTR ABMTR ARETR ARRTR ARWTR ARETR

3,939,281 (1,000 (91482 6,403,010 13,030,346 3,124,683 16,155,029
- - - (174636)  (174636)  (74,360)  (248,096)

163,576 - 5 - 153576 345 16752t
(93,148) - - 03148 o - -
5 - % (YK N (VK]
- 808 . - 808 168 976
78943 - 5 - TBM3 16309 95342
(58,130) - 5 - B81%0) (G087 (63217)

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AF2 AW EEE - - - o o - -

81,24 808 78738  (81488) 79209  (58.935) 20,364

Acquistion of non-controling interests WS FER SRR - - (50,074 - - - - - - - - - (50,074) (479,328) (529,402
Proft appropriated to reserves f*f’ﬂuﬁ% isgilbe} - - = o o = - 1970 - - - (129720 o = o
Final dividend for 2019 ﬁﬁy% - - - - - - - - - - - (0,718 (90,718 (9,708)  (100,426)
Deregistration of subsidiary B ‘é] Gl = = = - - - - (526) - - - - (526) - (526)
Cash compensation to ﬂiH’"F&%m i
non-controling inerests (note 36) ReRR (ﬂﬁ%) - - - - - - (182) - - - - - (182) 182 -
Dividend paid by a subsidiary to —-ERBATR
non-controling shareholders FERREES
EINRS - - - - - - - - - - - - - (89375 (89,375)
At 31 Decermber 2020 FONEDANIE 40183 STBOOT  (B2086°  254T' S (SO25I 28008 0G0 4052 (92F (R4 GONIB 12968145 246TSH0 15485664

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from property, plant and
equipment to investment properties carried at fair value and changes in fair value of
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of
RMB12,452,454,000 (2019: RMB12,514,655,000) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

**In 2020, Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (‘Maoye Commercial’) acquired 15% of
shares in Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial (Group) Management Co., Limited
(“Victory Commercial”) through debt restructuring, thereby increasing its
shareholding in Victory Commercial to 85% after this acquisition.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\7|-\ Eﬁr%;ﬁ%

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR% T AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KETHESNIRESERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PRI AT 63,856 1,113,294
Adjustments for: MTEIEHE .
Interest income FE WA 6 (17,388) (60,915)
Depreciation and amortisation of M2~ R S s s DA e EAt
property, plant and equipment and EREEZITEREHE
other intangible assets 569,351 600,161
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEENE 19 514,004 506,974
(Gain)/loss on partial disposal of HoHE—BEE AT 12
shares in an associate Bmp (ke 8 (3,664) 116
Loss on repurchase of United States BEIETEAEE 12
dollar senior notes (“USD senior (METBAER)) NEE
notes”) (4,546) -
Foreign exchange loss, net SMERSIREER 12 47,973 37,555
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of FEW & 5 718 N
trade receivables CRIERRE) RE (533) 9
Impairment of investment in an associate Rt E AT R ERIE 12 168,302 -
Impairment of other receivables HAE W IE R (E 11 5,301 49,577
Impairment of goodwill HE A 12 62,607 55,315
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of & B8 Bk 5 7B i
an amount due from related parties FERLIRE) RE (5,197) 54,540
Impairment of properties under BREAYERE 11
development 64,323 -
Loss on disposal of investment HERBEYZENEE 12
properties 2,993 14,620
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME f%& SHBIEE 12
property, plant and equipment B8 (R 95,992 (3,734)
Gain on disposal of financial assets ﬁ’éu’\fﬁf‘fﬁﬁéﬂﬂ 12
at fair value through profit or loss EENIET AR RN
TRYE AW (6,726) (815)
Dividend income from financial assets REBURANBEFEZEEH 12
at fair value through profit or loss #Est ABEN
THMEENRE (1,488) (2,070)
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment BREYENAABEBRE, 12
properties (W zm) 407,759 (442,987)
Dividend income from equity investments 3§E &MU AAEBEFEBEE 12
designated at fair value through st AHEMEEmERN
other comprehensive income EREEREIA (15,016) (22,544)
Finance costs BB AL A 13 1,231,528 1,320,614
Share of losses of associates b =/N=I)oFi= 8,253 266,648
Share of loss of a joint venture FEh—EaEhEEsE 1,182 1,429
3,188,866 3,487,787
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

& AL Ry =il — B
FEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%T T ARBEFIT
Decrease in completed properties held BEFEEEMWERLD
for sale 1,805,433 660,790
Additions of properties under development % & F1 4 2£ 3% 1 (974,470) (888,371)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =5 (gm R (59,149) 29,571
Provision for retirement benefits paid BT RARENEE 34 (669) (969)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEUN B 5 7 I8 M Z RIS A0 (6,461) (1,807)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and B 2k I8 Kz H fth FE U k18
other receivables B, (a0 340,738 (441,532)
Decrease in trade and bills payables B E S RIEREZER LD (167,475) (1,124,138)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities, &#I & BWILSE
deposits received, accruals and FEST & B R A ME N RIB
other payables CRe2) /1 (2,792,040) 257,882
Cash generated from operations REMBIRE 1,334,773 1,979,217
Interest received BF B 22,211 60,915
PRC tax paid EfRERIE (452,100) (676,123)
Net cash flows from operating activities ~ &EFHEENIRER=2F 904,884 1,364,009
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

o AL Ay =i — 1
FRHERE
Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥T T ARHEF T
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING FHRIREZEBEEMN
ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchase of items of property, BEYE - WEAREEER
plant and equipment (220,369) (813,024)
Purchase of items of BEREYEIEE
investment properties (20,115) (138,699)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE BEKRKXEEBE
property, plant and equipment FTigsIa 8,225 8,744
Purchase of financial assets BEUANABEF=ZEHES
at fair value through profit or loss FABGEHNEMEE (85,418) (3,168)
Purchase of debt instruments BEUAANEEF=EHEES
at fair value through profit or loss FFABENEHRETA (509,913) (205,000)
Proceeds from disposal of HEUARNBEFEZEHESF)
financial assets at fair value through STABTZHNEMEEMS
profit or loss ;IE 60,825 759
Proceeds from disposal of HEUARBESTEEEED)
debt instruments at fair value through SFAERNEBRITIARFMS
profit or loss I8 705,200 207,080
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYEMSIE
properties 11,483 -
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEEEAURARBESER
investments designated at fair value HEghst A2 mEmWE
through other comprehensive income o EMEHRIE 141,660 4,332
Proceeds from disposal of HE—MBE AR D ER
a partial interest of an associate FriS =18 638,640 4,000
Purchase of other intangible assets EEHMEFEE (255) (183)
Repayment of a loan by a third party —BE=ZHEEERN 700 9,300
Increase in an investment in an associate &N —REHE ATNIBE = (39,874)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—R B A e 37 (869,532) -
Acquisition of interests in a joint venture  INBEI —RI& & MR (1,000) (1,000)
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to M B AR M IEEERR AR ER
non-controlling shareholders SEAKRE (89,375) (28,993)
Dividend received from an associate RE—EEEAENEE - 5,720
Dividend received from financial assets ~ ZREMU AR BETEEHEH)
at fair value through profit or loss ABENEMEERE 3,429 2,885
Dividend received from equity investments 2K BIEEAMU AR BESER
designated at fair value through HEs szt A\ EtE2mEmimn
other comprehensive income HEaRERE 15,008 26,143
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRRIEITEIUR LD (37,654) 6,317)
Net cash flows used in investing activites BRREEHNIRE = /FE8 (248,461) (467,295)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

:-\7r\ EE@/}ILE%E

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2020 2019
2020 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%T T ARETIT
CASH FLOWS USED IN ARmMEERSNRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan from a third party KE—REZANER - 200,000
Repayment of a loan from a third party ~ EE—&ZFE=ZFHNER (140,000) (60,000)
New bank loans and other borrowings G IRITER R EMERR 9,311,090 7,189,686
Repayment of bank loans and BRIRITERKRAEMMER
other borrowings (11,431,244) (9,311,697)
Interest paid BFE (1,028,593) (1,219,813
Principal and interest elements of %H%?Alﬁzliﬁﬁ FEZD 19(b)
lease payments (415,858) (436,851)
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REBRRMHEABNER 3,366,460 1,137,311
Repayment of loans from BERRMBLABNEMN
fellow subsidiaries (446,000) (213,000)
Purchase of non-controlling interests BEIFERKEER = (60,077)
Final dividend paid BRI E (90,718) (165,842)
Net cash flows used in financing activites BRI EEHMNIRE = (874,863) (2,940,283)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HERREEEBYHIEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS (218,440) (2,043,569)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, EREEHAYELE > B4B
net 32,558 (28,771)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESKISEEY
at beginning of year 1,232,571 3,304,911
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT EXBEERESEEY
END OF YEAR 1,046,689 1,232,571
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERFEEBMHERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RE MIBRITERGE 30 1,046,689 1,232,571
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HWERBRMIBIRE M
in the statement of cash flows HEEBY 1,046,689 1,232,571
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 8 August 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised). The Company’s registered office address has been
changed to P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, Ky1-1205 Cayman Islands with effect
from 1 October 2016 and the head office and principal place of
business of the Company is located at 38/F, World Finance Centre,
4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation
and management of department stores and property development in
Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company are Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited and MOY International
Holdings Limited, respectively, which were incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

REIREEREH

REBBZERBERLAR (TRA781) B
2007F8HSHIEIMEHEREMS
BABIE22F A F A (1961 FFE390 A
2o UREHKETEALE) ML
BRRBERETRB AR E ZFM
MEFMIBEEFEARP.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman lIslands’ B2016E1081HEAE
B MARN BB E R K B /RS
AR R E AR HEME (THEL) FIIE
IR B840035% tE R & fh A0 381& o A A
BRENEAT G AERH) FEZR
FEAERETEEREREER Y=

BEERA ARANEBREZERABNR
BIERABID BRI EBETR R B
EfIMaoye Department Store Investment
LimitedAIMQY International Holdings
Limited e

BB ARNER
FATEBRMBEABBIFHEAT !

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value
of issued and

Percentage of
paid-up share/ equity attributable

Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL s AR BETRARE PN
AR AR E S A RIAEE/ZMEx EEREZESL  TEED
Direct Indirect
E# &
% %
Maoye Department Store Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$2/US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
REREERERLNT 11 September 2007 2%77,/50,0002 T REZR
ERERRES
20079A8 118
Maoye Department Stores (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Maoye China’) 7 December 1993 100,000 70 REER
XERE (PE) BRAF (FREHE) FE19935F1287H
Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Zhongzhao’) 28 October 1997 AR #50,000,0007T REER
FIKRESERRNE (k) I,/ RE AR
19974108280
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEKRERER @

(continued)
ERMBATNER @
KRBEEMBABINFEBUOT © (@

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERITRARE VNG|
GIET AfREX MR RIAEEEfESs BEEZESE TEED
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Dahua Investment (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100/HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
AERE (PE) BRLT 28 May 2008 10077z,/10,000%7T REER
200857 26H
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$445,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and
("Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’) 31 January 1996 445,000,000%7¢ operation of department
HEEEEERLE CRIRERE) I,/ REIARE stores
19965F1831H REZRREEHERE
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Shennan Co., Ltd. 20 April 2000 AE#1,000,0007¢ store
AP EEREREERAF e,/ REARE KEBEE
200045208
Shenzhen Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB536,869,782 - 82.8  Operation of a department
FIREGEBRAT 20 April 2000 AR #536,869,7827T store
e/ REA R KEBEE
2000645208
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Huagiangbei  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd 31 March 2003 AE1,000,0007T store
HhEEEEERIBRLT" I,/ REIARE KEBER
200338318
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATTEWBATHFENT : (@)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRAE VNG|
G AfREX MR RIVEE/ HMES EEEEEME  TEED
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 8 August 2005 AR 1,200,000 store
MITRERAENEEERAE RE,/REARE KEBEE
20058H8H
Zhuhai City Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB4,800,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
KETRABEEBRLE" 24 August 2001 AE4,800,0007T store
B,/ REA KEBEE
2001485244
Chongaing Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
ERRFOEEBRAT" 27 August 2004 AR 30,000,000 store
e,/ REARE KEBERE
2004588278
Taiyuan Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,005,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
ARRXBEEBRLT" 11 April 2008 A& #1,005,000,0007T store
hE,/REARE KEBEE
200845118
Chongging Baifule Business and PRC/Mainland China RMB102,481,500 - 82.8  Operation of a supermarket
Commerce Co., Ltd. 16 September 2008 AR 102,481,500 mgim
EEREERERRLT" B/ REA R
20084F9F 160
Shanxi Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (‘Shanxi Real Estate”) 18 November 2008 AR #100,000,0007T BHELE
LWAREEENEREERAT I,/ REARE
(NLEERE) 20085118188
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

FARTEMBADNEENT : @)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SR/ E R ERITRARE KAH
AE%TE AERE £t R RitEE/ ZRES BEEGZESLE  FEE
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Changzhou Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
BNEEBERRLT" 21 May 2009 AR 5,000,000 store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
2009558214
Shenzhen Maolehui-commmerce Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 98  Operation of a department
FIREEEFHRBRETLA 26 July 2019 AR 5,000,000 store
e,/ B AR KEBERE
2019475268
Shenyang Maoye Times Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 100  Property development
EhRERAERERAF 24 September 2007 A 18,000,0007 EELRE
B,/ REARE
2007598248
Shenzhen Municipal Maoye PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100 Provision of advertising
Advertisement Co., Ltd. 25 December 2002 AE2,000,0007T services
AT RERESERLE" e,/ REARE B SR
2002 12H25H
Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB18,950,000 - 80.57  Operation of a department
ENE-BERERNERLT" 20 May 1994 AR #18,950,0007T store
hEl,/ REARE KEBERE
1994458204

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIRZE R A RA T

113



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATTEWBATHFENT : (@)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRAE VNG|
G AfREX MR RIVEE/ HMES EEEEEME  TEED
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Wuxi Yibai Property Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB202,500,000 - 90  Property development
EHRABXERRT” 15 April 2008 AR #202,500,0007% BHELR
hE,/REARE
200845158
Shenyang Maoye Business Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB155,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
ERXRBFERBERAR 13 May 2010 AR 1#155,000,0007 store
hE,/ REIARE KEBEE
201058138
Jinzhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China HK$193,000,000 - 100  Property development
BNREEXBRAT" 9 July 2010 193,000,000 7T BHELR
e,/ REARE
2010%7A9H
Baoding Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
(‘Baoding Maoye’) 20 September 2010 AE#5,000,0007% store
REXEAEERLF (REREBE) " hE,/REARE KEBEE
201097208
Huaian Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB206,000,000 - 100  Property development
HETREEEERAT 30 September 2010 AR 206,000,000 BHELE
B/ REA R
20104F9530A
Shandong Zibo Maoye Department Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB143,887,180 - 80  Operation of a department
RERETRRAEERNBRAE" 7 January 1999 AR 143,887,1807T store
I,/ REARE KEBERE
19995 187H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

FARTEMBADNEENT : @)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERITRARE VNG|
GIET AfREX MR RIAEEEfESs BEEZESE TEED
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %

Baoding Maoye Land and PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 18 December 2006 AR #50,000,0007T BHELE
(‘Baoding Land and Real Estate’) HE/ REAE

REXRERUEREERAE 20065125188

(MRERBMERME)
Linyi Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
EBRRXEEERAT” 3 November 2010 A E%5,000,0007C store
e,/ REARE KEBEE
201011H3A

Taizhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China HK$124,800,000 - 100  Property development
(“Taizhou Maoye’) 8 November 2010 124,800,000 BHEEE

EMREBEBRLT (FMEE) " e/ RE AR

2010%11E8H

Hong Kong Maoye Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB64,643,046 - 70 Operation of a department
(Yangzhou) Co., Ltd. 16 May 1996 ANE#64,643,0467T store

EARFEE BN BRLE" I,/ REIARE KEBER

1996555 168
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATTEWBATHFENT : (@)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
SRR A K BETRAR P VNG|
NGRS AERE £t R RiVEE/EMES EEREEAE  FEEH
Direct Indirect
Ei &
% %
Zibo Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB81,800,000 - 80  Operation of department
EEREREERLF 25 June 1994 AR 81,800,000 stores and supermarket
RE/REARE chain stores
1994465250 REBEEREHBT
Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,731,982,546 - 82.8  Investment holding and
(‘Maoye Commercial’) 31 December 1993 NE#1,731,982,5467T operation of department
EEBERMERAD (MREHR) hE,/REIARE stores
1993&12831H REERKRCEHER
Chengdu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB48,000,000 - 79.35  Investment holding
HBXEEXERAT" 18 March 1998 AE#48,000,0007 REER
I,/ REARE
19985835 18H
Chengshang Group Nanchong Maoye Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
(“Nanchong Maoye”) 20 November 2001 AE#20,000,00075 store
HMEEERRXETEERAT I/ RElARE KErEE
(ERRE) 20015118208
Nanchong Zefu Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB21,500,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
BREGRHEERLF 5 November 2014 AR #21,500,0007T store
hE,/REIARE KEBERE
2014511858
Nanchong Zhimei Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB3,800,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
ARGEBEERLA" 17 November 2014 AR #3,800,0007T store
I,/ REARE KEBER
2014118178
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

FARTEMBADNEENT : @)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERITRARE VNG|
GIET AERE £t R RIAEEEfESs BEEZESE TEED
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Chengshang Group Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,378,417,349 - 82.8  Property leasing
(‘Chengshang Group') 9 March 1998 ARH1,378,417 3497 MERE
RESEERERLE (HEEE) e,/ REARE
1998F359H
Leshan E'mei Shan Chengshang PRC/Mainland China RMB33,730,000 - 66.24  Operation of a hotel and
Phoenix Co., Ltd. 11 March 1997 AE33,730,0007T provision of ancillary
2lmEELESERERENBRAT" e,/ REARE services
1997438 11H KR MR HEERT
Chengdu People’s Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
(Group) Mianyang Co., Ltd. 13 September 2007 A B #5,000,0007% store
MEARES KB) BHEERAE" e,/ REIARE KEBER
2007495 138
Chengshang Group Chengdu People’s Department PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding and
Store Co., Ltd. 21 August 2009 A %20,000,0007¢ operation of department
REEERAARERERAT" RE/ R AR stores
2009F8A21H RELRKEERERE
Chengdu Maoye Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
R REMEERLT 15 July 2008 A E8,000,0007C BHEZR
B/ RE AR
2008F7A15H
Heze Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 74,52 Operation of a department
HERRAEBRNT” 29 December 2008 AR #5,000,0007 store
I,/ REIARE KEBER
2008128290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATTEWBATHFENT : (@)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRAE VNG|
G AfREX MR RIVEE/ HMES EEEEEME  TEED
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Jiangsu Maoye Department Stores PRC/Mainland China RMB325,000,000 - 100  Property development
IBEXRBEEERLT” 9 May 2012 AR 325,000,007 BHELR
RE,/REARE
20124F5H9H
Baotou Maoye Dongzheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 26 October 2011 AE 10,000,000 BHELE
(‘Baotou Maoye Dongzheng’) g,/ hE AR
AETREREFMERZERAF 20114108268
(MBERERE) "
Laiwu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
RREEBEXBERRT" 25 December 2012 20,000,007 store
e/ REARE KEBEE
20125128250
Shenzhen Maoye Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB545,465,800 - 100 Investment holding
(“Shenzhen Maoye Investment’) 24 August 2012 B #545,465,8007T REZR
HRERELREBAD RIELERE) > T/ HEAE
2012488248
Shenyang Anli Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB133,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
("Shenyang Anli’) 4 August 2005 AR #133,000,00075 property management
ERRUBXCEEREANE (TERRIL) +E/PEAR RERRRNEERE
2005F8H4H
Shenyang Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 99  Hotel business
ERRRBEERRT" 30 August 2007 AR 10,000,007 BEXEH
B/ REA R
2007485 30A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEKRERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

FARTEMBADNEENT : @)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERITRARE VNG|
GIET AERE £t R RIAEEEfESs BEEZESE TEED
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Liaoning Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 - 99.94  Investment holding and
(‘Liaoning Logistics’) 12 May 2003 AE#78,000,0007c property development
EEMRERAD (REWR) e,/ REARE REERKREHERR
2003558128
Shenyang Zhanye Property Co., Ltd. (‘Zhanye”) ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB245,000,000 - 50.94  Property development
EEELENERAG (BE)™ 2 September 1999 AR #245,000,0007% EHELE
hE,/ B AR
19999721
Shandong Weizhou Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
RN ERBRLE™ 11 August 2009 AR %50,000,0007 BHELE
I,/ REIARE
200988118
Qinhuangdao Maoye Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB515,000,000 - 100  Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. 4 January 2012 AE#515,000,0007% operation of a
REBREEHERRERAG RE/RE AR department store
201261 A 4H BHEZRREERERE
Qinghuangdao Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
FEERREXBHERBEERAT 19 May 2016 A E8,000,0007C BHEZR
e,/ REARE
201658198
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB135,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 8 August 2000 AR 135,000,0007T BHEZE
FEETeRBEHEREERAT B,/ REIARE
200048H8H
Zibo Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100  Property development
HEREEEERNF 29 November 2013 AR #20,000,0007T BHAEZRE
e,/ REARE
20135118290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AERERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATTEWBATHFENT : (@)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRAE VNG|
NGRS AERE £t R RIVEE/ HMES EEEEEME  TEED
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Housing Decoration PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100  Property leasing
Market Co., Ltd. 20 November 2003 AR #1,000,0007 EZEE
RERERRBRENMPERLF hE,/REARE
2003115200
Qinhuangdao Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB342,301,588 - 100  Operation of a supermarket
ZEERXBEEERLE" 26 June 2001 AR 1342,301,5887¢ KegaiE
hE,/REIARE
2001465260
Qinhuangdao Maoye Property Management PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Property leasing
Co., Ltd. 26 June 2001 A 15,000,0007 EZEE
REBREMERBERLF I,/ REARE
2001465260
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Business Management PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 100  Property management
Co., Ltd. 14 April 2001 AR 140,000,0007% MEEE
REBTERAEEEERECNE" hE,/REARE
2001545148
Anhui Guorun Investment and Development PRC/Mainland China RMB294,330,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Co., Ltd. (*Anhui Guorun”) 4 October 1998 A 294,330,0007T property development
ZHEBREZRER D) (RHEE) I,/ REIARE RERREEHAELR
1998510544
Chuzhou Maoye Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB70,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 25 April 2003 AR 70,000,000 BHEERE
BNEERERRERAE" I,/ REARE
2003545250

190 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % Bl EZR5 RA T

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FE#R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

FARTEMBADNEENT : @)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERITRARE VNG|
GIET AfREX MR RIAEEEfESs BEEZESE TEED
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Wuhu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 100  Property development
BARREXBRAT” 16 May 2002 AR 110,000,0007 BHELR
e,/ REARE
200258168

Huainan Maoye Investment and Development PRC/Mainland China RMB31,600,000 - 100  Property development
Co., Ltd. 26 March 2002 AR 31,600,0007 BHELR

ERREREREERAA B/ REA R

20024F35 268

Chengdu Maoye Renhe Spring Department PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. (‘Chengdu Renhe Spring”) 29 October 1997 AE#40,000,0007T store

BT R CNEREEERLT I,/ REARE KEBER

(T #CREX) 1997£10829H

Chengdu Qingyang District Maoye Renhe PRC/Mainland China RMB185,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Spring Department Store Co., Ltd. 29 November 2007 R #185,000,0007c store
(‘Chengdu Qingyang Renhe Spring’) R,/ FREIARE =)

BT EEEXECNERTEERLT 20074115298

(T#BEFCHER) "

Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial (Group) PRC/Mainland China RMB170,000,000 - 70,38 Investment holding
Co., Limited 12 June 2002 AE#170,000,0007c and operation of a
(‘Victory Commercial’) RE/RE AR department store

NELESHIES (CE) BRAF 2002468128 RERRELERERS

(e RmE) "
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REREEEH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATTEWBATHFENT : (@)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRAE VNG|
G AfREX MR RIVEE/ HMES EEEEEME  TEED
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Inner Mongolia Victory Xincheng Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 70,38 Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 15 January 2008 AR #140,000,0007T store
AR LESTIEEEERR AR hE,/RE AR KEBEE
2008518150
Inner Mongolia Jinweili Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 24 March 2015 AE10,000,0007% store
AR O SN EEERRRAT" hE,/REIARE KEBaE
20155F3A248
Baotou Maoye Victory Business Management PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Limited 14 November 2019 AE10,000,0007T store
BETXFE SN EEERERLT I,/ REARE KEBERE
2019118148
Baotou Victory Mall Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 70,38 Operation of a department
BEDRSNEEERAT" 14 April 2009 AR 10,000,007 store
hE,/REARE KEBEE
2009545 14R
Baotou Victory Commercial Management PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
Co., Limited 28 October 2013 AE#3,000,0007% store
AENH LA BRERERAT" hE,/REIARE KEBaE
20135108 28H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEKRERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

FARTEMBADNEENT : @)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERITRARE VNG|
GIET AfREX MR RIAEEEfESs BEEZESE TEED
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Hohhot Victory Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 70,38 Property development
Co., Limited 29 November 2001 A E%30,000,00070 BHELR
WRER SR EREERLE" e,/ REARE
20011158294
Hohhot Victory Property Management LLC PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 70.38  Property leasing
WRER SRR EREE LT 25 January 2008 AE500,00070 EZEE
hE/RE AR
200841525
Maoye Data Intelligence Information Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 S 98  Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited 23 January 2017 AE#10,000,0007T REER
REHBMAERRM (R BRAE e,/ RE AR
201718238
Baotou Maoye Property Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Property management
BEREEXBERAT” 20 September 2019 AR #10,000,0007T NEER
e,/ REARE
201959H20H
Maoye Technology Retails Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding
RERKTEBRAT 16 December 2019 AR #10,000,0007T REER
e/ RE AR
20195128168
Chengdu Renhe Investment Co., Ltd™* PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 S 82.8  Investment holding
RBCHNREBRAT™ 22 August 2011 AE%100,000,0007¢ REER
e,/ RE AR
2011588228
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREEREH @

ERMBARNER (@

AATTEWBATHFENT : (@)

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRAE VNG|
NGRS AERE £t R RIVEE/ HMES EEEEEME  TEED
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Hefei Yerun Trading Co., Limited** PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
aEXBEEERAT 04 September 1998 AR 20,000,007 REER
hE,/REARE
1998597 4H
Wuhu Maoye Agricultural and Sideline PRC/Mainland China RMB22,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Products Market Co., Limited™ 10 June 2006 AR #22,000,0007T REER
FHXERRERTSERAT hE,/REIARE
2006565 108
Chengdu Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd™ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Hotel business
RBXEEERERAT" 12 November 2019 AR #10,000,0007 BEER
I,/ REARE
2019118128
Chengdu Group Mianyang Department PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of department
store Co,, Ltd 3 February 2015 AR 15,000,000 store
REERRGREBEERAT hE,/REARE KErEE
201582831
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

* A subsidiary with its A shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC

ok

Companies registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

# During the year, the Group acquired a 100% interest in Chengdu Renhe Investment
Co., Ltd. (‘Renhe Investment’) from a third party. Further details of this acquisition
are included in note 37 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

REIREEER @

ERMBARNER (@
TATEEZMBABRFENT : (@

Y —REPE BRSSP EHRARKE
NS

* o REBTBZEEEMABREEATNAHE

fOER AERB 2B = A WEREBCIE
BERAE (MZFKE]) B9100%# @ o 5%
RIEBEENE T R BEN M B RERM
3370

EERR LRFIITHRBEFERE
EXNERERENEEABAEERNE
EFEIERINERACMBEAR B
ERR REEMMBADNFEERE
RBBER AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2ARNEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income (‘FVOCI”) which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB7,719,025,000. The Group’s ability to repay its
debts when they fall due relies heavily on its future operating cash
flows and its ability to renew the bank loans and other borrowings.
The directors have carefully assessed the Group’s liquidity position
having taken into account:

(1) the Group’s expected cash inflows from operating activities in
2021;

(2) the bank borrowings that will expire during the next 12 months,
which the directors of the Company are confident that could be
renewed upon expiration based on the Group’s past experience
and credit standing; and

(8) the unutilised credit facility of the Group amounting to
RMB961,210,000 as at 31 December 2020.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group has adequate
resources to continue operation for the foreseeable future of not less
than 12 months from the end of the reporting year. The directors of
the Company therefore are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

HE2020F12831HIEEE
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 21 REEE @)
Basis of consolidation SHEE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

LSRG B REATERE E2020F
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 21 RREEE ()
Basis of consolidation (continued) BHEE @
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if HEBRIERER XAt =181 HIR
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or EN—ERLZEHRBEE AEBETE

more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises () the
fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised IFRSs for the first time for
the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IFRS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

(early adopted)
Amendments to IAS 1 and Definition of Material
IAS 8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised IFRSs are described below:

@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set
of concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework
is not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The
Conceptual Framework did not have any significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(©

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative
risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide temporary
reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative
RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does not
have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to IFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or
less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change; (i) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there
is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and
shall be applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly
lease payments for the leases of the Group’s office buildings
and retail stores have been reduced or waived by the lessors as
a result of the pandemic and there are no other changes to the
terms of the leases. However, the Group elected to apply lease
modification accounting, rather than variable lease payment
for all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of
the pandemic during the year ended 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments arising from
the rent concessions of RMBG37,928,000 has been accounted
for as a lease modification by derecognising part of the lease
liabilities and crediting to right-of-use assets for the year ended
31 December 2020.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective in these financial

statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3
Amendments to IFRS 9,

IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 17
Amendments to IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2018-2020

[ I N SR ST

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*
Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts® ©

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts —
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to IFRS 1,
IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 412

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
As a consequence of the amendments to IAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October

2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

6 As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1

January 2023
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 ENEM{E M R E BV B PR B 75 2R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC-Int 21
if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or
IFRIC-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 B fEf{E M R 4 X BV B PREA 75 3R
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to
be updated without adjusting the carrying amount when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash
flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition are
dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure
and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide
a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the
hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and
shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 ENEM{E M R E BV B PR B 75 2R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s
interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date
of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB
in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are
available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of
the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

e |FRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

e |FRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
or generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group. Liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previously held
equity interests, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower
than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ETHBERBME @
POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued) E¥FaHREE®

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment loss. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset takes place either
in the principal market for the asset, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHEBERBE ®
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued) NREETE @

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets JEERMBERE
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment NMEPRERNEIRAENERNEEET

testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract
assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as
held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family

or

and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group (or of
a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vil

=

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost (or valuation) less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement
of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits
is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation based
on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHEBERBE ®

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

WME BB R R BURITE (@
WEDREYE -BERREEE NG
SR AFIRAUES ERIEEMEAE
RpEESESH -MUILPAEANEE
FITEXRWT

Annual depreciation rate

FiEX

Land and buildings TR AETF
Machinery and equipment 33 Rt
Motor vehicles RE
Furniture, fittings and other equipment
Leasehold improvements HEMEEE
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ETHBERBME @
POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties BREME

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For
a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost, which include all
development expenditures, including land costs, interest charges and
other costs directly attributable to such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project
is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development (continued)

Properties under development are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period and any
excess of cost over the net realisable value of an individual item of
properties under development is accounted for as a provision. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business as determined by management with reference to
the prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component and non-lease component(s), the Group adopts the
practical expedient not to separate non-lease component(s) and
to account for the lease component and the associated non-lease
component(s) (e.g., property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date of the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities is
recognised, initial direct costs, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the asset as follows:

Land use right
Buildings

20 to 40 years
2 to 23 years

If ownership of leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the
asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHEBERBE ®
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued) HE @

Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Lease that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FEFHBEEEBE @
POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets RERHMEMEE
Initial recognition and measurement LGRS 51 &

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows are selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debts investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continueq)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument
with the same terms and the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirely as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

— therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

— the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 T EGFBEREIE @
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EHEBEERE @
General approach (continued) —mR % (#8)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime

ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EFHBRME @
POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued) EREE @
Financial guarantee contracts HHEERSA

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with
the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not re-measured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
merchandise is determined on the moving weighted average method
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of
the total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold properties.
Net realisable value is estimated by the directors based on the
prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ETHBERBME @
POLICIES (continued)
Provisions B

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised based on the fair value of bonus
points or coupons granted to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus point scheme and the Group’s past experience
on the level of redemption of coupons and are recorded in other
payables. The revenue of the Group is deducted when the coupon
liabilities are recognised.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ETHBERBME @
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued) FRriSH @

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@) Direct sales of merchandise and sales of properties
Revenue from the direct sales of merchandise and sales of
properties is recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer.

(b) Commissions from concessionaire sales
Commissions from concessionaire sales are recognised upon
the sale of merchandise by the relevant concessionaires, which
is taken to be the point in time when the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

(c) Management fee income from the operation of department
stores is recognised when management services are rendered.

(d) Administration and management fee income, promotion income
and credit card handling fees from suppliers and concessionaires
are recognised when services are rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ETHBERBME @
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued) W ATESR (@)
Revenue from other sources B AR if iz

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Retirement benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are covered by government-regulated defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes under which the employees
are entitled to a monthly pension. The Group contributes to these
retirement benefit schemes on a monthly basis at a percentage of the
employees’ salaries. Under these schemes, the Group has no legal
obligation for retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these schemes are expensed as incurred.

Other employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)
Defined benefit plan (continued)

Re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension plan,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtaiiment; and
e the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “employee
expenses”, “other operating expenses” and “finance costs” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

e service costs comprising current service costs and past service
costs

e gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements
e netinterest expense or income

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of 6.65%
has been applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.
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B F2020F12A31HILEE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ETHBERBME @
POLICIES (continued)
Dividends KE

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong use the Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) as their functional
currency. The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries is RMB. As
the Group mainly operates in Mainland China, RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

KRR BERRIRRAG L ERTE
BB R - BERARBNMBREMN
B

HRARBEBEEAAR LB EEZH
AREERERTPHERE > WPHARE
IR R M B0k o I > FRERRG 2
REZRNREIKE  BRIRESAE

B

5

ERABUKREMPRAEHNE BEER
BERBEBHINREZERNBATLL
B (TET)) BENEEE - PENE
AEMNEEB S ARE HNAEH
WS EHETEAETEARE ARER
ERERZ 25 G - AEBBIRAIIN
KRB 5 BRARNES KNSR
XD AR LUMNESRBUNERE
ERBERNREHRNEGRES
BME - GENUMEFEREEEENER

NAER ekt

BINBEEASENIFERERRE
RR 7 BN ERRE - ZIME R B
EtERNIFERREARBEEANEBEE
HNEXBQE RERAABEFEN
IEE TS IR B A £ AU A 55 18 DU FEER
ZBEEANBEEHNHREIBIE—R
Ao XRE MR EtMEEREN B
WSS A A BEWE I E R IEB R
BEBRTEONNEMEER DB
PIFESS °

REEEFAEENRRESNER RRIE
BBEBNNEEEANIFEREENIF
ERaRNAXSWAR > BRZ5H
AR EERDT EIBNNEBEENIE
EREEYFERAEEA MRS
SERMMERBAWRE A AEEFE
ESRZNHWHRBNAENKXZ B
Ho

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIRZE R A RA T

163



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of subsidiaries outside Mainland China are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries outside Mainland
China which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

e Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounted for the contracts as operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not
only to property but also to other assets used in the department
store operations. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was
RMB1,361,122,000 (31 December 2019: RMB1,339,782,000).
Further details are given in note 20.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and
other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and other receivables
is disclosed in note 28 and note 29 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@ current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2020 was RMB19,441,153,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB19,692,166,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 18 to the financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised
tax losses at 31 December 2020 was RMB103,049,000 (31
December 2019: RMB93,603,000). The amount of unrecognised
tax losses at 31 December 2020 was RMBS3,249,367,000
(81 December 2019: RMB2,695,151,000). Further details are
contained in note 25 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories and completed properties held
for sale

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale is
estimated by the directors based on the prevailing market prices.
These estimates are based on the current market conditions
and the historical experience of selling merchandise of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste or competitor actions. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial asset (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Further details, including a sensitivity
analysis of key assumptions, are given in note 44 to the financial
statements.

168 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %% Bl R 5 RA T

3. EXEFHIER &S @

Lt REERER @

B IBE E
HMEEBRBHEMmA BEEKE
AEATE IR EREERERE
FAREGEERRELEREBEEE
ETORIBNEERESEESES
EEEBREBEHRERRA BN
BFRE KR H 2 IR IE R B SR IR
H BB K H B o 722020128318 »
HERIBRIEFERENEILERIE
BEEREEBEAAR®103,049,000
7T (2019F12H31H : AR
93,603,0007T) ° 722020F12 831
H> ABIMNREGBESEAAR
#£3,249,367,0007T (2019512531
H : AR&2 695,151,0007T) o E—
SR IBEN B ERR M 5250

FERITEFE B Sy #) o] &
HFEE
FENTESREFEEEAEEHESR
RN EtEERGT R ER X
FEFECERMENTHIRFE
HEERERTHEETH &
EHEFANERERTIEBEHE
FiEmRNER ATREREYT
BRI HFNITEMA NEXK
o REBENRESHREHTE
ZE Lo

FFTMEERE (BEFIN

AERNSREHPRTERBEIFE
MEE (BEEAREE) BRSF
EREFR -BREFHNETLE
ESFNN LR REETRHER
Ao HMIFEMEENBEPRET
AR B ) B E A W B B E 1T RUE R
Ao EEENRTEEBUNEKE
BEEBHAETKEEE (BRATER
HEMERERABEME PHERS
Z) Ko RFERE AFERHE
AT BB EN R FRAZS
PERORNDIBERZ S HBEIA
BEDENGRHEEENEERE
stE R REREER  BEEAR
Lt REEENREELEMTE
HARRRERE REEBEER
KUt EREREABNIRE &
—HFE (BEIRERNBRED
i) B BRI 5E44 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FE#R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 43 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group to
determine the comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates
about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group
classifies the fair value of these investments as Level 3. The fair
value of the unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2020
was RMB651,745,000 (2019: RMB573,967,000). Further details
are included in note 24 to the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprise established in Mainland China. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised, based upon the
likely dividends declared. Further details are contained in note 25
to the financial statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on the nature of their operations and their products and
services and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

@)

()

the operation of department stores segment comprises
concessionaire sales, direct sales of merchandise and the
leasing out of commercial properties for the operation of
department stores by third parties;

the property development segment is principally engaged in the
development and sale of commercial and residential properties
as well as the leasing out of commercial properties other than for
the operation of department stores; and

the “others” segment comprises, principally, operations of hotels,
and the provision of ancillary services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss attributable to
owners of the parent.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RBEFEEE @

Intersegment revenue and transfers are transacted with reference DEEWAREEE2REERFED
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then BIEERE=AMEANEEETN-
prevailing market prices.

Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores development Others eliminations Total
g B
BEE  NEEZE Ht Jdiin s izt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR ARETR AREFRT ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE020F12831BILEE
Segment revenue: DEHBA
Sales to external customers HETIHMIZR 3,634,456 3,137,800 139,495 - 6,911,751
Intersegment revenue DEBBA - 4,338 - (4,338) -
Other income EfA 1,067,437 19,770 17,427 - 1,104,634
Cost of sales HEMK (1,448,034)  (1,767,534) (15,605) - (3,281,179)
Employee expenses EEHEY (325,267) (37,769) (52,179) - (#5215
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (895.278)  (148,237) (39,840) - (1,083,355)
Payments for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 1EEEf ERIEEEEEMRERS (8,184) (1,460) (1,289) - (10,933)
Other operating expenses AR (966,485 (123,061) (59,745) 4338  (1,144,959)
Other gains and losses Hitlm REsE (419,184) (404,136 (2,617) - (82593)
Operating profit{oss) meflR/ (58 639,461 679,711 (14,353) - 1,304,819
Finance costs HEMA (187481)  (444,047) - - (1,231,528)
Share of profits and losses of associates and a joint venture  FEfEHE AT RASAEER (8,253) (1,182) - - (9,435)
Profit/loss) before tax BiRmRE/ B8 (156,273) 234,482 (14,353) - 63,856
Income tax expense FrEmms (36,042  (276,814) 4 - (312859
Loss for the year REFH (192,315) (42,332) (14,349) - (048,9%)
Attributable to: T AT
Owners of the parent BARRERBEA (209,592) 49,048 (14,092) - (174,630)
Non-controling interests FERREER 17,217 (91,380) (257) = (74,360)
(192315) (42332  (14349) - (248,996)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REREER @

Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores development Others eliminations Total

i A
BRE  NRER 5t R 3t
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR AREBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

Other segment information: HftnErEs
Impairment losses recognised!/reversed) BRRTHD/ BE) NAESETE
in the statement of profit or loss, net (577) 167 (19) - (429)

Impairment of properties under development EETMEAE - 64,323 - - 64,323

Impairment of investment in an associate R-BEHENANRERE 168,302 - - - 168,302

Gain on disposal of shares in an assoclate HER-BREABRMHNE (3,664) - - - (3,664)

Goodwil impairment BEHE 62,607 - - - 62,607

Investments in associates PEERFARE 1,069,334 - - - 1,069,334

Investment in a joint venture AREGERE - 1,091 - - 1,001

Capital expenditure* BARY 176,311 2,788,773 23 - 2,965,107

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * EBAHTBREREYE BERRE KREY
investment properties, properties under development, other intangible assets = EEPYE -AMNEEEEANTERED
and completed properties held for sale including assets from the acquisition of ZERYE AP aERE—BNBARNE
a subsidiary. Eo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RREFWER @
QOperation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others  eliminations Total
&eg BE
BEE  MEERE Hft R st
RVB'000  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE019F12A31ALERE
Segment revenue: KA
Sales to external customers HEFIMIER 4639415 1,437,762 190,216 - 626739
Intersegment revenue 1N - 6,304 - (6,304) -
Other income =X 1,604,076 39,156 29,936 - 1673168
Cost of sales HEMK (1,586,641)  (836,824) (20,174) - (2443639
Employee expenses BERY (444,554) (46,312) (78,256) - (569,122
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (921,170)  (147,440) (38,525) - (1,107,135)
Payments for short-term leases and leases of HAHERIEEEEANERS
low-value asssts (29,356) (1,133) (1,332) - (31,821)
Other operating expenses EfiTEh s (1159,948)  (156,040) (68,925) 6,304  (1,378,609)
Other gains and losses Efts keS8 224,210 58,326 9,214 - 291,750
Operating proft B2HE 2,326,032 353,799 22,154 - 2701985
Finance costs BERA (873,698)  (446,916) - - (1,320,614)
Share of profits and losses of associates and BUEBEAERAELEER
ajoint venture (266,648) (1,429) - - (268,077)
Profit/(loss) before tax BiRERE/ (B8 1,185,686 (94,546) 22,154 - 1,113,204
Income tax expense RS (414,438 (223,.924) (3,886) - (642,248)
Profit/{oss) for the year KEFE/ (58 771,248 (318470) 18,268 - 471,046
Attributable to: WTALRERS:
Owners of the parent BRARERFEA 444787 (277,042) 18,517 - 186,262
Non-controling interests FERERER 326,461 (41,428) (249) - 84784
771,248 (318470) 18,268 - 471,046
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BEDWER @
Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others  eliminations Total
&g B
BEE  WEER Htr hitisi st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR AREBTR ARBTR ARETT ARETR
Other segment information: HitpEEs
Impairment losses recognised in the statement of BRExTRINAESEEE
profit or loss, net 96,879 1,247 = = 104,126
Losses on disposal of shares in an associate HE-HHERERNNER 116 S S = 116
Goodwill imparment BERE 55,315 - - = 55,315
Investments in associates REEAFRE 1,868,366 = = - 1,868,366
Investment in a joint venture R-HAELERE - 1,274 - = 1274
Capital expenditure* BREY 22,7178 2,121,210 86 - 2,144,074

*

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,

investment properties, properties under development and other intangible

assets.

The Group’s entire revenue is attributable to the market in Mainland
China. No analysis of geographical information is therefore

presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. However, no sales
to a single customer amounted to 5% or more of the Group’s total

revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
5. REVENUE 5.
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAHWA
Commissions from concessionaire sales NHEIEHERS 1,082,021 1,770,789
Direct sales B 1,575,751 1,750,291
Sale of properties YIEIHE 3,026,404 1,332,818
Management fee income from the KEFaENEEEIRA
operation of department stores 313 755
Revenue from other sources REEMEBENWA
Rental income from investment properties ~ B &Y RSN A 603,151 611,534
Rental income from the leasing of HA s AEE A
shop premises 485,017 612,166
Others Hih 139,094 189,040
6,911,751 6,267,393
Revenue from contracts with customers EREHWA
() Disaggregated revenue information () DA EF
The Group’s entire revenue of goods and services transferred is AEBMECEBRNEYRRBUL
recognised at a point in time. No analysis of timing information is ARE—RERER AL E2
therefore presented. FMEMIRFREE R DT o
The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in TRETSTARSHVENEER
the current reporting period that was included in the contract MR BEARERNBEAOSERE
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised RN AREARNNEEDUN EEEE -

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AERETFIT

Revenue recognised that was included 5T ARG HAYI S & B

in contract liabilities at the beginning BRI -
of the reporting period:
Sale of completed properties HEBB T Y= 1,448,842 86,367

1,448,842 86,367
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

5. XA @)
EREHBRA @

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Direct sales of merchandise and commissions from
concessionaire sales

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

Sale of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on the sale of
properties, the Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers.
Revenue from the sale of properties is therefore recognised at
a point in time when the completed property is transferred to
customers, being at the point that the customer obtains the
control of the completed property and the Group has the present
right to payment and collection of the consideration is probable.

The Group receives deposits from customers when they sign
the sale and purchase agreements. The Group considers that
the advance payment contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, and revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method.

Management fee income

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time when
management services are rendered.

(i)

ERIEIE
ERAEBEBENSENE RN
T

A mE R TEEHE A

EEEEFIRERERRR BN
BEESNE —FBIRER -

LES NS
MFEMERZTRITIUMNSAM
o AEBEERYETERA K
= B 30 4 WA AT SR B9 R 3R Y R 1T
FoHIL  HEMERNWRARBET
YEEET = PR R 0 Bl
ZERERER IV EMEGEMmA
E B EA WA R 2 REFEF] KAl
BEWER B RV B IR, o

FERARTFAREEEHRROE
F U ER & o A B A 0 IR
BEERAERREHBB—FOF
BREBMEBIF > ARBESH
EROWABERERMREFE
MENEEFTIMBIA SR -

BEEWA
BHUEENRUEERSFE ST
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HithrA

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥FT AREF T

Income from suppliers and concessionaires 7R B L FE & K 45 5F S BRI A

— Administration and —THATEBERA
management fee income 705,336 839,617
— Promotion income — {2 EH U A 216,625 530,326
— Credit card handling fees —EREFESE 128,088 194,264
Interest income FEUWA 17,388 60,915
Others Hih 37,197 48,046
1,104,634 1,673,168

7. COST OF SALES 7.

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TF T
Purchases of and changes in inventories EEEYKFEES 1,448,034 1,586,641
Cost of properties sold BEEMERK 1,767,534 836,824
Others Hith 15,605 20,174

3,231,173 2,443,639
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES 8. EEMX%
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETF T
Wages and salaries IT&EKFHE 387,471 501,868
Retirement benefits RIREF 25,456 55,016
Other employee benefits Hith2BEF) 2,288 12,238
415,215 569,122
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed FRNEERFTETHAENFHFMERE L
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of the TRA ~ BB A TEBIE383(1)(@) ~ (b) ~
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies C)RMEUKRRE BEEEFNTZER)
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is HROIFE2EMIREWT ¢
as follows:
2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETFIT
Fees B 693 692
Other emoluments: Hihdlx -
Salaries and allowances K2R 1,108 1,282
Retirement benefits BRIKER 3 27
1,111 1,309
1,804 2,001
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued) 8. EER% @
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BILIEMITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the FRENBIFERTEENREU
year were as follows: T~

Total

Fees remuneration

wE i BN 4B 51

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®T T

Year ended 31 December 2020 EHE2020F12831HLLEFE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing ISR e 213 213
Mr. Rao Yong BRoK A 213 213
Mr. Chow Chan Lum Iy 107 107
Mr. Gao Yajun SomESLE 107 107
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen RE2EL 53 53
693 693
VYear ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12B31HIEEE
Mr. Chow Chan Lum ey v 319 319
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IREE e 213 213
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen REREE 160 160
692 692
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent REE2020F12831H IEFE > #f
non-executive directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 EXNEMMESFTBILIERTES
(2019: Nil). (2019 : ) o

178  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% % Bl 8 A5 R A S ANNUAL REPORT 2020 E R4



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

8. EERX @
b) MITES —RIFRTEERERE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and

the chief executive BITE
Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration
& RiE RARER & B 4 =t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETw ARBFT
Year ended 31 December 2020  #ZF2020F12H31HLEE
Executive directors: HTES !
Mr. Zhong Pengyi EEER 120 - 120
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan BBzt 632 3 635
Non-executive director: EHITESE .
Mr. Wang Bin FiEE 236 - 236
Chief executive: BEHTE .
Mr. Huang Mao Ru mARMAEE 120 - 120
1,108 3 1,111
Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration
e RoRhy RIRTEF] i Aa st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARBFT
Year ended 31 December 2019 B E2019F12831HLEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Zhong Pengyi il S E e 120 - 120
Mr. Liu Bo 2Rt 802 18 820
Non-executive director: EHITEE .
Mr. Wang Bin FiEE 240 9 249
Chief executive: BEHTE .
Mr. Huang Mao Ru mRMEE 120 - 120
1,282 27 1,309

B FE2020F12H31B L EE » i
EHEENEL R B NE T A H N
YL HE (20194F © 4®) o

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AEESHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one FRAIAReHEEBRE —RES
director (2019: one director), details of whose remuneration are set (2019%F | —%EF) » HFMEN X
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the MizE8c EPNE MU (20194 | IO4) &
remaining four (2019: four) highest paid employees who are neither BHEE WIFARBDEETHFETH
a director nor chief executive of the Company for the year are as AB) BFEBNEBIT ¢
follows:

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AR®BFT
Salaries and allowances I e 1,403 2,312
Retirement benefits BIARBH 10 58
1,413 2,370
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose FNBEUTeENIEFEEREHEEA
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: BT
2019
20194
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,00078 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 75 £ 1,500,00078 75 - 1
4 4
10. PAYMENTS FOR SHORT-TERM LEASES AND 10. FEHAHE RBEEEEEHEERX
LEASES OF LOW-VALUE ASSETS
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AE®BFIT
Payments for short-term leases and MHREREEEEEHAERS
leases of low-value assets 10,933 31,821

180 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% % Bl B2 75 R A 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 11. B ERT
2019
20194
Notes RMB’000
B =E ARETF T
Utility expenses UN=ZEii 338,294 391,094
Promotion and advertising expenses BT E&KESEX 84,160 130,403
Repair and maintenance expenses  4fzERI 83,135 106,753
Entertainment expenses AFFY 3,121 5,690
Office expenses YN 34,934 47,481
Other tax expenses HEMiRIERS 325,671 375,433
Professional service fees HERBEH 104,025 105,928
Auditors’ remuneration TZ M & 4,900 4,900
Bank charges IRITFEE 54,903 69,481
(Reversal of impairment)/ FEUR B 5 I8 28
impairment of trade receivables CRE#E) RE (533) 9
(Reversal of impairment)/ [ BE 48 5 FRIE 29
impairment of amounts due CRE#[E) RE
from related parties (5,197) 54,540
Impairment of other receivables H W EORE 29 5,301 49,577
Impairment of properties under BRPYERE 27
development 64,323 -
Others Hih 47,916 37,320
1,144,953 1,378,609

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED & BIEZERER AT 181



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

12. Bt Wi B 6548

2020 2019
20205 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TF AREFT
Loss on disposal of items of HEREYXIEENEIE
investment property (2,993) (14,620)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,  HEMZE \BEK
plant and equipment REEBEED
(B518) /W (95,992) 3,734
Gain/(loss) on partial disposal of HEBEABZBIRDH
shares in an associate W, (B518) 3,664 (116)
Foreign exchange loss, net SNE S I8 F 58 (47,973) (37,555)
Loss on repurchase of USD senior ~ BE[EISETE L EHMEEE
notes (4,546) -
Fair value gain on equity investments A RBETE B EEE A
at fair value through profit or loss BEaERRERANEE
W zm 1,673 427
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEMU AR BESEEHEH)
at fair value through profit or loss FFABENEMEERR 6,726 815
Fair value (losses)/gains on SEMENDEE (BB 18
investment properties W (407,759) 442,987
Dividend income from financial assets KRB MU A A BETEHHEE)
at fair value through profit or loss ABGZHNEMEEN
fig B 1,488 2,070
Dividend income from equity REIEEEAULNABEFER
investments designated at fair HEs) szt A\ B2 mEmRmn
value through other comprehensive — #Z&E IR B UA
income 15,016 22,544
Impairment of goodwill EmERE 20 (62,607) (55,315)
Impairment of investment in REHE N BN ERE 23
an associate (168,302) -
Penalty accrued FEstEi® 32(b) (55,736) (54,871)
Provision for a litigation case —RFEAR RS - (25,000)
Others Hith (8,596) 6,650
(825,937) 291,750
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

13. FINANCE COSTS

13. S Al 4

2019
20194
RMB’000
ARETF T
Interest on bank loans IRITERFHE 1,151,212 1,289,894
Interest on lease liabilities HEaSGHE 176,923 196,542
Interest expense arising from B&AWANT S

revenue contracts - 3,957

Total interest expense on financial liabilites ~ JEIZA A BEFT ABIEH
not at fair value through profit or loss THEEN SRR 1,328,135 1,490,393
Less: Interest capitalised B BEBEREFIR (96,607) (169,779)
1,231,528 1,320,614

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FRSREX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the

Group are domiciled and operate.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempt from the payment of

the Cayman Islands income tax.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands, the
Group is not subject to any tax in the British Virgin Islands.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FRISIRASZ @)

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: 16.5%).

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% (2019:
25%) of their respective taxable income.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures. LAT of RMB117,504,000 was charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB77,299,000).

ERMNSREBEREEE2020F128
S1THIEEEMERERAEN16.5%
(20194F : 16.5%) & °

RIBAERPIERE FENBLARA
FEABRAFE SRR A $225% (20194 :
25%) BUEEMERBMEEFRER (T
EFRER) -

FRED £ ER (T ER ) %30%
ECO%R A ENREMREH LM (EE1E
B B ENERSHREREE T
MERAE BN ERAEYELEE
X EANNTNRES) #ile AR
117,504,000 c T HIBERENHE
2020F12831HIEFEBHFAE@mKRN
kR (20194 : AR#§77,299,0007T) °

2020 2019
20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AEREF T

Current — CIT BN — b EFTIEM 334,695 504,892
Current — LAT BPHEA— I8 (ER 117,504 77,299
Deferred (note 25) IR (Fi5E25) (139,347) 60,057
Total tax charge for the year FRNRFEH = 4ERE 312,852 642,248
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit or
loss before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
income tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the statutory tax rates to the effective rates, are as follows:

2020 20206 Cayman Islands BVI
REHE ERGRTHEE

RMB'000 % RMB'00
\EETT % ARRTT

(Loss)/proft before tax el B8 /78 (74,718) (47

%
% \EETFT % ANEETFT % \EETFT

14. FR1ISMEASZ @

BANBDRAETENBASAENENA
R ZEMRKAEZRBRAT B EIE
BRMERAX B RASRRES
BARRASHNER RAEREKHE
BRMEBERNT

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
&k EARE st
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000

66,204 M7 63,856

Tax at the statutory tax rate BETHEHENRE - - -
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the  ZAEEHERBARRY

distributable profits of the Group's ~ 23kFI B2 EB5%#0

PRC subsidiaries REBRNEELNTE - - -
Lower tax rates for specfic districts 15 &t BAISERE - - -
Profits and losses attributable to hEnAR-HAERE

associates and a joint venture b NAEREE - - -

Income not subject to tax ERBEHRRMA - - -
Expenses not deductible fortax RIS - - -
Tax losses not recognised RERINRIESE - - -
LAT THEER - = -
Tax effect of LAT ThEERNREE 2 - - -
Others Hft - - =

10,924 165 18,105 25 29,029 45

25,503 % - 25,503 4
(4,303) 6 3817 5 (486) (1)
- - 23 3 239 4
- - 63 n (32 @
- - 10 s 13
- - 10102 264 191042 299
- - 754 62 11754 184
- - @) (0316 (46)
3434 5 (107978 (149) (104544)  (164)

Tax charge at the Group's effective.  FAEEERHEE
tax rate HREREY - - -

35,558 5 277,204 362 312,852 489
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Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FRISHRHEY @
2019 2019 Gayman Islands BvI Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BEEE AREARHE &% PEARE st
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
NEETR % \RBTT % \RBTT % \RETT % \RETT %
(Loss)/proft before tax e (58) /5B (322,822) B) 88,807 1,347,314 1,113,204
Tax at the statutory tax rate BETHEHENRE - - - - 14653 165 336,829 %5 351482 2

Fffect of withholding tax at 5% on the  ZEEHERBARRY
distributable profts of the Group's KRR %

PRC subsidiries REBRNBELNZE - - - - 28768 ) - - 28763 3
Lower tax rates for speciic districts 5 EHBHEERE - - - - B 6 (23889 (2 (29661) @3
Poofits and losses attibutable o~ BEAAR-FaELE

associates and a joint venture MR EREE - - - - - - 66,186 5 66,186 6
Income not subject to tax ERBHENRA - - - - - - 1379) [ 21379 @
Expenses not deductible fortax RIS H - - - - - - 2248 2 2462 2
Tax losses not recognised RERINHRIESE - - - - - - 213,209 16 213,209 19
LAT THEER - - - - - - T12% 6 77,299 7
Taxeffect of LAT THERRNIEYE - - - - - - [19329) () (193%) @
Adjustments in respect of HBAERISERENEE

current tax of previous periods - - - - - - (20819 2 (20815 2
Others Rftr - - - - 82m @ (2,70 Q) (25977) )
Taxcharge at the Group's effective. A BERRZHE

fax ate HiER - - - - %7 39 607,881 45 642,248 59
The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to BE ABMENRESEAARE
RMB3,156,000 (2019: RMB10,341,000) is included in “Share of 3,156,0007T (20194 : AR 110,341,000
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of 7O O EREERRTESTE EGHEE
profit or loss. NEBIT H o
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. 1R 2
2019
20194
RMB’000
AREFT
Proposed final BORERIBRE

— Nil — i

(2019: HK1.98 cents) per ordinary share (2019F | BIREZEPR1.98E 1) - 93,131

The board of directors did not propose a final dividend for year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK1.98 cents per ordinary share).

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of RMB174,636,000 (2019: profit RMB186,262,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,140,326,000
(2019: 5,140,326,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

16.

EFEEAEFIRNEE2020F12831H
IEFEMRIPRKRE (2019F  SREZER
1.983) °

BAREBEnAARGEER
(E518) &7

BEREABBENINESADZETEERR
BEANEHFERNEBE AR174,636,000
7t (20194 : #E AR 186,262,000
T REREETEERIMEF
¥ #5,140,326,0008% (20194 :
5,140,326,0008%) st & o

KEBNEE2020F K%2019F12831H
IFFETECSTETHEZER-
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Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % -BERZE
Furniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other  Leasehold Construction
buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
frfi#E
IHEEF RERRE AE REfRE AENERE ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
31 December 2020 2020F126310
At 31 December 2019 and R2019E12831 R

at 1 January 2020: 00F1B1R

Cost A 9,564,223 586,062 15,504 200588 1,580,115 346,366 12,202,948

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment Rt ERIE (2,603,921) (340,526) (3,966) (182,668) (774,567) (6,608 (3,912,256)

Net carrying amount RAFE 6,960,302 245,536 11,628 17,920 805,548 339,758 8,380,602
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated 1202051518

depreciation and imparment (B2 FMERAE) 6,960,302 245,536 11,628 17,920 805,548 339,758 8,380,692
Addttions hE - 1,703 1,213 8,437 164,370 50,969 226,692
Disposals HE (102,376) (995) (308) (497) (41) - (104,217)
Depreciation provided during the year FRiTEEE (411,139 (27,356) (337) (15,560) (113,895) - (568,287)
Transfer to properties held for sale ERERERENE (6,588) - - - - - (6,588)
Transfer to investment properties note 18) ~ EEEHEME (f5£18) (19,151) - - - - - (19,151)
Transfer from construction in progress firEIREA - 3318 - 139 - (3457) -
Transfer from properties under development RS ERMEE A (Fizk27)

(note 27) 485,562 - - - - - 485,562
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) WE-BRELR (raksT) - - - 3 - - 3
Exchange realignment ERAT (1,786) - - (10) - - (1,796)
At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated 120205128318

depreciation and impairment (BRHTERAR) 6,004,824 222,206 12,19 10,432 855,982 387270 82392910
At 31 December 2020: R2020E128318

Cost A 9,736,563 573,183 13,932 208,988 1,721,494 393879 12,648,039

Accumulated depreciation and impairment BAERAE (2,831,739) (350,977) (1,736) (198,556) (865,512) (6,609)  (4,255,129)

Net carrying amount REFE 6,904,824 222,206 12,196 10,432 855,982 387,210 8,392,910
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HZE2020F12831HIEFE
17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. 9% - BERZE @
Fumniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other Leasehold  Construction
builoings equipment vehicles equipment  improvements in progress Total
R EE
IHEEF BERGE RE REMRE HENEEE HEIR :
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETx ARETR ARETR
31 December 2019 20198128310
At 31 December 2018 and R2018E12831H R
at 1 January 2019: 01981818
Cost [ 9,950,247 606,470 15,572 213,508 1,540,686 991,889 13,318,372
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 2t TERI(E (2,200,860) (334,697 (3,691) (178,734) 675,000} 6612 (3,399,59)
Net carrying amount REFE 7,749,387 211,173 11,881 34,774 865,686 985,277 9,918,778
At 1 January 2019, net of acoumulated 201951518
depreciation and impaiment (REHTERAE) 7749387 o7,773 11,881 34774 865,686 985277 9918778
Addttions AE - 2,163 824 2,1% 14,956 405,109 425,847
Disposals HE - (2812 (285) (1,159) (760) = (5,010)
Depreciation provided during the year FRiTERE (423,951) (27,759) (787) (18,796) (89,347) = (560,634)
Transfer from properties held for sale BRERENEEA 5,208 - - - - - 5,258
Transfer to investment properties note 18)  EETHEE (f5E18) (528,951) - - 5 5 (986,103)  (1,515,054)
Transfer to other intangible assefs note 21)  BEZEMENEE (Hz21) - - - - 5 (131) (131)
Transfer from construction in progress fthEIREN 46,899 2,180 - 302 15,013 (64,394) L
Transfer from properties under development & ERIEE A (Hzk27)
fnote 27) 11422 - - - - S 114
Exchange realignment ERHE 238 (15) () 2 - - 216
At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated 12019128318
depreciation and imparment (RRHTERAE) 6,960,302 245,536 11,628 17,920 805,548 339,758 8,380,692
At 31 December 2019: 019125318 :
Cost [ 9,564,223 586,062 15,694 200,588 1,580,115 346,306 12,292,948
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BTERAE (2,603921) (340,526) (3,966) (182,668) (774,567) (6,608)  (3,912,256)
Net carrying amount REEE 6,960,302 245,536 11,628 17920 805,548 339,758 8,380,692
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. Y% - BEREE @)

Amortisation of land lease payments of approximately
RMB3,397,000 during the construction period was capitalised
as part of the construction cost of the department stores under
construction of the Group, and was included in the above additions.

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term leases
and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s land and
buildings pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans
are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the Group
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB174,098,000 as
at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB180,479,000) have
not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is in
the process of obtaining the relevant certificates.

BEHECEARCTEMN T H S i
8 AR 13,397,000t Est AREBE T
HEENESHA 88FELMAEF -

AEBER T REFTHRE PHANE
B WALF REIRRE - R EE A EIS H 5t
BIRITEMMEE R L RIEF 18
P MIEE33 e

AEBREBHNETEFNEES DR
RE A R EEPIETS » AERHTE I IEE
RSB FE& HIRE/FEN 2020512
B31H4A AR ®174,098,0007T (2019
F£12831H : AR#180,479,0007T) ©

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. I8 E%
2020 20205
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BETEBEYME HEEBEME
(BARERE) (EARERE) Hzt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 20201 B1H R EREE 14,550,123 5,142,043 19,692,166
Additions NE - 20,115 20,115
Transfer from property, plant and NYE- -BEREEEA
equipment (note 17) (Fi5x17) 19,151 - 19,151
Recognition of change in fair value of BREREREMEN
property, plant and equipment upon ME-BEREEN
transfer to investment properties NRBEEES 95,342 - 95,342
Transfer from right-of-use assets REPEEESA
(note 19 (a)) (F5E19(a)) 3,108 - 3,108
Transfer from completed properties RRFEHENEER
held for sale MEEA 33,506 - 33,506
Net loss from fair value adjustment ARABEREFEHE (219,873) (187,886) (407,759)
Disposal HE (14,476) - (14,476)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 7202051283101
fREME 14,466,881 4,974,272 19,441,153

190 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% % Bl #Z8 A5 [R A S

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FE#R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REME @
2019 20194
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BB THREYE TEREEME
FANEE) FANEE) HmEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFIT ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 2019F1B1HBIREE 10,672,363 5,661,686 16,334,049
Additions nE - 138,700 138,700
Transfer to properties under development 51 = 3% @ Fh 4 2
(note 27) (HzE27) (24,633) - (24,633)
Transfer from construction in progress RERIEEA
(note 17) (MiEE17) 986,103 - 986,103
Transfer from property, plant and NYE-BERFEEA
equipment (note 17) GEA 528,951 - 528,951
Recognition of change in fair value of REEELEMEN
property, plant and equipment upon Y EN =Yg )
transfer to investment properties NRABEEEE) 796,133 = 796,133
Transfer from right-of-use assets REREEEEA
(note 19 (b)) (#5£19(0)) 504,496 - 504,496
Transfer from investment properties under E7EEIREYEE A
construction 722,753 - 722,753
Transfer to completed investment ERFEERIREDE
properties = (722,753) (722,753)
Net gain from fair value adjustment ARBEREFNE 378,577 64,410 442,987
Disposal HE (14,620) - (14,620)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 7220194128310
REE 14,550,123 5,142,043 19,692,166

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial properties
in Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties consist of one class of assets, i.e.,
commercial properties, based on the nature, characteristics and
risk of each property. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued on 31 December 2020 based on valuations performed
by Worldunion Appraisal, an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at approximately RMB19,441,153,000. Each year, the
Group’s management decides to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuation of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s management has discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 19 to
the financial statements.

AEENREYERMURTEAEDN
ERME AR EFEEALNTN
KEMMER—BEESEHAL ER
EEEEMNMHEE BFHE -BABEEMR
e B E - R2020F12831H » &
ERREVENEFHENAARE
19,441,153,00070  ZBES B H 2
BEMRTT LM BT HETHNEER MK
HogF  AEBNEEEZIRINI TG
MMEasEEEENIISTFE I - ER
REGEHDBAN# - E2 - BUMNES
EERFEEN THEEMBRBRET
HER  AEEEEBEEMGHEERRK
K b EER B EM R — Ko

REMEDUKEHEEAEETE=
73 sF B ES N MBI ARMIEE19
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. IR EWE @&

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s
investment properties pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing
bank loans are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB3,080,986,000 as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
RMB3,057,454,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant

certificates.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

AEBNKREYMEDREPHRBOE
B WALF R EIRRE ° AR EE A H T BiR
TERFRRNCERRBEYENFE
Rl bR

AEBREBNETREYENFRE
BEMARTEBBAIBPEE &
BENEREABAESNFTE HIRE
FEN2020F12B31HAA AR
3,080,986,0007T (2019F12831H : A
R #3,057,454,0007T) ©

AREEER

FEBIKRENENRAAEBERB R
LI

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
2020 12A31A A EfER &

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
AR RAHEM
ERTIZRE EXBAE EXBAE
(B—%) (€t ) (B=#) ik
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®ETT ARETTT AREBTT
Commercial properties & i E - - 19,441,153 19,441,153
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
2019512831 B AR BB E
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
IEREH RABREN
hET IS RE BABWAE BEABAE
(E—) B BE=H) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEFTT AREFTT AREFT AREFTT
Commercial properties Rt E - - 19,692,166 19,692,166

FERAABEAENE —REE K
s, HEE A EHE =R
(20194 : ##)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2019: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. REME @
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key UTAEREYEETHEMBGER
inputs to the valuation of investment properties: Mk R A BB E ¢
Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range
& {ER M EATITBRRENBAE #E
2020 2019
20204 20194
Commercial properties Discounted Estimated rental value RMB12-RMB233 RMB14-RMB284
5 R E cash flow method (per sg.m. and per month) AR#127T AR®147T
ERREREE e (BEHAK/SH) — AR #2337 — AR ¥2847T
Rent growth (p.a.) 2%-6% 2%-5%
HEeFERX
Long term vacancy rate 1%-15% 1%-12%
RPFEX
Discount rate 6%-7% 6%-7%
BT

Residual method

FErBEEE

Comparison method

tEEUE

Budgeted construction cost

to be incurred

(per sg.m.)

REENBEFRZMA (BEHK)
Remaining percentage to completion
FERT IEL

Antmpated developer’s profit margin

LEBESER

Market unit sale rate

(per sg.m)
MEEUEE (BFAKR

RMB13-RMB338
AR#137T
- AR #3387

3%-53%
10%-35%
RMB9,160-
RMB49,700

AE#59,1607T
— AR #49,7007T

RMB14-RMB408
ARB147T
— NE #4087

4%-51%
10%-35%
RMB9,180-

RMB48,100
AR 19,1807

— ANK1%48,1007T

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected
cash flow in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately

determined and differs from the discount rate.
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BEBERRFEERE L AAEBETVRA
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2 (BERLENRKEE fFHEE -
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. IR EWE @&

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate
of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is
then discounted.

A significant increase in the market rent growth rate per annum in
isolation would result in a significant increase in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant decrease in the long term
vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a
significant increase in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental
value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite change in
the long-term vacancy rate.

The residual method of valuation is commonly used in valuing
development sites by establishing the market value of the properties
on an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate deduction on
construction costs, professional fees, contingency, marketing
and legal cost, and interest payments to be incurred, anticipated
developer’s profits, as well as land acquisition costs, interest
payment and profit on land.

The fair values of investment properties are determined using the
comparison method by referring to comparable sale evidence as
available in the relevant market. Comparable properties of similar
size, characteristics and location are analysed and selected for each
investment property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of their
fair values. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
market unit sale rate.

194  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %% Bl 5 RA T

RERENFERRERORAMMLHAA
FERF s AR TR E  ARAYE R K AR R
BE BERUBMESMRE BENE
BREXHHTA (RYERN—@
Bt R o E IR S R E AR AL
PREEE AR [Elf s » WA IR ~ T &
B HEER NENESERRAM
MEMEEM X G o & — R EHK
S AFER > BRI TR N TR R ER
MWERKEEMLFTTER WIRERE

THEHEFRREEBFABEMEER
REMERAADBEKRBEMN RHEEZE
KRR REBFAIER LD GERREY
FRRBEKRBIEIM - —RME » #h{E5
HEEFHHNBRRNES T EHNHETFIE
REREFERHIFEUDOESHRER
REZERBTE M-

ERTE S R AR —RRAREEE
GEE EBBRE MMM B TYENT
BEE BENRFEENERKRE E
XER WARER B RARRA UK
F B BEREHIRFIE - TIHUREEAL
M B AR R E o

REVENAABEBBLSEHEETS
ISR AT EERIH E /R A LEBUE T
WEE - mAFIEREKENENER
AEE > BERDITRIER 555 K5 AE
FEIREI LY - Z A NBESBYN A
BT 5 8H & BEAR AR R R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FE#R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

19. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land use right and
buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
of 20 to 30 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease
terms between 3 and 15 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased asset outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

19.fHE

FEEFREBEA

REFLEEEMNEESH - BIRAME
H—RMEMRABEZWBEEE L
BHAR20E305F  MIREZF L MAEE
BYRRR KA FRES T EARIR BT
MEAAEE B3E1F - —RME » A&
E AR EEMIINNTERE R D HEE

() REREE
AEBERERREENRAER
SEHNT :

Land use right Buildings Total

st 55 F A S it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARETT ARBTT

As at 1 January 2019 FR2019%1B1H 4,581,155 3,232,034 7,813,189

Additions RE - 39,324 39,324

Depreciation charge MERX (168,843) (338,131) (506,974)
Transfer from properties under NERDYMEFA

development 33,450 - 33,450
Transfer to investment properties EREREYE (504,496) - (504,496)
As at 31 December 2019 and 72019F128318 &

1 January 2020 2020E181H 3,941,266 2,933,227 6,874,493
Additions N - 13,062 13,062
Depreciation charge MERX (164,980) (349,024) (514,004)
Transfer to investment properties EEEREYE (3,108) - (3,108)
Covid-19-related rent 8 H#H A BCovid-19

concessions from lessors HEHEEESE - (37,928) (37,928)
Other lease modifications HtESET - 2,493 2,493
As at 31 December 2020 $22020512831H 3,773,178 2,561,830 6,335,008
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HZE2020F12831HIEFE

19. LEASES (continued) 19. 188 @&
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBFAEEA @
(b) Lease liabilities ) HEEE

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

FNHEAENREEREFHNT:

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FT

Carrying amount at 1 January R1BE1EEREE 2,857,485 3,058,470
New leases wmiEE 13,062 39,324
Accretion of interest recognised FERBERF SIL

during the year 176,923 196,542
Covid-19-related rent concessions 7k H H A BICovid-19

from lessors ERATESEE (37,928) -
Other lease modifications HMmiEEEET 2,493 -
Payments BN (415,858) (436,851)
Carrying amount at 31 December 12831 HEREE 2,596,177 2,857,485
Analysed into: DA

Current portion REIER D 262,934 259,977

Non-current portion JERENEL 2,333,243 2,597,508

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 44 to
the financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
19. LEASES (continued) 19. 188 @&
The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBFAEEA @
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are (©) F18m PRI EERAEL T -
as follows:
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TFT AREFT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEMNE 176,923 196,542
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEETERS
assets 514,004 506,974
Expense relating to short-term leases B2 52 HATE & K 5% T AR 20194
and other leases with remaining 1283183 Z Al EmaY
lease terms ended on or before HmmEERRENMEX
31 December 2019 10,784 31,031
Expense relating to leases of BREEEEREMRRARS
low-value assets 149 790
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 8% P FE 2 R IE 42 &8 701,860 735,337
(@ The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows (@ BHEEELNREMEEEKES
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in FHERHNEERRNRRIRE R
notes 38(c) and 40, respectively, to the financial statements. FED NGRS M FIRE W 5E38(c)
A0 55 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

19. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 18) consisting of
commercial properties and shop premises in Mainland China under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB1,088,168,000 (2019: RMB1,223,700,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in the future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

19.7H8 @

TEBEEAEHBEA
AEERBRKESHEZHHAEKLEY
% (f15E18) » BENTEAMNEEY
ENEHEM ZEHENERITER
AL HRFRETRIBEESRMNIRTH
METTHESAZE REREAEERDN
ERRHEEWA R AKT1,088,168,000
7t (2019% : AR #1,228,700,0007T) °
EENNZELE e SR

R2020F 128310 HEAEBE R A
HA B 2 ol #4810 & 1Y e Uk Y
ReHEAEmRENT

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Within one year —FRN 859,312 1,040,828
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE_EFRE(FEREEN) 1,593,695 2,097,656
After five years LF®E 678,494 998,230
3,131,501 4,136,714
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
20. GOODWILL 20. HE
2019
20194
Note RMB’000
B 5 AREFT
At 1 January: R1B18 :
Cost D%:N 1,685,973 1,685,973
Accumulated impairment RETRE (346,191) (290,876)
Net carrying amount IRmEFE 1,339,782 1,395,097
Cost at 1 January, net of R1BE1HBI A
accumulated impairment (NrEHHE) 1,339,782 1,395,097
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — M B N ) 37 83,947 =
Impairment provided during the year £ QR B 8 & 12 (62,607) (55,315)
Cost and net carrying amount 12831 H B R A K AR R (E
at 31 December 1,361,122 1,339,782
At 31 December: P12A318 ¢
Cost DN 1,769,920 1,685,973
Accumulated impairment KEtBE (408,798) (346,191)
Net carrying amount IRmEFE 1,361,122 1,339,782
Impairment testing of goodwill EERE R

BEEHFCGHBBIBEDETUTER
TELEMU ((REEEEM) ETRE

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) for impairment testing:

Al
e operation of department stores e BHEHEKE
e property development o WEEIIE
e others o Hfh
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

20. GOODWILL (continued)

20. HE ®)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management. The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
ranged from 12% to 14% (2019: 12% to 13%). Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
of 3% (2019: 3%). The key assumptions adopted on growth rates
and discount rates used in the value in use calculations are based on
management’s best estimates.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease in the growth
rate by 10% to 15% would cause the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit to be under its recoverable amount by approximately
RMB18,768,000 to RMB35,082,000, and any reasonably possible
change in the other key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs are
as follows:

Operation of

EERRERR @
BEREEFEMNOWNEEREZERAEB
{ED+§/£EEKE°;ZD+§/£T§)EHL/{ IR 2
HERABEFNUBREARENR
fébu%%é\ﬁu i ﬁﬁﬁi\fﬁiuu§$ﬁ EIJE’JHS
WENR12%E14% (20195 1 12%F
13%) o AFEM FNIRERERAETIE
REIWHEEN (20194 1 3%) 5t HFERE
BRFTAEREERAMIBEMRANTEE
REDENEEBNREMET -

ANBEETRA WERXRTEIOBE
156% JEEER/RBEEELEEUN
FEEERETKREISENOARKE
18,768,0007t & A R #35,082,0007T > &z
BB EM E B RENE
MEET I FEEBIREEEEN
RIEREE B A E A YR [C] £ &8 ©

DETFTERcELEUNBHEREEN
T

department Property
stores  development Others Total
BHERE MERR Hith Bzt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2019 12019512831H 1,338,229 - 1,553 1,339,782
At 31 December 2020 1202051283185 1,275,622 83,947 1,553 1,361,122

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs
for 31 December 2020 and 2019. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management has determined the
budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its
expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the respective units.

Purchase price inflation — Management has considered the possibility
of increases in purchase price inflation ranging from nil to 5% (2019:
nil to 5%).
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SELBENTEABERBZERR XU
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. HE @)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) HERERS @)
The values assigned to the key assumption on market development HREELFBUNTHEER BBEEXERK
of CGUs, discount rates and purchase price inflation are consistent EEEBRNEERFZATAEMENINE
with external information sources. BRRRE— e
Management performed impairment testing of goodwill annually EEEEFETHERENE IR H
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate REHHIBEREE) B RIREERSER
that the carrying value may be impaired. During the year ended 31 ERREREMET R E - Bl E20205F
December 2020, due to the operating performance decline among 12B31BLEFEE > ThHEREFHBE UL
business units which affected the recoverable amounts of the cash- ERIFEE BRI CMER LA
generating units of Chengdu Renhe Spring and Chengdu Qingyang BEFCMERNBEEELE A 2T
Renhe Spring, goodwill of approximately RMB24,529,000 and SR WO R ANR 24,529,000t K A
RMB38,078,000 was impaired respectively. (R 138,078,000t & B R(E °
21.OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2. HithiE B E
Computer software
SrEEER MG
2020 2019
20205 20194F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR%TT AREEFIT
Cost at 1 January, net of P1B1E M
accumulated amortisation (0BRE T ) 46,165 50,611
Additions NE 255 183
Amortisation provided during the year 4 P9 $4 1 (4,831) (4,760)
Transfer from construction in progress £} L2888 A 17 - 131
At 31 December PM12831H 41,589 46,165
At 31 December: K12A318
Cost D% 110,284 110,029
Accumulated amortisation Ege (68,695) (63,864)
Net carrying amount REEE 41,589 46,165
Computer software is amortised on the straight-line basis over five FEMERHERESEITEFRTUE
years. o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

2 NEETENRE

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
120205 20195
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T [EUNSCESE
Share of net assets FE(LE EFE 1,091 1,274
1,091 1,274
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: KEBGETLEFBNTRUOT :
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business to the Group activities
FEMERN
RENBRT E=E 44
RERTE BieEE  AMREEME B TEEK
Jiangsu Qinghehong Beverage Ordinary shares of PRC/ 50% Beverage industry
Management Co., Ltd. (“Qinghehong Beverage’) RMB1 each Mainland China BUEHTE
TEBENARREEERAR (NEMARS) AR /B8R PE/HEARE
23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. NEEATNKRE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 20194
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARHFT
Share of net assets FEILEERE 600,484 875,423
Goodwill on acquisition W & 468,850 992,943
1,069,334 1,868,366
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. R E AR E @
Particulars of the material associates are as follows: BEZMERBFBITRAT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of  registration and attributable Principal
Name issued shares held business to the Group activities
FEEEMN
HANBEET FRE RS
REVLTE BeE MRS ME B TEER
Shenyang Commercial City Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares of PRC/ 24.22% Operation of
(‘Commercial City”) RMB1 each Mainland China department stores
EREERRNERAD (X)) AR¥1/EBR  PE/FEAE REBaEE
Zhongjiabochuang Information Technology Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares of PRC/ 12.50% Information
(“ZJBC”, formerly Maoye Communication Network RMB1 each Mainland China transmission and
Co., Ltd)) AR/ &BKR  FE/REAE IT services
RERBAEERIMRNERAR (PEER S EEERITRY
AIBARERERERNBRAR)
Shenzhen UGO E-Commerce Co., Ltd (‘UGO”) Ordinary shares of PRC/ 58.83% Electronic
FHEREEFEHEERAR ((BRE) RMB1 each Mainland China commerce
ARSI/ EEKR B/ FEAE EFHEB
(i) Commercial City () B
Commercial City, which is considered a material associate of the BERREAEAERNEERESE A
Group, is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the retall B RAAEBRNESEENHKE
industry and is accounted for using the equity method. HRIRERDIEARKC
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i) Commercial City (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Commercial City adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements:

@

[E3 46

23. R E AT E @)

TRIVTEEME R G 5T EERAIE
AERRBEEEMBRENEREE
HERIFHAERNMBERE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20204 20194F
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEFIT
Current assets MENEE 1,165,418 1,193,640
Non-current assets EREEE 2,034,350 2,111,672
Current liabilities MBS (2,611,042) (2,550,890)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (18,359) (18,366)
Non-controlling interests of the associate ~ Bt& /A B FFIERR IR SR (307,677) (308,529)
Net assets BEFE 262,690 427,527
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEFE TEEHE 262,690 427,527
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HAEERBE QBN
the associate: HEmEITHIR -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership A& E FT{h P A LA 24.22% 24.22%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEFELBE QT
associate, excluding goodwill BEEZRE TEEHE 63,624 103,547
Goodwill on acquisition W mE 32,412 32,412
Carrying amount of the investment KENIREE 96,036 135,959
2020 2019
2020£F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARFTT
Revenue WA 195,609 334,424
Loss for the year FRNEE (164,836) (126,726)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~— FE iR & EIB42%E (164,836) (126,726)
Fair value of the Group’s investment KEBKENANEE 223,474 245,476
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(i) ZJBC

(ii)

ZJBC, which is engaged in the E-communication industry, is a
material associate of the Group and is accounted for using the
equity method. In 2020, the Group sold 9.99% of the shares in
ZJBC. Subsequent to the partial disposal of shares, the Group
directly holds 12.50% of the shares in ZJBC. Management
determines that the Group still has significant influence over

ZJBC. During the year, an impairment of RMB168,302,000
(2019: Nil) was provided for the investment in ZJBC.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of ZJBC adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements:

23. R E AR E @

hEEal
FEEAFEREEFEEE
IDAREEZEAMERNE RERE
TIEARR 12020 ) AEB HE TR
= 1HA1899.99% 817 - R EZ 5 AR
e AEREEFEYTEEAN
12.50% M - BB B ERER
AEFPZHABEAZE I -FER>
TR REANKREFHART
168,302,0007T (20194F : %) MYRIE
Bt o

TRIRPEIBR ERLE 5 BRE

ERER MG E M FHRRIIRE
ERRFHBERRNMHFEE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20205 20194F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETIT
Current assets TENE 1,617,759 1,833,583
Non-current assets IEMEEE 3,518,997 3,643,006
Current liabilities MEIEE (1,948,834) (2,004,763)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (10,367) (106,205)
Net assets excluding non-controlling FRIEIERG B ER R 2 LASMEY
interests BEZFE 3,177,555 3,365,621
Goodwill of an associate BENTINEHE (793,787) (793,787)
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEFE TEEHE 2,383,768 2,571,834
Recondiliation to the Group’s interest in the B A &£ E FY Bt & A TIHY
associate: HEmETHIR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REE F{h P A LA 12.50% 22.49%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEEELBE QT
associate, excluding goodwill BEEFE FTEEEE 323,137 578,521
Goodwill on acquisition Y R
(less cumulative impairment) (RRFHRE) 286,655 818,527
Carrying amount of the investment KENIREE 609,792 1,397,048
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 2B. RBEATNKRE @
(ii) ZJBC (continued) (i) PEBE @
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 20194
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARBFT
Revenue A 2,444,665 3,137,643
Profit/(loss) for the year FRFE (B8 20,550 (1,152,000)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREmEmE (F5I18) 42%8
for the year 20,550 (1,152,000)
Fair value of the Group’s investment KEEKRENAREE 618,100 1,407,277
(i) UGO (iii) BkEE
UGO is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the BREATNEBRNEEHTENE
electronic commerce industry. The Group directly and indirectly BBt - AEEEEMEEZEEEE
holds 58.83% of the shares in UGO. 1 B858.83% I iR 15 o
There is no change in the composition of the board of directors BE2020F12B31HIEEE EF
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Management determines ENERBIEEEC - EEERTE LR
that the Group does not have control over UGO. EEREBRELRZTGIRE
UGO is still considered an associate of the Group and was BERBDEGSALEENKHE A
accounted for using the equity method. B RIRFAREmIEAKe
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

23. REEATINRE @)

(i) 1BHKEE @
TRIRBRESHGHBEENT
AEREESHYBRRNEEE
HIEIEL AR BNHEERIES

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(iii) UGO (continued)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of UGO adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20204 20194
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
Current assets MENEE 227,164 219,634
Non-current assets ERBEE 192,692 180,903
Current liabilities mEIEE (56,567) (85,110)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - =
Net assets excluding PRIEFERR IE SR AT
non-controlling interests BEZFE 363,289 315,427
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEERE TEEHE 363,289 315,427
Recondiliation to the Group’s interest in the B A& E A Bt A B A 25
associate: EITHIER
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEE PP A LA 58.83% 58.83%
Group’s share of net assets of the AEFBELBE AT
associate, excluding goodwill BEEFE FEHEBE 213,723 185,576
Goodwill on acquisition IR = 149,783 149,783
Carrying amount of the investment KENREE 363,506 335,359
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFIT
Profit for the year FRFE 50,839 34,538
Other comprehensive income Hitzmka - =
Total comprehensive income 2EINEEAEEE 50,839 34,538
Carrying amount of the KEBRBMERTREDN
Group's investment in the associate BREE 363,506 335,359
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS 24. TR E
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20205 20195
12831H 12H31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETT AREFTT
Equity investments designated fEEAURABEFER
at fair value through other L E st AR Emmn
comprehensive income: 7% WA
Listed equity investments T RRE 0] 868,788 923,245
Unlisted equity investments JFLEmEREE 0] 651,745 573,967
1,520,533 1,497,212
Financial assets at fair value through M ARBEtEEEEHH A
profit or loss: BamlEMEE .
Listed equity investments ks (ii) 28,028 3,001
Other unlisted investments HMIELmEE (iii) 10,712 206,000
38,740 209,001
1,559,273 1,706,213
Notes: MIsE -
()  The equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through other () BERAEEIDAZEREBNRBEER

comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to be strategic in
nature. In August 2020, the Group sold a listed equity investment as this investment
no longer coincided with the Group’s investment strategy. The fair value on the
date of sale was RMB141,660,000 and the accumulated gain recognised in other
comprehensive income of RMB93,148,000 was transferred to retained earnings.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received dividends in the
amounts of RMB15,008,000 (2019: RMB26,143,000) from invested companies.

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Group’s unlisted equity investment (2019:
RMB361,426,000) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans as further
detailed in note 33.

(i)  The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair value through (ii)
profit or loss as they were held for trading.

(i)~ The unlisted investments at 31 December 2020 were wealth management products (iii)
and precious metal products purchased from banks in Mainland China. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest.

208 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /% % BB =5 5 fR/A 5

5> RAItER &éT‘Jﬁz%ﬂMﬁ EAUR
AEEFEEEEZFH T AEMEENE -
EAZOZOESH AEEBHE—BLFMERK
B HHERILIERESEAREENEERIER

B -RHEABENARABEAARE
141,660,0007t > MR H 2 Em U= Ry
Rt AR 593,148,000 BB EZ 7
BF o

HZE2020FE12831HIEEE  AEBMBBR
BN EUEL IR B A R #15,008,0007T (2019
F : AR¥E26,143,0007T) ©

R2020F12A31H  AEBE T EIE FhiEa
& (20194 | AE¥5361,426,0007T) 14
REMMIRITERWIEIE FAHIE33E—F 5
i) o

PSR ENRFIEEE O BAUAR
BESEEAHZHFABENTREE-

720205 12B31HMIE LMK EAFE K
ERRITHEECEVERNESEEM M
REGHBERETEEAIGEASRA
B RALZEREWARTIBEAUAAEE
FERHESHABRENEREE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
25. DEFERRED TAX 25 IRFEFRIE
Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are UTRERNEEREBEEBEREENED
as follows: =Pl
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEAE
Deemed
Revaluation disposal of
of equity equity
Fairvalue investments investments
adjustment  at fair value at fair value Amortisation
arising from  through other  Revaluation of  through other Deemed Deemed  of prepaid land Capitalisation
acquisition of - comprehensive investment - comprehensive disposal of disposal lease  Withholding of borrowing
a subsidiary income properties income  asubsidiary of an associate payments taxes costs Total
Bf REEE
BEANURR BEANRA
fEEHER {EfE:HEE
KEKERT  HE®HA HEBHA
Bt EfdEkE Hh2EkE RRRE RRRE Bt B
MhEBEEE  NEERE  EMREWE  MEGRE HEAR RERT HEEMEEH B e &5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETR  ARETR  AREfn  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  AREfn  ABBTR  ARETR
At1 January 2019 R019E1A1R 1,304,912 (32,833) 1,868,218 7,380 174,09 12,067 2310 60,824 462,225 3,862,199

Deferred tax debited/(credted) o~ ERTRS/ (31 A)

equiy during the year BEMELHE - 47,139 199033 - - - - S = 26,172
Deforred tax chargedioredited) to - ERRGEABER

the consolidated statementof 3B/ (tA) 19

proft or loss during the year e

(note 14) (FzE14) (59,078) - 108,780 - - = = 27,905 32,285 109,892
At 31 Decerber 2019 and R2019E12831 R
1 January 2020 A0E151H 1,245,834 14,306 2,176,031 7,380 174,096 12,067 %5310 88,729 494510 4,238,263

Deferred tax debited(credited) o~ AT/ GEA)
equity during the year BROETRE - 8,328 - - - - - - - 8,328
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to~ ERI AR
the consolidated statement of HA K
proft orloss during the year e
(note 14) (K1) 39,19

(60,041

(321 (5.3%0) = 2503 08110 (136216)

At 81 December 2020 JR2020125318 1,284,953 2,634 2,005,990 7,380 96,769 6,707 2310 114,232 456,400 4,110,375
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25 IRFEFLIE (@)
Deferred tax assets RIEIRIRE =
Losses
available for Unrealized
Provisionfor  Impairment Expensed offsetting  intercompany
Provisions retirement of current contract Lease against future  transaction ~Advance from
and accruals benefits assets liabilities liabilities ~ taxable profits profit customers Total
A
Bk iR THEE BxH RRERR RER
FRER B A akafl HEEE  AENEE ARHENE ER2% st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETT  ARETn  AB®Tn  ARBTR  ARWTR  A\RETR  ARETR  AREFR  ARETR
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1518 70410 2,265 23,026 5,657 - 81918 397,924 6,236 587,436

Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ ERREEERR
the consolidated statementof 3t A/ (4R3) #0
profit or oss during the year B
(note 14) (Hizk14) 34,252 (389) 8219 (1,880) 24,293 11,685 (36,154) 9,749 49,835

At 31 December 2019 and RO019E12831H R

1 January 2020 2020E1818 104,662 1,876 31,304 31 24,293 93,603 361,770 15,985 637,270
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ ERREEERR

the consoldated statementof 3t/ (1164) B0

proft or loss during the year EIERE

fnote 14 (Hz14) 7,022 (38 16,150 (3,777) 27,262 9,446 @2,191) 3,605 3,131
At 31 Decemoer 2020 Ho00E128318 97,640 1534 47454 - 51,555 103,049 319,579 19,590 640,401
The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB3,661,563,000 as REE2020F12B31BRFAY AR
at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB3,069,563,000), 3,661,563,0007% (2019F12831H : A
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable FE3,069,563,0007T) HWIRIERIE 2%
profits. BRIt R IR ERM A ENRIBEER

R—ELFRNEm-
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HZE2020F12831HIEFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25, IRIERIA (48)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the FIEMRMIBEE WAL T IE B EITHE
following items: Eoa

31 December

31 December

MIAR1E

Tax losses

2020 2019
20204 20194
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AEBKEEFIT
3,249,367 2,695,151

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of approximately RMB24,286,000 in 2020 (2019:
RMB7,039,000), the utilisation of which is dependent on future
taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences. The amount of deferred tax
assets is based on the profit forecast approved by the management
of the Group.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the application
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2020, the deferred tax liabilities of undistributed
profits not provided for amounted to RMB522,633,000 (31
December 2019: RMB463,125,000).

WEMZEBREDELERBEEE )
HEEBEENME RS CEE —KRE
Bl WD N APIAEE EL BHBIER
MAFELOEHIR AR IR

REEP2020FE MR BB SNIEIER
I5E EX AR K24, 286,0007T (20194 :
AR #7,039,0007T) * ZiELERIEE E
EEEAEURAR RN ERRFEBE
RENERR YR EEERLOFEENF
o RIERIBEENSRBENKEAER
BEBHENEFFENE-

RIEDBECEMERE IEREER
MR FEAENINEREGEESHR
EERB10%NREXHWRTERER
ZRTER2008F1 A 1HEER  BER
2007F 12831 HEMNEF] o i A B B AT
BZINEREEFTRE R A B FEERI
WE A BARBTERFAERHRE &
EFEARELS% AL ZEBRHE
KB B I BIB B A Bl BL A 2008E1 51 H
ZREENRI DK SR EMNTER
FTig#5 o

R2020F12H31H » ket EHEH
AOEMBREIEREBESEEAARE
522,633,0007C (2019F12831H : AR
#463,125,0007T) ©
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26.INVENTORIES 26. %8

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

20204 20194
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ANR¥ETFIT

Merchandise for resale AEEE R 270,047 212,221

Provision against slow-moving inventories ~ 1F & Bk (E R (5,599) (6,922)
264,448 205,299

Movements in the provision against slow-moving inventories are as FENEBEREBEEHUT

follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBKEF T

At 1 January K118 6,922 6,940
Amount written off during the year FRNIZH (1,323) (18)
At 31 December R12831H 5,599 6,922
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HZE2020F12831HIEFE
27.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 271. ERPYE
2020 2019
20204 20195
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B s AR¥T ARETT
Land lease prepayments, at cost T E TR (ZAaA)
At 1 January P1B81H 1,508,411 1,854,694
Additions RE 429,028 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— Ik BN E) 37 1,319,599 =
Transfer to right-of-use assets BRETHESE 19(a) = (33,450)
Transfer to completed properties held EBREREAGECEMME
for sale (334,077) (337,466)
Transfer from investment properties RICEMEEA 18 - 24,633
At 31 December ®12831H 2,922,961 1,508,411
Development expenditure, at cost S (ZRAE)
At 1 January R1B1H 4,590,744 3,831,576
Additions B 848,722 1,578,604
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—RENEB AT 37 57,918 =
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B E¥ % B K& E 17 (485,562) (111,422)
Transfer to completed properties EBRERATECEMYME
held for sale (2,099,648) (708,014)
Impairment BE 11 (64,323) =
At 31 December ®12831H 2,847,851 4,590,744
5,770,812 6,099,155
The Group’s properties under development are held under medium KEBNEEPYELIREPHPBELOR
term leases and are situated in Mainland China. B o WAL A B AP o
Details of the Group’s properties under development pledged to AEBAHFERTERFREIEFNEE
secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are set out in note HEBPYENFIBEEHNMIES3
33.
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28.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

28. R B AR ERE

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ANR¥ETFIT
Trade and bills receivables B E 5 w18 30,626 28,742
Impairment BE (19,611) (20,144)
11,015 8,598

The Group’s revenue from the direct sales of merchandise are
mainly on a cash basis. The credit terms offered to customers of
the Group’s sale of properties are generally three months to one
year. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and bills
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade and bills
receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

AEEERBETROBATELURS
mERE KERNYEHERHETER
NEER—RA=ZERE-—F -8UK
FHERSEEREE AEESKERK
BEBBRRRITEBES TRERE
EERIEPIURBEERR SHREE
B EPRRERGERR BH LAt
RAEBRKEZRERRE I RAE
SREERNEE WUBEREDE
BRI AE B E BN E 5 RE R
DEEFEHTA T IRR R EMIER
EEHEN BB ZRERERENE -

REERR BB ZRARRELE
RHBAMRE DU

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

20205 20195

12831H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBTT AREEF T

Within 60 days B60H A 8,247 3,356
61 to 90 days 61E90H 238 998
91 to 180 days 91E180H 242 1,838
181 to 270 days 181F270H 110 202
271 to 360 days 271E360H 662 290
Over 360 days #848360H 21,127 22,058
30,626 28,742

Impairment HE (19,611) (20,144)
11,015 8,598
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HZE2020F12831HIEFE

28.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

28. FEINEB ZHIEREE @

R E Z IR REGEEEEZSHU
o

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETFIT

At 1 January M1A1H 20,144 20,135
Impairment (reversed)/provided (note 11) BUE (BRE) S EE GEE) (533) 9
At 31 December M12H31H 19,611 20,144

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

RERE AR BARERETHE
D Ut ETRIEEHER - BEXLE
REAEUBEBEANZEZR DD
A8 (BN EmiER ~ & R KRsF4R) BYE
HHBGE B - ZstERRINKRE BT
SHARBEEM  ERIFIFRAREKE
BRRBRANGERIEER

TXEIEAAERRBEERRESE
MW B ZRENEERRER

42020%12H31H

Past due
oL
1to 6 6 months 1 year Over
months to1year to3years 3 years
1E6{88 6EAZEIF 1E3F HBIR3E
Expected credit loss rate TEEEBIENXE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAEE (\RET D) 8,727 772 1,535 19,592 30,626
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) BHEERE ARETT) 9 2 8 19,592 19,611
20195128331
As at 31 December 2019 ’ SAIAERIE
Past due
panl
1to6 6 months 1 year Over
months to 1 year to 3 years 3 years Total
1E6[H 6EAEIF 1E35F HBIB3E 45t
Expected credit loss rate TBHEEEBENZE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAE{E (NRET ) 6,192 492 1,931 20,127 28,742
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE ARETT) 6 1 10 20,127 20,144
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29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS

29. FA{IRRIA ~ HthEUR IR R H Ath
BE

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

20204 20194
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AE®BFIT

Non-current assets ERHEE
Prepayments TENTRRIE 166,485 623,248
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments FAfTRIE 330,945 257,715
Deposits and other receivables from REIFEREB AT
non-related companies e K B EW RIS 1,499,321 1,689,445
Deposits and other receivables from RERBABENEER
related companies HhpE k1A 837,315 1,357,013
Loans to third parties BYHE=ZFHNEMR - 700
2,667,581 3,304,873
Impairment of other receivables from REIFEREAB AT
non-related companies HthE g/ & (62,994) (57,288)
Impairment of other receivables from PN =L VNEI
related companies HhfEWFRIERIE (86,989) (92,186)
(149,983) (149,474)
2,517,598 3,155,399

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

HMEWRE R EEREFHEEEINT ¢

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FT

At 1 January R181H 149,474 58,998
Impairment provided (note 11) AEEE (1) 5,301 104,117
Amount written off during the year F % (4,792) (13,641)
At 31 December t12H31H 149,983 149,474
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29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 29. FA{IFRIE ~ HAth RIS TR IE R Ho Ath
OTHER ASSETS (continued) BEE®
The balances due from related companies included in the above are EXFrE WM A SSRUT
as follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

20204 20194
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFTT ARETFIT

Associates =G/ 168,591 158,191
Immediate holding company Eh&*ﬁ“/‘ 26,307 27,836
Fellow subsidiaries BE&RMEA 126,406 104,642
Non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries  ¥t/& A &) E’JﬁH’“HxHy% - 550,333
A company significantly influenced by —RREANBEFEALE

a director of the Company BAE 516,011 516,011
Impairment of other receivables from RERBMATN

related companies HhEWIERE (86,989) (92,186)

750,326 1,264,827
Included in the balances due from associates is an amount of FE U B N B A R R B AR PR UL RS R 0
RMB158,079,000 due from Commercial City, which includes Z %3 AR ®158,079,0007c Hp g
the loans and the related interest receivable at the amount of EERRERERAESEARE
RMB157,336,967 (31 December 2019: RMB147,808,377). The 157,336,96775 (2019FE12831H : AR
loans bear interest at 6.5% to 10% per annum and are repayable #5147,808,37770) ° EFIZEF]%6.5%-
in one year. During the year, the interest income generated from the 10%5T 2 BAR—FRER-FA &
loans was RMB8,989,000 (2019: RMB8,965,000). PR E LT B IR A AR 158,989,000
70 (20194 : AK¥#8,965,0007T) °

The remaining balances due from associates and other related FE WS Bt 2 B] I EL A B B B) ;RIB BV B
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. TEHAAEIEF - RERNERKER
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29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets were in Stage 1, and a provision
for impairment of RMB149,983,000 was provided. Details of
impairment assessment of financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets for the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in note 43.

The impairment of other receivables from related companies
amounted to RMB86,989,000 at 31 December 2020, which
includes the impairment of the balances due from Shenyang Maoye
Property Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Demao Investment Enterprises and
Shenzhen Hezhengmao Investment Enterprise at the amounts of
RMB55,457,000, RMB20,626,000, RMB8,248,000 (31 December
2019: RMB55,457,000, RMB20,626,000 and RMB8,248,000),
respectively.

The carrying amounts of the remaining other receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for whom there
was no recent history of default.

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

2&%ﬁﬁﬁ\ﬂ@%&%ﬁ&ﬁ%

= (@

R2020F12831H st ATANFRIEH
MERFREREMEENERE ER
RE—MEE BstiRABEEREEARE
149,983,0007T ° & B &L E£ 2020512531
HiIEEEst ATESRIE  HthE R TIE
REMEENSRE ENRETGES
B HIEE43 0

R2020FE12831H RERAB AT WE
fhFEW R IE R B A AR 86,989,000
T BEDRIKEEBREBEEERA
AV FRIERRECERFYIEERE
BPENRESFARKS5,457,000
T AR®20,626,0007c K AR
8,248,0007T (20194128310 : AR
55,457,0007T ~ A R #20,626,00071 K A
R 18,248,0007T) °

AR IE RN AR R (B BY T Bk EL At FE WK IR BR
HEEREEMTERA R ERE AR
BHABR-

30. B RI\E FBYUABARREFR

DEPOSITS
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 20194
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET NIEESE
Cash and bank balances R KIRTTHEER 1,046,689 1,232,571
Pledged deposits EHIER 245,919 208,265
1,292,608 1,440,836
Less: Pledged bank balances for B AERITIRRIRENIRITAR
construction in progress (94,836) (119,963)
Pledged bank balances for mortgages BB IETT (45,180) (52,128)
Pledged time deposits for ABERABRESERILFEN
housing fund loans EHITFER (52) (11,160)
Pledged bank balances for bank loans BIRITEFIEFNVIRITERR (96,300) (10,000)
Frozen bank deposits BERGIRITIER (9,528) (15,014)
Others Hith (23) -
Cash and cash equivalents RBEREEEEY 1,046,689 1,232,571
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 30. IREFIRELEEBYIUBIEIRTERR @

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

DEPOSITS (continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits were
denominated in the following currencies:

FEBNEERIREFEBYURKITREZ
RILLURSE ST

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

20205 20194

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFTT ARETFIT

RMB AR 1,239,748 1,435,866
Hong Kong dollar BT 3,057 2,399
United States dollar ETT 49,775 2,542
Great British pound g 10 10
Singapore dollar AN T 18 19
1,292,608 1,440,836

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB1,292,608,000
(81 December 2019: RMB1,440,836,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one month and six months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances and bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

BERSHPR  AEBUAREEDN
B KMIRTTEE R A AR EE1,292,608,000
7T (2019F12H31H : AR
1,440,836,00070) ° ARIEHELZBHTIR
B Eth & > SR iR 35 HR B K B (SN EE
BIEEG ) R (GEE - EERNESIER
) AEBEEEBKRELEITINEE
BHRTEARBRBAEME R

RITIREZRE HIRITERFRBREE
HFE - EMERHRNTF1EEE T
EORIAEBNNKRESFBRME
A LUAE FE B9 E HA 77 R M R BR BN A B < 3R
TRBFHIRTEMEF ALY EHER
SEAEEREFHRITH
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HZE2020F12831HIEFE

31.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

1. BNEZRERER

BNESREREBREERSHRZER
HBYERES DATWT :

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

20205 20194
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEETF T

Within 90 days 90K AR 2,029,504 2,100,267
91 to 180 days 91KRE180K 71,812 25,935
181 to 360 days 181X E360K 24,375 4,881
Over 360 days 360K L 340,526 502,609

2,466,217 2,633,692

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
within 90 days.

The Group’s bills payable amounted to RMB121,318,000 as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: RMB162,806,000).
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202012831 H  ZEBRENZE
A AR #121,318,0007T (20198124831
H : AR#162,806,0007T) °
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Year ended 31 December 2020

B F2020F12A31HILEE
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, 32. §HEE EH&I&‘% R ERKR
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES H R
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®T T ARMEFTT
Contract liabilities aHERE (@) 2,201,229 4,727,033
Deferred revenue EIEUA 107,709 143,222
Deposits received (Sl 677,892 674,654
Accrued operating lease rental expenses ~ TEIRASEHSRIL 86,019 65,080
Accrued utilities jEbYNEE Bl 30,146 25,352
Accrued liabilities BIEEMA 217,720 203,775
Accrued staff costs EiREERX 44,497 51,510
Provision for coupon liabilities TS aEEE 74,493 93,039
Value-added tax and other tax payables (B & H{thFEHIRIE 284,047 395,967
Payables for construction ERITREENTE 2,182,906 2,213,343
Loans from the immediate holding company ;ls 5 BEEHZERNBINER (b) 487,879 350,911
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KRERRMBLRBEANEFR (b) 3,503,561 494,933
Loan from a company significantly D= EEFIN/NC %%Eﬂ(?’ £ ()
influenced by a director of the Company ~ FJABIME 667,645 574,069
Balance due to the non-controlling &S —EIFfT 8 A B FE RS (b)
shareholders of a subsidiary B R VAL BR - 208,039
Other payables HMENFRIE ©) 1,207,986 1,003,698
11,773,729 11,224,625
Notes: MysE
(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ B‘BHaEHFBUT:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
PUPOESPISRIISI 2019F12831H 20191818
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AREBTT
Sale of properties HEY 1,077,973 3,509,900 3,299,401
Sale of prepaid cards HEFENE 1,123,256 1,217,133 1,306,714
Total contract liabilities aNaEEs 2,201,229 4,727,033 4,606,115
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver properties and presale BHNEBEBERINYERBERM R
of prepaid cards. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2020 and 2019 was YRV E R © 2020F KR2019F 5 B ERD
mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances received from customers in TEARFRMDEME I E R FEH
relation to the sale of properties at the end of the year. BRI 0
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32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

The balances due to related companies included in the above are as follows:

2. §NE R EWIRE Bt ERAR

ELh FE AR IE @)
GERNC
b) FTAEXHREMBEATGHRAT

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
2020F12H31H 2019%F12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Associates BENT 4,325 4,172
The immediate holding company BREZERRE 495,835 359,357
Fellow subsidiaries EEXEVAG 3,511,939 503,829
A non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary —EM B ABRIEERARER - 230,384
Companies significantly influenced by RERRNFEEEATLENRT

a director of the Company 667,645 574,069
4,679,744 1,671,811

Included in the balance due to the immediate holding company is an BNEZEERABGHITEE—ZEARE

amount of RMB487,879,000 (31 December 2019: RMB350,911,000) which
includes the loan from Maoye Department Store Investment Limited of
RMB419,098,000 and the related interest at 7.00% per annum.

Included in the balances due to fellow subsidiaries is an amount of
RMB3,503,561,000 (31 December 2019: RMB494,933,000) which
includes the loan from Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen
Maoye Group”) of RMB3,250,460,000, the loan from Maoye Group
Limited of RMB138,361,390 and the related interest payable. The loan of
RMB3,250,460,000 bears interest at 4.75% per annum and the loan of
RMB138,361,390 bears interest at 7.00% per annum.

The loans mentioned above are all repayable in one year. During the
year, the loan interest expenses amounted to RMB131,615,000 (2019:
RMB40,562,000).

Included in the balance due to companies significantly influenced by a director
of the Company is an amount of RMB667,645,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB574,069,000) which includes a loan amounting to RMB200,000,000 and
the related interest and penalty payable. The loan bears interest at 8.79% per
annum and an interest penalty at 0.05% per day. During the year, the loan
interest and penalty expenses were RMB17,882,000 and RMB55,736,000
(2019: RMB21,476,000 and RMB54,871,000), respectively.

The remaining balances due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will generally mature within
one year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 33. 5t BIRITER KR EMMER
BORROWINGS

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
20205128310 2019&12831H
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIEFIZ(%) I ARETT pECRERY 3B ARETR

Current B
Interest-bearing bank loans FHRBTEN
- secured i 4.50-6.09 2021 2,609,436 4.45-7.90 2020 3,184,681
Current portion of long term interest- &5t 8 RITEFM
bearing bank loans SEAE D
- seoured B 4.90-6.52 2021 2378005  4.90-9.50 2020 4,540,000
USD senior notes - secured (a) ETBAZE-BERQ - - - 13.25 20200 1,549,700
4,987,441 9,274,381
Non-current JEEngR
Non-current portion of FEBTEIN
interest-bearing bank loans FEENERE D
- secured i 4.90-6.52  2022-2035 8,759,040 490-950 20212083 6,842,500
Corporate bonds - unsecured (o)~ ‘AEIEHF—EIER(D) 4.79-494  2022-2023 505,978 7.50 2021 3,081
9,355,018 6,845,531
14,342,459 16,119,912
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20204 20194F
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETT
Analysed into: DITWT
Bank and other loans repayable: IRTTREMEEEER
Within one year —FRN 4,987,441 9,274,381
In the second year REZ 3,442,650 2,588,031
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZFEFHF
(EEEMETR) 3,324,568 3,048,000
Beyond five years RHREME 2,587,800 1,209,500
14,342,459 16,119,912
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@

On September and October 2018, the Company issued senior notes with a
principal amount of US$150,000,000 and US$100,000,000. The USD senior
notes bear interest at 13.25% per annum, payable semi-annually on 27 March
and 27 September, and will mature on 27 September 2020, unless redeemed
earlier. The offering price is 100% of the principal amount. On 14 November
2018 and 17 November 2018, the Company redeemed part of the USD senior
notes with a total principal amount of RMB191,996,000 from the open market.
During the year ended at 31 December 2020, the Company redeemed all of
the USD senior notes with a total principal amount of RMB1,549,700,000 from
the open market. incurring a loss of RMB4,546,000 from the redemption.

On 6 January 2016, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha completed the issuance of
a corporate bond with a total principal amount of RMB1,700,000,000 on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. The corporate bond carries interest at
7.5% per annum (2019: 7.5%), payable annually on 5 January in arrears, and
has a term of up to 5 years at maximum. The bond is embedded with a right
for the issuer to adjust par interest rate and a right for investors to repurchase
the bond at the end of the third year. On 29 December 2020, the Group
remitted the corporated bond with the remaining amount of RMB3,031,000 to
the reserves account of the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited.

On 4 August 2020, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha completed the issuance of
bonds with a total principal amount of RMB600,000,000 on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange of the PRC. The corporate bonds were issued in two
categories. Category 1 carries interest at 4.79% per annum, payable annually
on 4 August in arrears, and has a term of up to 2 years at maximum. Category
2 carries interest at 4.94% per annum, payable annually on 4 August in
arrears, and has a term of up to 3 years at maximum.

The carrying amount of the corporate bonds as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB595,978,000.
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33. 5t BIRITEFRREMER @

PysE

(@

R2018FE9B K108 » AR B ETAEES
150,000,000 7T 52 100,000,000 7t I B 5
TR R B AEBILFNE13.25%: 5
W3R 27TH ROA2THE ¥ FL I —K» BRIE
IRATEEE] > T B 2020E9827H B -
EITER100% A EE  1R2018F11814H
F2018FE 11 B17H » KR BEB AMTISZHE
AEE4EE A AR 191,996,000 R ETT
BEER HE2020F12A31HLEFEE > K
NEVEBAETEBALACEBEBALARKE
1,549,700,0007cHFT B ETBAEE > BE
Bl E 4 AR #54,546,0007CHY 518 o

720161860  RYIREEEN TR LS
EEXGERBET—NEASHEAAR
#1,700,000,0007c I A BIE S ° A BIEH 1%
FEFET 5% (20194 : 7.5%) st 8 WEE
1ASEE Y BRAHRAFE -FHES
BT A AEZEAENEN RREER
BZEFERAIBRIESNERN 1220204
128200 ZEBME# i TASEAARKE
3,081,000t ARIBEHELZEFEESZ
REHENT LBSAE HER) RS-

2020F8B4H » FIIREEENRPE LS
BERSIEMET—MEASEEAAR
#%600,000,000Tc A BIE S °c A BMESFIZ
B AE B 2517 48 B 1324.79% I EF K 5t
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

©

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

(i)

()

certain land and buildings of the Group with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB3,872,792,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB3,402,100,000);

certain investment properties of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB9,178,429,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB8,394,183,000);

certain land lease prepayments of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,731,669,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB367,287,000);

certain properties under development of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB451,095,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB103,262,000); and

certain stocks of Maoye Commercial with a carrying amount of
RMB764,650,000 (31 December 2019: RMB2,893,380,000).

Except for the secured bank loan of RMB101,055,000 (31 December
2019: RMB107,281,000) which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all
borrowings are in RMB.

Except for bank loans with a carrying amount of RMB6,867,000,000 (31
December 2019: RMB8,030,731,000) at fixed interest rates, all borrowings
bear interest at floating interest rates.

33. st BIRITERM B H B @

Mzt © ()

©

FEBENETRITERBUTEERR

M

(i)

(v)

AEBRBDIFEOABARE
3,872,792,0007% (20195128318 : A
R #£3,402,100,0007T) B9 F L i K 1%
F,

ATEBRBEBFEOAARE
9,178,429,0007T (20195F12H831H : A
FE1£8,394,183,0007T) A TR E MY
8

TEBRBEBFEOAEARE
1,731,669,0007C (2019128318 : A
E#367,287,0007t) WETFT i E
BT

AEBRBDIFEABARE
451,095,0007T (2019128318 : AR
#103,262,0007T) FUE T EEHYE ;
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R M IREE AR 764,650,000
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2,893,380,0007%) Y& TA&1D o
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AR #107,281,0007t) A IEFIRITTERL
BrostEIS FrEEREA AR

RBREE A A R #6,867,000,0007T (20194
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 3Bt EIRITERREMER @
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued) MizE @ ()
In addition, Shenzhen Maoye Group, Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs. Huang Jingzhang LS REEFER FIIRE (EE) ~JERNEL
(spouse of Mr. Huang Mao Ru), Mr. Zou Zhao Bin and Mrs. Chen Liping (spouse EMRBLLT (ERNEENRRB) ~ FPBR L
of Mr. Zou Zhao Bin), Mr Lin Zhen Xiong, Chongaging Maoye Real Estate Co., ERREFLZ+ (BBWAEENE®B) MEE
Ltd. have guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans with a total amount of RE-BEBEREMERRADANERBERA
RMB6,881,433,000 (31 December 2019: RMB9,404,181,000) as at the end of the 2 1£6,881,433,00070(2019F12831H : AR
reporting year. 9,404,181,0007T) M& TIRTTERIRMHIER
The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities at the year end: TR AERFET I RERANIRTIRERE -
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20205 20195
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKET T AREF T
Amount of undrawn banking facilities HARERIRITIREREE 961,210 627,600
34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. B REFI B

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

20204 20194
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AEETFIT

Defined benefit obligations AERAEE 7,548 8,916
Less: Current portion of retirement benefits 3, : R IREFIAI TR ENER (693) (830)
6,855 8,086
The Group and the Company provide certain of the eligible staff with K%&ﬂiﬂaﬁi?&ﬁiﬁﬂ SEBERE
post-retirement benefits pursuant to a retirement benefit plan. The R 8 TR HRKABR - &5t B2 R
plan is funded solely by the Group on an actual payment basis. HAAEEEEREHEERHEES
The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out on 31 PRI R ITEE L EEHWilis Towers
December 2020 by the Willis Towers Watson Company, using the Watson C\ompanyE2020\¢l2E 31EfE
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. FRIEHREMEEBRBMEEEN.

226  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /% % B2 =5 5 fR/A 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2020 E R4



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. RAEFIBHE @
(continued)
The principal actuarial assumption used as at the end of the RHRERRMEANEEBERRET
reporting period is as follows: o

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
2020 20194
12H31H 12H31H
Discount rate (%) HrIRZE (%) 3.25% 3.25%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31 FR2020F12831H  EARBRKRBPVEEHK
December 2020 is shown below: REDTHRUWT
Decrease in Increase in
net defined net defined
Increase in benefit Decrease in benefit
rate% obligation rate % obligation
RERMER ARERMEE

EEEFH BERED LEE T FFERIE AN

Discount rate 0.25% (151) 0.25% 157
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a TIRESMERREBEETERINERS
method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obligation BREBEENCEEHHATEMNETFE
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at B ENEE S AMMEE

the end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit RizaEmR iR Ee 2 E W@ REDH
or loss and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in BRF RS HUT -

respect of the plan are as follows:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

20204 20194
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETIT

Interest cost FE A 277 281
Net benefit expenses B R 277 281
Recognised in finance costs T RRE A A HE S 277 281
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

34.PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. RIAGEFBE @

(continued)

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit RERMNEENIREZSHWT :

obligations are as follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBEFT

At 1 January M1B1H 8,916 9,049
Interest cost FE A 277 281

Pension payments made BEERARE (669) (965)

Benefit expenses (reversed)/recognised in R EMEEURE (&)

other comprehensive income SBHEH B (976) 551
At 31 December 128318 7,548 8,916

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value AEBHNETASHEELANEBEED

of plan assets are as follows: wmr
2019 20194
Pension cost charged to proft or loss Remeasurement gains i ather comprehensive income
SABRRERERE AR ENGNER 2R
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-fotal arising from included
included changes in in other
1 January Net in proft Bengfit financial  Experience  comprehensive 31 December
2019 interest orloss pad  assumptions  adjustments income 2019
il
BREE StALT
0195 FAERN i 2EAEN 10198
1818 FIEEE N8 SRR BEET £ESEE NG 108318
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMBI000
AEETR  ARETR  ARETn  ARBTn  \RETn  \RETn  ARETn  ARBTn
Defined benefit obligations RERAER 9,049 21 21 (965) 51 - 551 8916
Benet liability EHER 9,049 281 281 (%65) 551 - 551 8916
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
34.PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. RAEFIBHE @
(continued)
2020 20205
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprehensive income
HARRRBAERE AR ERGNEN R NG
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from included
included changes in in other
1 January Net in profit Benefit financial  Experience comprehensive 31 December
2020 interest or loss paid assumptions  adjustments income 2020
g
RREE stARH
1420205 HABER fifEdif E Gt S 713
1B1H SR8 I EfftaH LTI DHE  12R31R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn AREFR ARETR ARETR
Defined benefit obligations RTETER 8916 o am (669) (976) - (976) 7,548
Benelt liabilty EE 8916 a m (669) (976) - (976) 7,548
35.1SSUED CAPITAL 35. B8 1TRRAE
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
20205 20194F
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET [UNSEEEE
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
5,140,326,000 (31 December 2019: 5,140,326,0008%
5,140,326,000) ordinary shares of (2019F12H31H
HK$0.10 each 5,140,326,0008%)
SREBE010B T2 EER 514,033 514,033
Equivalent to RMB’000 EEARETT 460,153 460,153
During the year, there was no movement in issued capital. RER ERTRABIEZS-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 104 to 105 of the financial
statements.

(i) Contributed surplus

In March 2018, Maoye China and Zhongzhao Investment
(collectively, the “Vendors”) entered into a framework agreement
and a compensation agreement with Maoye Commercial that
the Vendors agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of
Chongqging Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. (the “Target
Company”) to Maoye Commercial at a total consideration of
RMB403,301,400.

According to the compensation agreement, the Vendors shall
compensate Maoye Commercial with cash if the accumulated
audited net profits, without taking into account the effect of non-
operating gains and losses, of the Target Company for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 fail to meet the
guaranteed profits. In 2020, the Vendors compensated Maoye
Commercial with cash of RMB1,060,400, of which RMB182,000
was attributable to non-controlling interests.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

36. RESERVES (continued) 36. {#1E @

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

(ii) Statutory surplus reserve

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current year and the prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 104 to
105 of the financial statements.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC subsidiary
of the Group is required to allocate 10% of its profit after tax
to the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiary. Subject to
certain restrictions set out in the PRC Company Law, part of the
statutory surplus reserve may be converted to increase paid-up
capital/issued capital of the PRC subsidiary, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of
the registered capital.

37.BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 30 November 2020 (the “Acquisition Date”), the Group
acquired a 100% interest in Renhe Investment from Chengdu Renhe
Industrial (Group) Limited (‘Renhe Industrial”), which is a third
party of the Group. Renhe Investment is engaged in the operation
of the Jincheng art palace project, holding the land use right of the
state-owned construction land of the Jincheng art palace project
and the real estate property rights of the completed buildings. The
purchase consideration was in the form of cash: (i) Chengshang
Group paid RMB870,000,000.00 to Renhe Industrial to settle the
liabilities assumed by Renhe Investment before the Acquisition Date,
in which case Renhe Investment shall repay RMB870,000,000.00
to Chengshang Group in due course; (i) Chengshang Group shall
complete the equity transfer payment of RMB228,572,008.89 within
180 days after the Acquisition Date.

(i) ZERGFATE
FEENAPEEF 2 HESER
“@jﬁAﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁqﬂ%Mﬁ%Ez
REEDREFHREY -

i)

RiEFTHEAB L ZAEBWHEH
MBAR BRHERMKREN B
ZI10%ELITERBATE  HEEZ
’&%E%%@JEPEW%@T&HHX
KZ50% RIEFRE AT L
ZETRS BHIETE
F‘JE%%H“BDW)%@E
BEX,/BETRAE EE
Tﬁﬁ?%ﬁTﬁE‘"\ﬁ\é‘Iﬂﬁﬂyﬂiz 25%

]

ol

mgw%
%@%“
o Al D

0

7. ¥ A%

R2020FE11830H (TWeEEHEER)) » &
EEERESCHNEE (EE) BRAE
(MZHEBXE  AEAEENF=H) W
BCMEENI100% TR - CHERER
EREWBPWEMSIEE FERMEMN
SIEEMIBNEE ER A HE LT
FEREURECERBENIEEERK-

BEREBDUREE AN (()BEE
BRWEHSHe A CNEES AR
870,000,000.007% > LUAS B M B HE K
HadE FEBER T CNEEBERRE
B 7 £ 11 32 A R #5870,000,000.007T ;
Ke(ii)pk S B ZE A UK B8 H HB 12 180H Ay 5
B PG REER R (70 A R 15228,572,008.89

I o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

37.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Renhe
Investment as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

7. ¥FE5H ®

CHRERBEARNAIHIEERE
BzARBEWT

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

1 Uit B s

FEEREY

NREE

Notes RMB’000

s AREF T

Property, plant and equipment ME--MENREE 17 3

Completed properties held for sale FAEGEERHME 69,126

Properties under development BRAPYE 27 1,377,517

Cash and bank balances RE& MIRTTHAER 468

Trade receivables FEWE 518 427

Prepayments and other receivables T A B A At FE U R IE 16,190
Contract liabilities, deposits received, EREaE BWiEE

accruals and other payables fET & A R EMtEI=IA (878,134)

Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITEMR (339,190)

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBE B & (101,782)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAnBESEZHNFEERE 144,625

Goodwill on acquisition W& 20 83,947

Satisfied by cash DIREX A 228,572

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB427,000 and
RMB16,190,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB1,000,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are
included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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FE IS B 5 3R 18 R E i FE U T IE 7Y U B8 B
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A T5 IR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020512H31H LFE
37.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) . EHEH @
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a HUNE—RNBABNIRERED TN
subsidiary is as follows: T
RMB’000
ARBFT
Cash consideration REeRE (228,572)
Payment to Renhe Industrial to settle the iNGE AT ER W= SN
liabilities assumed by Renhe Investment before the LUBBELCMEBEXKENESRE
Acquisition Date (870,000)
Amounts due to Renhe Industrial FEM{-MEENTRIE 228,572
Cash and bank balances acquired BUNEEIR S R IRTTAE R 468
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FARBEHELANIRERE
cash flows from investing activities RERREEEBMRA R (869,532)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in FAREEHNEENREREZ
cash flows from operating activities U B8 22 5 AR A (1,000)
(870,532)
Since the acquisition, Renhe Investment contributed RMB147,000 to BB  CHMEBENREZE2020F12H
the Group’s revenue and RMB129,000 to the consolidated profit for SIHEFEEAAEEN KRR KRGFENE
the year ended 31 December 2020. BIA R #147,0007T & A K #129,000
7TE o
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the HEHREET AEBRBFER
revenue from continuing operations of the Group and the loss of SEBNFBREAEEBNFABIER D
the Group for the year would have been RMB6,913,312,000 and A& ANR%6,913,312,0007T K AR #E
RMB253,664,000 respectively. 253,664,0007z ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

38.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. A REMEBRMEE

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) EXIERERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash subtractions to the RER NEBB T KREFHHE
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB22,373,000 (2019: BN RN ERAREERTEES
non-cash additions RMB39,324,000) and RMB22,373,000 BB IFRERDI ARBE22,373,000
(2019: non-cash additions RMB39,324,000), respectively, in 7T (2019F ( IFBRESABEARE
respect of lease arrangements for lands and buildings. 39,324,0007t) M A E 22,373,000,
7T (2019F (WS ARBEARR
39,324,000,7T) °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities b) AEEBELABNESD
2020
2020E
USD Loansfrom Loan from
Bank and senior fellow athird  Dividend Interest Lease
other loans note subsidiaries party  payable  payable liabilities
RERZNE
i #r AFfEAN KBE=H
AthER  BAEE BR EAMER EMRE EENE  HESR s
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTT ABETn ARETR AEETR ABETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 12020£181A 14570212 1,549,700 1,132,383 140,000 - 262471 2,857,485 20,512,257
Changes from financing cash flows REHERSTENE (570,454)  (1,549,700) 2,920,460  (140,000) (90,718) (1,028,593  (415,858)  (874,863)
New lease HiHE - - - - - - 13,062 13,062
Interest expense LS - - - - - 1054605 176923 1,231,528
2019 final dividend MIERBRE = - - - 90,718 - - 90,718
Covid-19-related rent KB HEANCovid-19
concessions from lessors BERLER - - - - - - (o128 (37929
Reassessment and revision of lease terms ~ E3rHER B TREER - - - - - - 2,493 2,493
Increase arising from acquisttion of ELBUE-ENE
a subsidiary ATRIEM 342,701 - - - - - - 342701
Interest capitalised MEERf - - - - - 96,607 - 96,607
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 14,342,459 - 4,052,843 - - 385,096 2,596,177 21,376,575
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B F2020F12A31HILEE
38.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 8. T EIRERERMETE @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) RIEIHELEENES @
(continued)
2019
20195
USD  Loansfrom  Loan from
Bank and senior fellow a third Dividend Interest Lease
other loans note  subsidiaries party payable payable  Accruals liabilities Total
REFZMNE
Fi1k En AHBAN REFEZA
AfES BRER e B EARE  EORE  EHFE HE&E st
RVB'000  RMB'OO0  RVMB'000  RMB'0OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR AR%TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2019 *2019E181H 16,708,291 1,533,632 208,072 - - 188,439 - 3058470 21,696,904
Changes from financing RBRERZREN
cash flows 9 (2,138,079) 16,068 924,311 140000 (165842 (1219813 (60,077)  (436,851)  (2,940,283)
New lease g - - - - - - - 30,324 39,324
Interest expense HERT - - - - - 1124072 - 19542 1320614
018 final dvidend N18ERERE - - - - 165,842 = - - 165,342
Non-controling interests ERRREERD - - - - - - 80077 - 0077
Interest capialised FSER( - - - - - 169779 5 - 169779
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 14570212 1549700 1132383 140,000 - W41 - 2857485 20512257
(c) Total cash outflows for leases (c) HERE RH4E%E
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of FARERERNEERESRE4E
cash flows is as follows: B -
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETIT
Within operating activities I SS=OrE I (10,933) (31,821)
Within financing activities RRIE RN (415,858) (436,851)

(426,791) (468,672)
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@)

On 14 April, 2020, Zhanye Property Co., Ltd. (“Zhanye
Property”) received a court judgment from the Shenyang
Municipal Intermediate People’s Court related to a litigation
filed by Balin Yougi Eurasia Investment Development Company
Limited (“Balin Youqi”) in October 2018. According to the court
judgment, Zhanye property shall pay Balin Yougi an amount of
RMB32,207,340.86 in respect of consideration for the transfer
of a property project, together with interest calculated from 24
October 2018 to the full payment of the amount based on the
Interbank Offered Rate announced by the National Interbank
Funding Center. Procedures for filing of an appeal by Zhanye
Property was completed on 6 May 2020. The first court hearing
for the second trial will be held on 30 March 2021. Based on the
advice from the Company’s legal counsel, as the litigation is at
the second trial stage, the court judgment as abovementioned
is not yet effective. The Company believes that the ultimate
outcome of the litigation cannot be reliably estimated.

In July 2020, Shenyang Northern Construction Co., Ltd. (&
Bib A BRI B RAE) fled a litigation with the Shenyang
Municipal Intermediate People’s Court to claim for an amount of
RMB22,292,569 from Zhanye Property in relation to construction
work for a project in Shenyang, together with interest of
RMB16,236,818. The Company, based on the advice from the
Company’s legal counsel and the progress of the case, believes
that the ultimate outcome of the litigation cannot be reliably
estimated.

In August 2020, Shenyang Dadong District Urban Construction
Service Center (B AR TERRF F0)filed a
litigation with the Shenyang Municipal Intermediate People’s
Court to claim for (i) a debt of RMB24,435,600 together with
interest of RMB35,617,100 and (i) urban construction project
infrastructure fees of RMB12,294,100 together with interest of
RMB12,835,100 from Zhanye Property in relation to the transfer
agreement for a property project. The first court hearing was
held on 25 February 2021. The Company, based on the advice
from the Company’s legal counsel and the progress of the case,
believes that the ultimate outcome of the litigation cannot be
reliably estimated.
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30. 5 AREE

@)

R2020F4814H  REEHEBRA
g (TREEM) BEGTHRAR
AR EEERMEMAER R E S
BERLE (BMARE)) 5220184
108 1R HBVEREA Z A BT HI R o 1R 35
ERRHR BEBM B EE 18
E#MEBEENRERDEMAES S
AR 132 207,340.8670 & iERAF] B
(FERBEEEIBTREIBZERET
DAMEIRIT R EFEFIZEH2018
F10A24H MBI EEETB LA
Alb) - BEBMEL EFHFHNERFE
R2020F586HEM > —EHNEX
SERRES IS 20213 H30H 17 0
REALASEZFEBEBNER > AR
TR WML B A B H
RERER c RABRBAE AN R
RIER M RBER S fd st o

R2020FE78 » EBGIE A ERRKR S
ER B MERT PR AR L
RRETFA  UBRBREE MR ER
—BEERMNERIREEB AR
22,292,56970& [6] A R 1516,236,818
THFRIE - iRIEAR A A EZERW
BERNEHANEE KABRBAT
P RRGE R AREA Fefhist o

2020588 » B AR B I mE
RRFBHOEEBETRRARE
R HFREA » LUFL() A #624,435,600
THEHER ART35,617,1007T
HFE 5 Ki)A\E#12,294,1007cH
HMTEREREEERERDARE
12,835,100t F Em R EE M
—EEMEEHNEEHEEFHR
Bo B —RIABRER 202152825
HET - RIBEARABEAREEBNE
REREZEHENEE KA RATR
MERARERHRAER G2t o
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Year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020512H31H LFE
40. COMMITMENTS 40. 5
(@) The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of () "EERBREFRBUTESEEE:

the reporting year:

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

20205 20194
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTFT AREETFIT

Contracted, but not provided for, Bt T AEF T4 BR(ERE
in respect of land and buildings 2,999,941 1,551,268

(o) The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet (o) REBEN2020F12831HEZ

commenced as at 31 December 2020. The future lease mERABEENEEEN - NZE

payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts are AT REREEENF AR

RMB867,257,000 due within one year, RMB1,778,462,000 due 867,257,000t —FEREH - AR

in the second to fifth years, inclusive and RMB1,885,559,000 #%1,778,462,000tRE_EEHF

due after five years. (CERMEERN) JHERART

1,885,559,0007c /i AL % F HA
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RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year:

1. BT 32 5 BLAEER

(@) FAERILHF RS H a0 Frat
R AEBBEBSETT T
PERR 5 !

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F AREF T

(1) Recurring transactions (1) REERS
Management fee income from REFEERERN
the operation of department stores: EEBWA
Wuxi Maoye Property Co., Ltd. miIAREEEBRAT
Shopping Centre Branch BYHRLDAE
EHXEEXBRADNEYTLDAR) (i) Bz(vi)
() & W) 313 755
313 755
Management fee expense from RETAERERN
the operation of a department store: EEEWA
Shenyang Commercial City Co., Ltd. Al EES b
("Commercial City”) BRAR (M)
(i) & () (i) B0 255 351
255 351
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 41.RiEt 53 5 B4E e (@)

(continued)

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) F R BRIL B 75 R & H A &R 5 Pt
financial statements, the Group had the following material R0 REBHREABSETTT
transactions with related parties during the year: (continued) FIEARG (@

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBFT
(2) Non-recurring transactions 2 FREMRS
Interest income on loans to: AU TEAREERN
FISUA -
Commercial City (i) GEE3 () 8,989 8,965
Mr. Zou Zhao Bin (v) BB EWV) - 39,616
8,989 48,581
Loans from: AUATEFEANER
Shenzhen Maoye Group (i) & (vii) R 2 £ () Re vi) 3,366,460 543,000
Maoye Department Store Investment RERERE
Limited (i) BIRAE) - 138,303
3,366,460 681,303
Repayment of loans to: AUTEHFEBEER
Shenzhen Maoye Group (i) & (vii) FINRZEE () R (vi) 446,000 213,000
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 41. it /A3 5 Bl4EER @)

(continued)

(@) FAERILHF RS H o Frat
R AEBBEBSETT T
HERRS : (@)

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year: (continued)

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
Interest expense on loans from: RUTEAEAERN
FISHX .
Shenzhen Maoye Group () & (vi) R ZE £ B () Rz (vil 92,526 4,140
Maoye Group Limited () REEEBRRAEI) 9,712 13,657
Maoye Department Store Investment RERERE
Limited (i) BRAF) 20,377 08,077
131,615 45,874
Banking facilities guaranteed by: 5B A RIVIRTT
=g
Shenzhen Maoye Group (i) & (vii) RN 2 5 B () Re (v 2,256,000 2,180,000
Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs. Huang Jingzhang BERWNAERERS LT
jointly and severally (iv) & (i) (HERAER)
() Retvii 6,230,997 4,647,281
Xinghua Industrial (i) BERE() - 100,000
Mr. Chen Zhe Yuan (ix) BRE 7T (x) - 30,000
Mr. Liu Jian Guo (ix) BB ST £ (x) - 10,000
Chongging Maoye Real Estate BEREMEERRAT
Co., Ltd. (i & (v () & (vii 500,000 -
Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong (ix) & (viii) R 1 510 A (i) R (vil) 40,000 -
Mr. Zou Zhao Bin and FER ST EREET LT
Mrs. Chen Liping jointly (v) (FHE) V) - 100,000
9,026,997 7,067,281
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 41.RiBt 53 5 B4E 6 (@)

(continued)

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year: (continued)

0

(i
(i)
(iv)
)

(vi)

(vii)

They are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

It is the immediate holding company of the Company.
Commercial City is an associate of the Company.

Mr. Huang Mao Ru is a director of the company.

As at 31 December 2020, Mr Zou Zhao Bin and Victoria
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. are no longer related parties
due to the reduction of the shareholding proportion
of Victory Commercial from 19.7% to 4.7%. As at 31
December 2019, Mr. Zou Zhao Bin was a non-controlling
shareholder of Victory Commercial, Maoye Commercial’s
subsidiary. Mrs. Chen Liping is Mr. Zou Zhao Bin’s spouse.

The management fee income from the operation of a
department store was determined based on the underlying
contract as agreed between the Group and the fellow
subsidiary of the Company.

In January to December 2020, Maoye Shangsha obtained
loans from Shenzhen Maoye Group amounted to
RMB3,366,460,000 with an annual interest rates of 4.75%,
and repaid principal amounts of RMB446,000,000.

(viii) Certain of the Group's bank loans were guaranteed by

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

Shenzhen Maoye Group, Mr. Huang Mao Ru and Mrs.
Huang Jingzhang, Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong and Chongging
Maoye Real Estate Co., Ltd..

(@) FAERILHF 3RS a0 Frat

R AEEREMSETT T
IERRS : (@

() EREALTNERMEBAT -
(i) EAERABNEREZERABC
(i) PR BEABEE QT -
(v) BRIMEERKTATESE-

(v) FR20205F12831H HRNTEH#Z
A R EREE A B19.7%5E D
F4.7% > BB o A4 oA
HMLRREZERERATIE
AR5 o 1R2019F128318 »
PRMAEEAEZDHEE (BIR
EEHENNB AR BIEERR
HoEBETR TAIBMAERN
fofd o

vii EEREEMBEENEEE W
ARBEAERRKQNGTRZRKH
BB WHENERE S AT

(vi) FR2020F1H E12B  X¥H
EEFINREEBRES AR
#3,366,460,0007cHIE > UL
4.75%MEFEFE > WEME
B AR 446,000,000 & 4
L

(vii) A= B E TIR1TERTH @R
K (EE) - =RWTE REF
YL -MEBEEREEREM
ERRABER.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year: (continued)

(ix) Mr. Chen Zhe Yuan, Mr. Liu Jian Guo and Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong
are the legal persons of a subsidiary respectively.

(x) The management fee expense from the operation of a
department store was determined based on the underlying
contract as agreed between the Group and the associate of
the Company.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties
as at the end of the reporting period are included in notes 29
and 32 to the financial statements.

(c) Compensation of key management

1. BRETS 32 5 BLEE R (D)

(@) FAERILHF RS H o Frat
R AEBBEBSETT T
HERRS : (@)

(ix) BRETTHRE FRBESLERME
BWREDH B —KINBATH
ERIA

N KEEEEMEENEEER
XBRBAEBRRAQTHE
ANEHFERBIER SHIRE

(b) E2RAEKTSBIREBELER

A S B S $R 5 HA R B2 R B 5 BY R (&
BIERST BN M BRI T2k
320

() EEEEASHM

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T AREFIT

Salaries and allowances i oA 3,204 4,705
Retirement benefits BIARBH 13 106
3,217 4,811

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

41.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 41.RiBt 53 5 B4E 6 (@)

(continued)

(d) The Group has rental contracts with five fellow subsidiaries of the d ZEBRCHAEEARBRHEBEA
Group. At the reporting date, the Group had total lease liabilities B EMHEEN -PNREA K&
with fellow subsidiaries under non-cancellable leases falling due EREBEAYBEEERRANB R
as follows: BlZzENIAAEaBEEBENT .

31 December 31 December
2020 2019

20204 20194
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARTIT

Lease liabilities — current HE&E— R 68,080 72,759
Lease liabilities — non-current HESE—IFENER 1,068,986 1,094,137
1,137,066 1,166,896
Under such rental contracts, the minimum lease payment BEZEHRHEEHN RERANRE
during the year was RMB131,992,704 (31 December 2019: HEMAAAR®E131,992,7047T
RMB176,600,047). As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s right- (20194 : AR#176,600,0477T) ©
of use assets relating to such rental contracts amounted to R2020FE128331H  ZEB B BZ
RMB1,245,815,000 (31 December 2019: RMB1,435,429,000). EHEENNERABEEAR AR

1,245,815,0007c ° (2019412531
H : AR#1,435,429,0007T) ©
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Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. R T A48
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHRSESMITENKEEET]
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: IS I
2020 2020%

Financial assets at FVPL
UAREEEEHES)
SABGENEREE
Designated

as such
upon initial
recognition

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

Equity
investments
designated
at FVOCI
EEAU

Mandatorily
designed
as such

ARBME
HER
HEHHA
22 E
ki
BHIETE j B 3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR ARMFRE ARETR ARMTR

INIES
BFEE
RMB’000

ARETFR

EHMEE

Financial assets

Equity investments designated at EEAUAREENER

FVOCI HEFHAEMPE
W RS E - - 1,520,533 - 1,520,533
Trade receivables eI E 778 - - - 11,015 11,015
Financial assets included in SPATERIE HfEU
prepayments, other receivables FBEREMEEN
and other assets TRIEE - - - 1,740,183 1,740,183
Loan to associates BHEARNER - - - 114,724 114,724
Financial asset at FVPL DNAanBETEEEEE)
STABENEMEE 10,712 28,028 - - 38,740
Pledged deposits BEEES - - - 245,919 245,919
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY - - - 1,046,689 1,046,689
10,712 28,028 1,520,533 3,158,530 4,717,803
Financial liabilities at FVPL
RAnEEI=AHES
STABENEREE
Financial
liabilities at
Held for amortised
trading cost Total
At E
Financial liabilities EHEE FIEEE NEmMEE s

RMB’000
ARBTR

RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB’000
ARBTR

Trade and bills payables ENEZRIERERE - 2,466,217 2,466,217
Financial liabilities included in A H MBI IERET

other payables and accruals ERNTrRIaRE - 9,106,251 9,106,251

Lease liabilities HEAE - 2,596,177 2,596,177
Interest-bearing bank loans and SHERITEMREMER

other borrowings - 14,342,459 14,342,459

= 28,511,104 28,511,104
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RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

2. =M TENDHE @

2019 20194
Financial assets at FVPL
UAnBEESE
BHEHFHABRN
ETHEE
Designated Equity Financial
assuch  Mandatorily  investments assets at
upon initial designed  designated amortised
recognition as such at FVOCI cost Total
EEAMU
NAEE
2R
HBEH A
Hit2m #REHEME
i W B R STEW
Financial assets TREE SRR SBEEE RE THEE Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTR ARETRT ARKETT ARET®
Equity investments designated at EEAUAREEE
FVOCI BEHZEHAEMZE
WENEREE - - 1,497,212 - 1,497,212
Trade and bills receivables B E FRIEREE - - - 8,598 8,598
Financial assets included in STABATIE EMENR
prepayments, other receivables NEREMEEN
and other assets THEE - - - 2379946 2,379,946
Loan to associates mEERABNER - - - 114,724 114,724
Financial asset at FVPL NanBEFTEEEEE)
STABRNEREE 206,000 3,001 - - 209,001
Pledged deposits BIEHER - - - 208,265 208,265
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY - - - 1,232,571 1,232,571
206,000 3,001 1,497,212 3,944,104 5,650,317
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R E A
Financial liabilities TRAR StENERER
RMB’000
ARBTT
Trade and bills payables BHESRERER 2,633,692
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals STAEMENRERESERNEREE 5,865,364
Lease liabilities GEN= =L 2,857,485
Interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings STERITERREMER 16,258,215
27,614,756
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RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020

B E2020F 128318 ILEE
43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B ERITEANALABERLIAEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS =

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

rEBRSHITE GREEBERAAAEE
SEMEERN NREBEEARAE
B5RIE

Carrying amounts Fair values
REBE AREE
31 December EECAEBCWCllesigN 31 December [ERCIRDEIWEIlolg
2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 20196 20205 2019F
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT ARETT ARETF T
Financial assets EHMEE
Equity investments designated EEAUAANEENER
at fair value through other HEFHAEMEE
comprehensive income WaERRE 1,520,533 1,497,212 1,520,533 1,497,212
Financial assets at fair value through UAnBEFTEEEED
profit or loss STABEHNEREE 38,740 209,001 38,740 209,001
1,559,273 1,706,213 1,559,273 1,706,213
Financial liabilities Et =l
Interest-bearing bank loans and HERITERREMER
other borrowings 14,342,459 16,119,912 14,342,459 16,119,912
Other long-term liabilities HttRHAEE - 138,303 - 138,303
14,342,459 16,258,215 14,342,459 16,258,215

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged deposits, trade
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, loans to associates
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts
due from/to related parties, dividend receivable and amounts due
from/to subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the value of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.
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A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

43.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF B ERITANALRBERLIAEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The fair value of the liability portion of the
convertible bonds is estimated using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar convertible bond.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been estimated using a market-based valuation technique based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple,
such as price to book (“P/B”) multiple and price to earnings (“P/E”)
multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments
to measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

B.ETHTANAARBERANEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B 4% (@)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TR 20204 k2019 12B31H &
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative MTEGEMMBANERTIREH AR
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2020 and 2019: KEEFRHED T :
Valuation Significant unobservable
technique input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
B BEARAHRZHAE & i ARBEHBABNHRRE
Unlisted equity Valuation multiples Average P/E multiple 20205 © 5% (2019:5%) increase/decrease
investments HERH of peers 37.59-220.23 in multiple would result in
FLriERE increase/decrease in fair value by
RMB1,400,000
(2019: RMB590,000)
EESBohPES 2019%F [ fEH EF TBEE% (20195 : 5%)

Average P/B multiple
of peers

BESS SR =

Discount for lack
of marketability

RiEx D7 RBIEM TR
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11.88-327.10 BEXANBELN, B
AR #81,400,0007T
(20194 : A E®590,0007T)

2020 ¢ 5% (2019:5%) increase/decrease
0.23-2.46 in multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
RMB4,537,000

(2019: RMB2,602,000)

20195 B8 EF+ T B&5% (20194F : 5%)
0.82-2.12 BERADBERND, B
AR #4,537,0007¢

(20194 : AR"2,602,0007T)

2020%F © 5% (2019:5%) increase/decrease
16.28%-25.12% in discount would result in
decrease/ increase in fair value by

RMB1,532,000

(2019: RMB780,000)

20195 (#T3R EF+TB&E5% (20195 : 5%)
17.40%-22.49% BERANBERLD, D
ANE#1,532,00070

(20194 : AR #780,0007T)
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RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

43. EMTANARBERAEE

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2020

&

@ AN (48

DREERR

TRAPALEESHR T AN A AEES

BER

BAREBENENEE
%2020%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

AREBEFEER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BEAATER BATTHE
ERR TR R E BWAE BAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
51k - pt F=& Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®ETT ARETT AREBTT
Financial assets at fair value through MAnBEIEEHES
profit or loss STABRNEREE 28,028 - 10,712 38,740
Equity investments designated EEAUARBEFEEE
at fair value through other SEst ALMEE
comprehensive income MR ERRE 868,788 - 651,745 1,520,533
896,816 - 662,457 1,559,273
As at 31 December 2019 7£2019412831H
Fair value measurement using
ARBEFEFR
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BB BARHE BEATIEZE
RE BWAE BAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£k FEMR F=M 4t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTTT ARBTT
Financial assets at fair value URAnBETEEEEH
through profit or loss STABENEREE 3,001 - 206,000 209,001
Equity investments designated EEANAREESERR
at fair value through other HEFHAELMPE
comprehensive income WEMERRE 923,245 - 573,967 1,497,212
926,246 - 779,967 1,706,213

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into and out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 4. AR EIEEZEMEER

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans, amounts due from/to related parties, and cash and
cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating interest
rates.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-
bearing bank loans of the Group are set out in note 33 above.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in RMB interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact of
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity during the year.

FEBNIEERITAQESRIRTE
R FEWFE AT R EE S RIE U R IR & K
ReEBY ZFEMIANTIELN
ERTEENKEXBEEET A&
EBEEWE S RIAKREN B S RIEAE
NS EEMEMEEREREERE
EEEEET-

FEENERMIAMEEZTEZREE
EHXEEINERER S EERRE RE
MERMRRERR EFEEZNHTE
EEEERBRIBR IEFBRBE ML
LI

RSN

AEEAR T BUEARE BT HFREH
EEAERN TR RS A -

AEBEFERITETNERAERER
EFRE R EXXHIsE33 0

TRIVTIR AT EAREE R AT
(BBEFEEFNTE) REAEEER

EFMERMEEERTENBRTHA

RENERNEERISEEBHHERE

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity”
HE PR ATF i
@, G @, Gi) @, Gab) -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT
31 December 2020 2020F12831H
RMB AR 100 (187,447) -
RMB AR (100) 187,447 -
31 December 2019 2019F12831H
RMB AR 100 (113,608) -
RMB AR (100) 113,608 -

*

Excluding retained profits
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44 B R E IR BIEMBGEE @)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily relates to the
Group'’s foreign interest-bearing bank borrowings, the currencies of
which are different from the functional currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United States
dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

S s B

AEEZEBSNE R T B AEEE
SNERIRTTERAR ZEEBNRAA
EEERAEIEEHE-

TR S AR A E B R A0 B
EFRERMEBERIFTAENBE R TEE
TERGEEEHSIENEREER
BRENADEBEEHIBRKE-

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in US$ rate before tax
ETER PRI AIF)
EF 7 (CFR)  3Em GRL
% RMB’000
% AERKEFIT
2020 20205
If RMB weakens against the WARERETEE
United States dollar (5%) 16,281
If RMB strengthens against the MARBRETHE
United States dollar 5% (16,281)
2019 20194
If RMB weakens against the MARERETEE
United States dollar (5%) (76,053)
If RMB strengthens against the MARBRETHE
United States dollar 5% 76,053

Credit risk

The Group’s sales of merchandise are mainly on a cash basis. For
credit sales, the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

EEREE

FEFBFEURESHTAHEEB @B
RIED AEEERERIREER
FRE=ZHETRZ LI AEEFE
BEBWGRIRAE R RIRARIL A E K
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Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. FATEE G E IR B EFMEBEE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BRAMOKRERMEEEDEE
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure TRETHKI1I2ASIBENAEEBEERK
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly R EEENRBAEBRBEER BKRIEFEHA
based on past due information unless other information is available 1B % AL AN 3RS 7 B AT B Y E A & k) A]
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at B SHNEEERRREAEERMK
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts ORFREEDE 27 TEATH
for financial assets. BEENREBE
As at 31 December 2020 1420205128318
12-month
Lifetime ECLs
+Z{EAEH
=EER aERFEHEREEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
SR  EME ESER B163% 4@zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Loans to associates EEA=YN=II=E 114,724 - - = 114,724
Trade receivables* FEIE 7 2E - - - 11,015 11,015
Financial assets included in AT TIE At ELREIE
prepayments, other receivables REtEENEREE
and other assets
- Normal™ —EE™ 1,513,685 - - - 1,513,685
- Doubtful*™* — Ak 226,498 - - - 226,498
Pledged deposits BIRHER
— Not yet past due — M R AR 245,919 - - = 245,919
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY
— Not yet past due — M R AR 1,046,689 - - - 1,046,689

3,147,515 - 11,015 3,158,530
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RAFsER R MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

4. A EIEBENRE @)

BRAMOKRERMEEEDEE @
72019128 31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+-EREH
EEER AEREREREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FPEE E R B REER 1% st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARBTRT ARETR
Loans to associates RS RARER 114,724 = = = 114,724
Trade receivables* fE & FzE - - - 8,598 8,598
Financial assets included in EFATERTIE Y At EREIE
prepayments, other receivables REMBEENSREE
and other assets
- Normal** —IEE™ 2,268,172 - - - 2,268,172
- Doubtful** — B A 226,498 - - - 226,498
Pledged deposits BIRHRER
— Not yet past due kN 208,265 - - = 208,265
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY
— Not yet past due S 1,232,571 - - - 1,232,571
4,050,230 - - 8,598 4,058,828

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 28

to the financial statements.

ok

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 28 to the

financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RAFsERAR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. B R EIEBEMEER @

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash

equivalents and have available funding through bank and other
borrowings to meet its working capital requirements.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

On demand
BEX
RMB’000
ARETT

BN E R
AEBNBRRBERTERERREE
BY > wEARITRAEMEBRLUN R
EREEEARENR.

FEBRBEBMERBESE AL
EESSEMNER-ILBRTASES
MIAREREE (FIMEWEZRE)
WEMBE R REEEHNASFRER

=
==

REIEHR > BN SAMERMIRIMB
TREENFEBERNT :

31 December 2020
2020128318
Less than
1 year Over 1 year Total
—&RN —EYNE i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT

Lease Liabilities HEARE - 262,934 3,128,045 3,390,979
Trade and bills payables ENEZRIENREE - 2,466,217 - 2,466,217
Contract liabilities, deposits received, aNaR Bl

accruals and other payables FEET & B R MM T8 - 9,106,251 - 9,106,251
Interest-bearing bank and other HEBTERREMER

borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) FeEHEEa’) - 5,650,316 11,918,452 17,568,768

- 17,485,718 15,046,497 32,532,215

31 December 2019
2019F12831H
Less than

On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total

BER —FR —&ENE 15t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETFT ARET T ARETFT

Lease Liabilities HE&R - 259,977 3,611,456 3,871,433

Trade and bills payables ENEZTERER - 2,633,692 - 2,633,692

Contract liabilities, deposits received, aNaR BlEs

accruals and other payables fEstE AR AMECHRIE - 5,865,364 - 5,865,364
Interest-bearing bank and other HERITERREMER

borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) FEEHEEaR) - 9,917,466 8,594,852 18,512,318

18,676,499 12,206,308 30,882,807
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A1 T5 R R M 5T

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. BT R EIE B M EBUEE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk BB %
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities B& 18 /2 B 2 45 R B 1 15 BUK T K (@ 7l 58
decrease as a result of changes in the level of equity indices and SFEEEFENNRAZSLAAEBET
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity BHER - ~EREEHNKRERRRIES
price risk arising from equity investments designated at fair value EEABUARABESFEEEEFHFT AR
through other comprehensive income (note 24) and individual equity tEERENEREE (E24) RUA
investments included in financial assets at fair value through profit or nNEBEFEEHEH I ABENEME
loss (note 24). The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the ENENERIEE (5E24) - KEED
Shenzhen and Shanghai stock exchanges and are valued at quoted ITHERENFINIR LEESERFM
market prices at the end of the reporting period. b RERSHARIZFA SR M EE -
The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the REARBARSHANR S HEXER
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of R4S REF > TYEHZZ I T
the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points EEREZEREAN RS RREET
during the year were as follows: iy :
Year ended Year ended
LYY [T W et o Yal 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2019 2019
#=E EES
20205 20194
2020 12A31H 20194 12H31H
12H31H LEE 12A31H IEFE
High/low High/low
5 /18 B/ 1&
Shenzhen - A Share Index RYI-ARIEE 2,438  2,450/1,625 1,802 1,882/1,288
Shanghai - A Share Index Lig—ARIEH 3473 3,475/2,647 3050  3,288/2,441
Capital management BERER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEAEENTEBRABREE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to FRBENEETRLIBRNEARLE
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and UERHHEBTAKRKREERAEE
maximise shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEBRBE TR TN EE N KBBE
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk ENRMSMESERAEEEARE S
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the MR RAREARERE  AEBGRRE
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to AN FTRENKE BREREEARY
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The BRITHTAR o N EE B A = AE R 0 2B 5 A0 BY
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. BAFTERIE o IR E £20205F K&20194F
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for 12831HIEFERN EAEEBE K
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and BB EERTMES
2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED Z=BIBEZERERAT 255



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RATS IR AR 5L

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

44.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. B R E IR B IEMBEE @)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as lease
liabilities plus interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
(other than convertible bonds) less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Capital includes the equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 were as follows:

BEXREIE @
AEERBEASBIEEEEFEAR  Z
LRI EIE SR UE AN EEIE S8
ZHstE - FEIEFERAEAEME
IRITERREMER GRATRRES )
BEERB:EBY RERIFEFENR
H-EAGESATHEB ABRGRER A&
EENBRERELAEBILEERTRSG
BRI K © 220205 220198 12831H
MEREBLEERYT :

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

20204 20194F

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARETFIT

Lease liabilities HEAE 2,596,177 2,857,485
Interest-bearing bank loans and other sTREIRITER R EHMER

borrowings 14,342,459 16,119,912
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and BCRESERESEEMR

pledged deposits BIRFFER (1,292,608) (1,440,836)

Net debt BI85 %8 15,646,028 17,536,561

Equity attributable to owners of the parent ~ &ATIHEA AEIEES 12,968,145 13,030,346

Adjusted capital BB AR 12,968,145 13,030,346

Capital and net debt BAKRGIEFEE 28,614,173 30,566,907

Gearing ratio EARBBIEE 55% 57%

45. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 45. B BEREL

Guarantees amounting to RMB770,109,900 (2019: RMB731,896,900)
are given to banks with respect to mortgaged loans procured by the
purchasers of group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released
by banks upon the issuance of the real estate ownership certificates
to the purchasers or the satisfaction of the mortgaged loans by the
purchasers, whichever is earlier. In the opinion of directors of the
company, the fair value of the financial guarantee contracts is not
significant.
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Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12831HIEFE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

46. AT BT R

BERAABDNBREMRRMBRRIRNE

KA ;

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20205 20194
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBEFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTBATRE 139,761 139,761
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables FE I8 K E M FE W IE 89,209 43,033
Dividend receivable FEUWLAS B 1,177,072 1,249,587
Due from subsidiaries FEUR S B8 A B 7R IR 727,119 1,994,715
Due from related parties FE s BA Bt 75 7R I8 26,307 28,116
Cash and cash equivalents REMRIREEEY 52,475 4,303
Total current assets BN E EAREE 2,072,182 3,319,754
CURRENT LIABILITIES REaE ‘
Other payables and accruals HihE IR BT E R 2,080 66,457
Dividend payable FE{TRR B 26 22
Due to subsidiaries N e YNSIEe 748,511 169,193
Due to the immediate holding company AT ERIER AT MNIE 577,464 440,112
Interest-bearing bank loans and SFERITERREMER
other borrowings 10,106 1,656,981
Total current liabilities mEN BB 1,338,187 2,332,765
NET CURRENT ASSETS BB EREE 733,995 986,989
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERTEESE
LIABILITIES 873,756 1,126,750
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBER
Interest-bearing bank loans and FFEIRTTERREMER
other borrowings 90,949 -
Other long-term liabilities HthEHEE - 138,303
Total non-current liabilities JERENE(EMERE 90,949 138,303
Net assets BEEFRE 782,807 088,447
Equity e
Issued capital EETIRA 460,153 460,153
Reserves (note) M (5 322,654 528,294
Total equity AR 782,807 088,447
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Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HIEFE
46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. XA T B FEAR R (@)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: MIsE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABMABENBEZETIOT -
Equity Retained
Share  component Capital Exchange profits/
premium of convertible redemption Contributed  fluctuation (accumulated
account bonds reserve surplus reserve losses) Total
Ak ES R4 EEE SNERE BERF
RiaER HEEHS fitf BARR e (5 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR%ETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2019 20195
181814 1,575,565 55,538 27,770 152,671 (262,962) (550,761) 997,821
Total comprehensive loss for the year R 2 E B4 - - - - (146,705) (322,822) (469,527)
At 31 December 2019 120195128318 1,575,565 55,538 217,770 152,671 (409,667) (873,583) 528,294
Total comprehensive loss for the year R 2 B4 - - - - (130,922) (74,718) (205,640)
At 31 December 2020 12020 12831H 1,575,565 55,538 27,770 152,671 (540,589) (948,301) 322,654
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the KNANBEHBREGISFTRENE AT KD
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over the previous HARBEBEAEAATSMTHBMETZ
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor. BRhiEEEmE s EZE-
47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47. BATSER R AL
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BB E N 2021 EIB24BESEE <
the board of directors on 24 March 2021. HE RS REE T o

258  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /5% 2 Bl B 4228 75 fR /A &) ANNUAL REPORT 2020 R



CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhong Pengyi (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wang Bin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Rao Yong
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion

Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands
HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre

4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, PRC
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3301, 33/F
Office Tower Convention Plaza
No.1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. So Ka Man (FCS, FCIS)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Rao Yong (Chairman)
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman)
Mr. Rao Yong
Mr. Gao Yajun

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£ERE

EEE

PITES

BRNAE EFREREEHTTE)
BIERE BEFR)
ENBRT (HEMEE)

FRITES

T ses
BIFPTES
Bk sk

il e
BLELE
EMMELE

P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands
rhE 48

AR BRI 7 R B BR B8 40035%

R R P OARE38IE
BESRME
ERBEOBLES
SRESBWAKIE

33183301=E

REME

B =S L (FCS, FCIS)

B%ZEY
Bk EE (/)
IR E
BEmERE
o S
IRERSEE (/)

B
SRELE

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED M2 EEZRARAT 259



CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATIEE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman)
Mr. Rao Yong
Mr. Pao Ping Wing

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Mr. Wang Bin

Ms. So Ka Man

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES PURSUANT TO THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

Mr. Wang Bin

Ms. So Ka Man

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.maoye.cn

STOCK CODE
848

260 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% % BB =5 5 fR/A 5

RREET

BRWMAEE (FE)
BEK ST E

AR A

&k EHRRAZ IRERER
T AEE

et

KRERBQBRMZEERR

E gt S
BEHLT
VR 2L
BRI E IS

EERMGELKIBRE

BIEREERLERAT
58

EEAREE1835%

B AH 05418
FEFRIET

REIERTT

R TR R1T
PRI R IRIT
thE] = 2R ERTT

REIDIRTT (FE) BRAT
NSRS

www.maoye.cn

AR5k

848

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 FE#R &



MO

1% Sk [l R 35 B B BR 22 &

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




	封面
	目錄
	公司簡介
	公司使命
	財務摘要
	零售網絡
	董事長報告書
	管理層討論與分析
	董事和秘書履歷
	企業管治報告
	環境、社會及管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註
	公司資料
	封底



